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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

(Mark One)
%] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 20!
or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 0-26946

INTEVAC, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cagrt

Delaware 94-3125814
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization

3560 Bassett Street
Santa Clara, California 95054

(Address of principal executive office, includirig Zode)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(408) 986-9888
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Register:
Common Stock ($0.001 par valt The Nasdag Stock Market LLC (NASDAQ Global Sele

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) die Act:
None.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405edbéturities Act. O
Yes M No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. O
Yes M No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant €l filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preagdia months (or for such shorter period that tlyésteant was required to file
such reports), and (2) has been subject to sunl fiequirements for the past 90 day®l Yes[O No

Indicate by a check mark if disclosure of delinqudars pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-Ka@t contained herein, and
will not be contained, to the best of registrarkhowledge, in definitive proxy or information &ments incorporated by refere
in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendmenthéstForm 10-K. [4 ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-accelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company. See definitions of “taggcelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “steareporting company” in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated file[d Accelerated filerd Non-accelerated fileid Smaller reporting compan
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the A Yes M No

The aggregate market value of voting stock helddy-affiliates of the Registrant, as of June 288@as approximately
$138,017,121 (based on the closing price for shafréee Registrans Common Stock as reported by the Nasdaq Stocke¥l ol
the last trading day prior to that date). ShareSamhmon Stock held by each executive officer, doeand holder of 5% or mo
of the outstanding Common Stock have been exclud#tht such persons may be deemed to be affiliditeis determination of
affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusiveedrination for other purposes.



On March 4, 2009, 21,925,526 shares of the Regisr&@ommon Stock, $0.001 par value, were outstandi

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE.

Portions of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement fer2809 Annual Meeting of Stockholders are incorfgatdy reference into
Part lll. Such proxy statement will be filed withl20 days after the end of the fiscal year covésethis Annual Report on
Form 10-K.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART |
Item 1. Busines
Item 1A. Risk Factor
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commet
Item 2. Propertie
Item 3. Legal Proceeding
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Sec-Holders
PART I
Item 5. Market for Registra’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securi
Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial C
Item 7. Manageme’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults
of Operations
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosurdsofit Market Ris}
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDEFR EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT¢
Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accotstam Accounting and
Financial Disclosur
Item 9A. Controls and Procedut
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM
Item 9B. Other Informatio
PART llI
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corper@bvernanc
Item 11. Executive Compensati
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficiali@@rs and Management a
Related Stockholder Matte
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Traimmastand Director Independer
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Serv
PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schec
SIGNATURES
SCHEDULE II-- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
EX-10.11
EX-10.12
EX-21.1
EX-23.1
EX-23.2
EX-31.1
EX-31.2
EX-32.1




Table of Contents

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT S

Certain information in this Annual Report on ForB+H (report or Form 10-K) of Intevac, Inc. and its
subsidiaries (Intevac or the Company), includingafddgement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialdtmn
and Results of Operations” in Item 7, is forwdodking in nature. All statements in this repomgluding those ma
by the management of Intevac, other than statenoéistorical fact, are forward-looking statemerigamples of
forward-looking statements include statements iggrintevac’s future financial results, operatiegults, cash
flows and cash deployment strategies, businestegies, costs, products, working capital, compegipositions,
management’s plans and objectives for future oersitresearch and development, acquisitions anthyjentures,
growth opportunities, customer contracts, investsidiquidity, declaration of dividends, and legabceedings, as
well as market conditions and industry trends. €fesward-looking statements are based on manag&men
estimates, projections and assumptions as of tieehdmeof and include the assumptions that undsulié
statements. Forward-looking statements may comtaids such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “wald,”
“expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimat” “predict,” “potential” and “continue,” the nefjee of these
terms, or other comparable terminology. Any expémta based on these forward-looking statementsugect to
risks and uncertainties and other important faciaduding those discussed in Item 1A, “Risk Fasfbbelow and
elsewhere in this report. Other risks and uncetfegnmay be disclosed in Intevac’s prior Securitied Exchange
Commission (SEC) filings. These and many otherofsctould affect Intevac’s future financial conalitiand
operating results and could cause actual resulli#fer materially from expectations based on farvboking
statements made in this report or elsewhere bydwater on its behalf. Intevac undertakes no olibgetio revise or
update any forward-looking statements.

” o ”ou ” ” o ”

The following information should be read in conjtian with the Consolidated Financial Statements ttued
accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statésnincluded in this report.

PART I

Item 1. Business
Overview
Intevac’s business consists of two reportable seggne

Equipment: Intevac is a leader in the design, manufactudenaarketing of high-productivity magnetic media
sputtering equipment to the hard disk drive induatrd offers advanced etch technology systemseto th
semiconductor industry.

Intevac Photonics: Intevac is a leader in the development and matwifa of leading edge, high-sensitivity
imaging products and vision systems, as well detfmp and portable Raman instruments. Marketsesseid
include military, law enforcement, industrial, ploa science and life science.

Intevac was incorporated in October 1990 in Catif@and completed a leveraged buyout of a number of
divisions of Varian Associates in February 1991ewac was reincorporated in Delaware in 2007.

Equipment Segment
Hard Disk Drive Equipment Market

Intevac designs, manufactures, markets and serearaplex capital equipment used to deposit thmdibf
material onto magnetic disks that are used in Heskldrives, and also equipment to lubricate thisks. Disk and
disk drive manufacturers produce magnetic disks sophisticated manufacturing process involvingyrsaps,
including plating, annealing, polishing, texturirsputtering and lubrication. Intevac believes jytstems represent
approximately 60% of the installed capacity of digkittering systems worldwide. Intevac’s systenesused by
manufacturers such as Fuji Electric, Hitachi Globtmrage Technologies, Seagate Technology and Yid3igital.
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Hard disk drives are a primary storage medium igital data and are used in products and applicatsuch as
personal computers, enterprise data storage, pdrandio and video players and video game platformsvac
believes that hard disk drive shipments will conéirto grow over time, driven by growth in digitédrage, by new
and emerging applications, and by the proliferatbpersonal computers into emerging markets irmAsid Easter
Europe. Continued growth in hard disk drive shiptags a key factor in determining demand for maigraisks
used in hard disk drives.

Demand for Intevac’s disk manufacturing productdrisen by a number of factors, including unit demhdor
hard disk drives, market share, the average nuofliaagnetic disks used in each hard drive, utilimaaind
productivity of disk manufacturergistalled base of magnetic disk manufacturing emeipt and obsolescence of
installed base. The introduction of perpendicuéaording technology by disk manufacturers had aifstgnt
impact on the equipment market, and increased deiaif for new equipment, such as Intevac’s 200 Badisk
sputtering system, and for technology upgradekdaristalled base of Intevac’s legacy MDP-250 systeHowever
in 2008, shipments of both new systems and teclygalpgrades declined relative to 2007 and 2006.

Hard Disk Drive Equipment Products
Disk Sputtering Systems

In the first quarter of 2008, the first 200 LeamGk Intevac’s latest generation disk sputteriggtem was
shipped. It is designed to deliver 25% higher tigfqaut than the original 200 Lean. This increastioughput
enables Intevac customers to manufacture more rtiaghigks per square foot of factory floor spacatter
reducing overall cost per disk.

In late 2003, first generation 200 Lean system&begipping and by the end of 2008, the installskliotaled
more than 120 systems. Intevac believes approxij@@8s of these systems are used in production thighbalanc
used for research and development. The 200 Leanlesigned to provide enhanced capabilities reldtiiatevacs
MDP-250 system and lower overall cost of ownerdbrplisk manufacturers. The 200 Lean provides higlek
throughput from a small footprint, which enablesnfacturers to produce more disks per square-fofatotory
floor space. The 200 Lean’s modular architectul@na Intevac’s customers to incorporate any nunalbelisk
manufacturing process steps required by their évgliechnology roadmaps. Most of the 200 Lean systshipped
are capable of performing up to 20 process stepgpaced to the 12 process step maximum on the atijiDP-
250. The 200 Lean also allows rapid reconfigurattbaccommodate varying process recipes, disk sizéslisk
materials.

From 1994 through 2005, Intevac shipped approxilpdte0 MDP-250's. As of the end of 2008, Intevac
believes that approximately 65% of these systemstdl being used for production. The balanceheke systems
are either being used by customers for researclid@velopment, in storage or have been retired Bemice.

Disk Lubrication Systems

Disk lubrication is the manufacturing step thatdals deposition of thin films. During lubricatioa,
microscopic layer of lubricant is applied to theldé surface to improve durability and reduce stefhiction
between the disk and the read/write head assembly.

The Intevac DLS-100 disk lubrication system progidigevac’s customers with a lubrication process by
dipping disks into a lubricant/solvent mixture.dmac has been manufacturing dip lubrication syst@mgar to the
DLS-100 since 1996.

The Intevac AccuLubeM disk lubrication system lubricates disks by depogit thin film of lubricant on the
disk while it is under vacuum. This eliminates ttse of solvents during the lubrication processciviaire
environmentally hazardous and are expensive toupegstore and dispose.

Non-Systems Business

Intevac also provides installation, maintenancerapdir services, technology upgrades, spare pads
consumables to Intevac’s system customers. Anaseet level of technology upgrades caused non-sgstem
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business to increase significantly in 2006 and 200 in absolute terms and as a percentage ap&gmnt
revenues. Non-system business declined in 2008eputsented nearly 45% of Equipment revenuehéyear.

Semiconductor Equipment Market

A wide range of manufacturing equipment is usefhbwicate semiconductor chips including: atomicelay
deposition (“ALD"), chemical vapor deposition (“CV]D physical vapor deposition (“PVD"), electrochesal
plating (“ECP"), etch, ion implantation, rapid theal processing (“RTP”), chemical mechanical plaretion
(CMP), wafer wet cleaning, wafer metrology and extjon, and systems that etch, measure and inspeuwit
patterns on masks used in the photolithographygssc

Most chips are built on a silicon wafer base amilitle a variety of circuit components, such assistars and
other devices, that are connected by multiple Bgémiring (interconnects). To build a chip, tharsistors,
capacitors and other circuit components are fiesated on the surface of the wafer by performisgrées of
processes to deposit and selectively remove suuedim layers. Similar processes are then usdulitd the layer
of wiring structures on the wafer.

Most chips are currently fabricated using 65 nartem@m) and larger linewidth dimensions. Over time
Intevac believes that 45 nm, and then 32 nm, kedylito be the next line width “nodes” to be implkemed as
manufacturers work to squeeze more and more componato each chip. As the density of the circaihponents
increases to enable greater computing power isdh@e or smaller area, the complexity of building ¢hip also
increases, necessitating more process steps tosfoatier structures and more intricate wiring sceem

Over time, the semiconductor industry has also atégl to increasingly larger wafers to build chipise
predominant wafer size used for volume productias lbeen 200 millimeter (mm), or eight-inch, waféis, a
substantial number of advanced fabrications now3@€enm, or 12-inch, wafers to gain the economiaatages of
a larger surface area. The majority of new fabigcatapacity is 300mm. The industry is beginningltzse some
200mm fabs for economic reasons.

Intevac is utilizing its expertise in the desigrgmfacturing, and marketing of complex manufactyrin
equipment and the prior experience of Intevac’sagament team in the semiconductor manufacturingpetgnt
business to develop products for the semicondustotufacturing market, which Intevac believes isstattially
larger than the hard disk drive equipment markat kitevac currently serves.

Semiconductor Manufacturing Products

In 2007, Intevac announced its new dielectric s@miconductor manufacturing system, the Lean FtcfThe
Lean Etch is a 300 mm system designed to addregsetbd for significant productivity improvement grdvide
enabling etch technology at 45 nanometer node$alualv.

During 2008, Intevac entered into an alliance WS Co., Ltd. (“TES”), a Korean equipment compahiS
has exclusive rights to market the Lean Etch indéaaind China, and Intevac has exclusive rightsaiket TES’
CVD equipment to the rest of the world. In the fe{urES will be responsible for final assembly et of Lean
Etch systems for the Korean and Chinese markets.

During 2009, Intevac plans to deliver evaluatiosteyns to customers through our alliance with TB&Mac
does not expect to recognize any revenue from Etelm shipments in 2009.
Other Markets and Products

Intevac’s 200 Lean platform may be suitable toaiarhon-magnetic thin film applications such agjaab
coatings, photovoltaic and wear-resistant coatiligsvac is currently working with a customer ore@uch
application and expects to deliver a system in 2009
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Intevac Photonics Segmer
Intevac Photonics Market

Intevac develops, manufactures and sells compast;affective, high-sensitivity digitadptical products for th
capture and display of low-light images and theogpanalysis of materials. Intevac provides sesstameras and
systems for government applications such as nighry, long-range target identification and simiglattraining,
and for commercial applications in the inspectimedical, scientific and security industries. Thgarity of
Intevac’s imaging revenue has been derived frontraots related to the development of electro-opteasors and
cameras, funded by the U.S. Government, its agemaeid contractors. However, the percentage of &st&hotonic
revenue derived from product sales grew from 15%0i06 to 29% in 2007 and 37% in 2008 and is expicte
continue to increase in 2009.

Intevac Photonics Products

Night Vision Systems— Since 1995, the U.S. military has funded the dewmlent of digital night vision sens
technology at Intevac, based on Intevac’s patetectron Bombarded Active Pixel Sensor (‘EBAPS ¥ida. The
EBAPS design utilizes CMOS technology to producempact, light-weight, low-light level digital sesrswhich
provides the U.S. military both size and weightatages, as well as the advantages of digital imgagiompared 1
currently deployed analog “Generation-III" nighsiin tubes. In 2007, Intevac entered its firsttgilduction of a
digital night vision camera module for use in #erdight system by a major NATO defense contraaitat has been
conducting lowvolume manufacturing deliveries of this camera niediaroughout 2008. At the conclusion of 20
Intevac received it first U.S. military productionder for a digital camera module for an avionigpl&ation and
began low-rate production deliveries, which wiltend throughout 2009. In 2008, Intevac also coregléte
development of a next-generation, digital nightorissensor, which was funded by multiple brancHdb®
U.S. military. Field tests with the U.S. Army irtéa2008 demonstrated that this sensor is succsefakting the
performance requirements of the U.S military. SavekS. military applications of this next-geneoatisensor are
already in development.

The U.S. military is also funding development afeempact, head-mounted digital imaging system, git8li
Enhanced Night Vision Goggle (‘DENVG”). DENVG intedes a visible imager, a thermal imager and aovide
display. This approach allows low-light level ahéitmal imagery to be viewed individually, or todeerlaid
(“digitally fused”), and also enables connectivitya wireless network for distribution of the imagand other
information. The U.S. Army plans to begin produntaf this type of system in 2012. In 2007, Inteeampleted
joint development, with DRS Technologies, Ir“DRS”), of a prototype DENVG night vision gogglerfthe U.S
Army. The prototype used Intevac Photonidggjital night vision sensor in combination with &B thermal imagin
sensor. During 2008, development of an enhancedwpaaince version of DENVG was conducted, which eyed
Intevac Photonics’ new next-generation, digitahtigision sensor. Prototype deliveries and U.S. yfigld testing
of this enhancegerformance DENVG are expected in 2009. In 200&wviac also launched development of a di
night vision system product called NightPttt which combines its digital sensor technology vii¢hnear-eye
display technology obtained with the acquisitiorCoéative Display Systems, LLC (“CDS") in late 200¥ghtPort
™is a compact, monocular system that provides fgital night vision viewing and recording capalidi and is
designed as a direct replacement for legacy nigidrv goggles for both military and commercial apgtions.

Cameras for Long-Range Target Identification (LIWAR Current long-range military nighttime surveiltan
systems are based on expensive thermal imagingraasystems. These systems are relatively largehnkia
disadvantage for airborne and portable applicatidasordingly, there is a need for a cost-effects@mpact, long-
range imaging solution that identifies targets distance greater than an adversary’s detectiayeraapability.
Intevac Photonics’ Laser llluminated Viewing andnBimg (“LIVAR ®”) camera enables the development of such
systems which can identify targets at distancegxdb twenty kilometers. Presently, Intevac PhatshiLlVAR
camera is being incorporated into U.S. militarygreons that deploy long-range target identificatioboth of these
applications. During 2008, Intevac delivered preejrction LIVAR cameras for both land-based andainb
applications. At the conclusion of 2008, Intevacetiged an initial low-level production order foethlVAR
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camera for an airborne application. Intevac expftisw-on production orders and the commencemént o
production deliveries for this application during0®.

Intensified Photodiodes— Intevac has developed, under a number of relseard development contracts,
intensified photodiode technology that enablesleipfoton detection at extremely high data ratéschvis
designed for use in target identification and othditary applications.

Near-Eye Display Systems- Intevac specializes in high-performance, micisplay products for near-eye,
portable viewing of video in military and commelaiaarkets. Intevac’s eyeglass-mounted display systerovide
high definition and a wide field-of-view in miniaimed light-weight and portable designs.

Commercial Low-Light Cameras— Intevac Photonics’ MicroVist@ product line of commercial low-light
CMOS cameras provides high sensitivity in the witket, visible, or near infrared regions of thesja by using
our proprietary fabrication technology in back-tiiimg CMOS sensors. MicroVisfd's compact and light-weight
camera design makes it ideally suitable for apfiboa in industrial inspection, bio-medical, anéestific markets.
Intevac also provides a high-sensitivity near-irdthMOSIR® camera that is well-suited for scientific spectaysc
applications where high signal — to-noise is achiethrough Intevac’s electron-bombarded sensogdesi

Raman Materials Identification Instruments- Raman spectrometer systems are used to idéhéfghemical
composition of solid materials, powders and liguigislluminating the sample with a laser and memguthe
characteristic spectrum of light scattered fromttsted sample. Raman spectroscopy is well suwtegplications
such as hazmat, forensics, homeland security, ggptremology, medical, pharmaceutical and induiality
assurance. Intevac offers a line of bench-top amthple Raman spectrometers developed by DeltaNudivision
of Intevac Photonics. These instruments enabletimal, non-destructive identification of liquidsdagolids in the
laboratory as well as in the field. Products inelaulkde Advantag@ series of low-cost, high-performance bench-top
spectrometers, the Inspecttiseries of handheld field analysis spectrometerantixeR™ , a unique modular
Raman microscopy system for applications that requiiecise spectral characterization, the RepditeR palm-
sized spectrometer for rapid material identificatio the field, and near-infrared Raman instrumevtigh
incorporate Intevac’s core technology.

Backlog

Intevac’s backlog of orders at December 31, 2008 $20.2 million, as compared to $34.2 million at
December 31, 2007. Backlog at December 31, 2008isteal of $11.4 million of Equipment backlog and
$8.8 million of Intevac Photonics backlog. BackktgDecember 31, 2007 consisted of $28.4 millioEgdfipment
backlog and $5.8 million of Intevac Photonics bagklThe decrease in Equipment backlog was prim#réyresult
of decreased orders for 200 Lean disk sputteristesys and upgrades. Backlog at December 31, 2@08l&s one
200 Lean system for a non-magnetic media applicatie compared to two 200 Lean systems in backlog a
December 31, 2007. Backlog includes only customeers with scheduled delivery dates.

Customer Concentration

Historically, a significant portion of Intevac’swenue in any particular period has been attribetédolsales to a
limited number of customers. In 2008 sales to Seesgyad Hitachi Global Storage Technologies, eachwauted for
more than 10% of Intevac’s revenues. In 2007 ar 2ales to Seagate, Matsubo - Intevac’s Japansséutor,
Hitachi Global Storage Technologies, and Fuji Ele@ach accounted for more than 10% of Inteveavenues. In
the aggregate sales to these customers accoumt®@d%g 90% and 93% of revenues in 2008, 2007 afé,20
respectively. Intevac expects that sales of Intsyawducts to relatively few customers will contnto account for
a high percentage of Intevac’s revenues in theséwable future.

Foreign sales accounted for 69% of revenue in 280%; of revenue in 2007, and 90% of revenue in 2006
majority of Intevac’s foreign sales are to comparnieAsia or to U.S. companies for use in theirafsi
manufacturing or development operations. Intevdicipates that sales to these international custenvél continue
to be a significant portion of Intevac’s Equipmesienues. Intevac’s disk sputtering equipment cuoste include
magnetic disk manufacturers, such as Fuji Elecand, vertically integrated hard disk drive manuiaets,
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such as Hitachi Global Storage Technology and Seafjaevac’s customers’ manufacturing facilities primarily
located in California, China, Japan, Malaysia aimdj&pore.

Competition

The principal competitive factors affecting the kets for Intevac Equipment products include prmeduct
performance and functionality, ease of integrat@austomer support and service, reputation anduiétia Intevac
has historically experienced intense worldwide cetitipn for magnetic disk sputtering equipment froampanies
that have sold substantial numbers of systems watkl including Anelva Corporation. In additionfémac is
attempting to enter the semiconductor equipmenketaand Intevac faces competition from large distadd
competitors including Applied Materials, LAM Reselarand Tokyo Electron, Ltd. These competitors allen
substantially greater financial, technical, mankgtimanufacturing and other resources as comparedevac.
Furthermore, any of Intevac’s competitors may dey@nhancements to, or future generations of, cttivee
products that offer superior price or performareagtdres. In addition, new competitors with enharmeducts may
enter the markets that Intevac currently serves.

The principal competitive factors affecting IntevRleotonics products include price, extreme lowtligkiel
detection performance, power consumption, resoluse, ease of integration, reliability, repudatand customer
support and service. Intevac faces substantial etitign for Intevac Photonics products, many withstantially
greater resources and brand recognition. In thigamyilmarket, ITT Industries, Inc. Corporation itasge and well-
established defense contractor and is a primary tda@®ufacturer of image intensifier tubes used ém&ation-II|
night vision devices and their derivative produtit¢evac’s digital night vision sensors, cameras systems are
intended to displace Generation-IIl night visiorséa products. Intevac expects that ITT, BAE anémotiompanies
will develop digital night vision products and aggsively promote their sales. Furthermore, IntevatVAR target
identification sensors and cameras face competitaon CMC Electronics, DRS, FLIR Systems and Ragthe
established companies that manufacture cooledr@drsensors and cameras which are presently usedgfnange
target identification systems. Within the near-display market, Intevac also faces competition fivatkwell-
Collins, Vuzix and Oasys, each of which can offestecompetitive products. In the commercial marketsnpanies
such as Andor, Basler, Dalsa, E2V, Goodrich, Hantamda exas Instruments and Roper offer compet#eresor
and camera products, and companies such as Ah&¥, Bek, Horiba — Jobin Yvon, InPhotonics, Ocean iOpt
Renishaw and Smiths Detection offer competitive Rarspectrometer products.

Marketing and Sales

Equipment sales are made through Intevac’s disesdorce, with the exception of in Japan and ykila
where Intevac sell its products through a distebulatsubo. Sales of Intevac’s Lean Etch systelhbsimade by
TES, Intevac’s alliance partner, in Korea and Chirfge selling process for Intevac’s Equipment paislis multi-
level and long-term, involving individuals from nkating, engineering, operations, customer servicesgnior
management. The process involves making sample diswafers for the prospective customer and redipgrto
their needs for moderate levels of machine custatioiz. Customers often require a significant nundfgroduct
presentations and demonstrations before makingchasing decision.

Installing and integrating new equipment requiresilastantial investment by a customer. Sales ef/at’s
systems depend, in significant part, upon the dwtisf a prospective customer to replace obsolgtgpenent or to
increase manufacturing capacity by upgrading oaegjng existing manufacturing facilities or by casting new
manufacturing facilities, all of which typicallywolve a significant capital commitment. After madgia decision to
select Intevac’s equipment, Intevac’s customeraffy purchase one or more engineering systendgvelop and
qualify their production process prior to orderangd taking delivery of multiple production systemscordingly,
Intevac’s systems have a lengthy sales cycle, dwinich Intevac may expend substantial funds andagement
time and effort with no assurance that a saleregllt.

The production of large complex systems requirésvic to make significant investments in inventoogh to
fulfill customer orders and to maintain adequatepdies of spare parts to service previously shippeems. In
some cases Intevac manufactures subsystems andiptete systems prior to receipt of a customerroi@emooth
Intevac’s production flow and/or reduce lead time.
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Intevac maintains inventories of spare parts inf@alia, Singapore and China to support its custamatevac
often requires its customers to pay for systentbriee installments, with a portion of the systeieebilled upon
receipt of an order, a portion of the price billgzbn shipment, and the balance of the price andal®g tax due
upon completing installation and acceptance ofifstem at the customer’s factory. All customer prighayments
are recorded as customer advances, which are edl@ats revenue in accordance with Intega@venue recognitic

policy.

Intevac provides process and applications suppastomer training, installation, start-up assistazied
emergency service support to Intevac’s Equipmesitotners. Intevac conducts training classes fovaus
customers’ process engineers, machine operatorsanldine service personnel. Additional trainingl&o given to
Intevac’s customers during equipment installation. Intevag field offices in Singapore, China, Korea, Malayani
Japan to support Intevac’s customers in Asia. btegenerally adds additional support centers asssacy to
maintain close proximity to Intevac’s customergtéaies as they deploy Intevac’s systems.

Warranty for Intevac’s Equipment typically rangesvieeen 12 and 24 months from customer acceptance.
During this warranty period any necessary non-covale parts are supplied and installed withoutgdalntevac'’s
employees provide field service support in the ethibtates, Singapore, Malaysia, China and Japaapian, field
service support is also supplemented by Intevastsiloutor, Matsubo.

Sales of Intevac Photonics products for militarplagations are primarily made to the end user tgtou
Intevac’s direct sales force. Intevac sells to ilegdlefense contractors such as Boeing, LockheeatirMa
Corporation, Northrop Grumman Corporation, RaythdaRS Technologies, BAE and Sagem.

Intevac is subject to long sales cycles in the &fios segment because many of Intevac’s produats, &
Intevac’s night vision systems, typically must @signed into Intevac’s customers’ products, whighadten
complex and state-of-the-art. These developmenesyare often multi-year, and Intevac’s sales argiggent on
Intevac’s customer successfully integrating Intévacoduct into its product, completing developmehits product
and then obtaining production orders for its prad8ales of these products are also often depemtentigoing
funding of defense programs by the U.S. governraaditits allies. Additionally, sales to internatibnastomers are
contingent on issuance of export licenses by ti& government.

Sales of Intevac Photonics commercial productsreade through a combination of direct sales, system
integrators, distributors and value added rese#iatscan also be subject to long sales cycles.

Intevac Photonics generally invoices its researchdevelopment customers either as costs are ad;uor as
program milestones are achieved, depending upopattieular contract terms. As a government cotdra¢ntevac
invoices customers using estimated annual rate®egp by the Defense Contracts Audit Agency (“DCAA”

Research and Development and Intellectual Property

Intevac’s long-term growth strategy requires camtithdevelopment of new products. Intevac worksetyos
with Intevac’s global customers to design prodticés meet their planned technical and productiguirements.
Product development and engineering organizatiom$oaated primarily in the United States and Spuge.

Intevac invested $35.1 million (31.8% of net revesiun fiscal 2008, $40.1 million (18.6% of neteaues) in
fiscal 2007, and $30.0 million (11.6% of net revesiuin fiscal 2006 for product development and eeeiing
programs to create new products and to improvdirgisechnologies and products. Intevac has speatarage of
16.6% of net sales on product development and erging over the last five years.

Intevac’s competitive position significantly depsnzh Intevac’s research, development, engineering,
manufacturing and marketing capabilities, and nst pn Intevac’s patent position. However, protettf Intevac’s
technological assets by obtaining and enforcinglliedtual property rights, including patents, iponant.
Therefore, Intevac’s practice is to file patentlaggions in the United States and other countisesnventions that
Intevac considers important. Intevac has a subatantmber of patents in the United States andratbentries, and
additional applications are pending for new invemsi. Although Intevac does not consider Intevaasiess
materially dependent upon any one patent, thegighintevac and the products made and sold under
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Intevac’s patents along with other intellectualpedy, including trademarks, know-how, trade secegid
copyrights, taken as a whole, are a significannelg of Intevac’s business.

Intevac enters into patent and technology licenagrgements with other companies when management
determines that it is in Intevacbest interest to do so. Intevac pays royaltieeuaxisting patent license agreem
for use, in several of Intevac’s products, of darfatented technologies. Intevac also receives) fime to time,
royalties from licenses granted to third partiegy&ities received from or paid to third parties daot been materi
to Intevac’s consolidated results of operations.

In the normal course of business, Intevac peridigicaceives and makes inquiries regarding posghlent
infringement. In dealing with such inquiries, it ynae necessary or useful for us to obtain or gia@nhses or other
rights. However, there can be no assurance thatlmenses or rights will be available to us on coencially
reasonable terms, or at all. If Intevac is not ableesolve or settle claims, obtain necessary$es
and/or successfully prosecute or defend Intevamsition, Intevac’s business, financial conditior aasults of
operations could be materially and adversely adfibct

Manufacturing

Intevac manufactures its Equipment products daitiities in California and Singapore. Intevac'guipment
manufacturing operations include electromecharmisaémbly, mechanical and vacuum assembly, fatorcafi
sputter sources, and system assembly, alignmerteatidg. Intevac makes extensive use of the kagaplier
infrastructure serving the semiconductor equipnbeisiness. Intevac purchases vacuum pumps, valves,
instrumentation and fittings, power supplies, @thwiring board assemblies, computers and conimalitry, and
custom mechanical parts made by forging, machiamdjwelding. Intevac also has a small fabricatiemter that
supports Intevac’s engineering departments and snedw@e of the machined parts used in Intevac’syatsd

Intevac Photonics products are manufactured avdete facilities in California and Wyoming. Intevac
Photonics manufactures advanced photo-cathodesessors, lasers, cameras, integrated camera sysigamsact
Raman spectrometry instruments and near-eye disgktgms using advanced manufacturing technigues an
equipment. Intevac’s operations include vacuunttedenechanical and optical system assembly. Integas the
supplier infrastructure serving the semiconduatamera and optics manufacturing industries. In faanturing
Intevac’s sensors, Intevac purchase wafers, conmpenerocessing supplies and chemicals. In manuiagt
Intevac’'s camera systems and near-eye displays/datpurchases printed circuit boards, electromécah
components and assemblies, mechanical componethenatosures, optical components and computers.

Employees

At December 31, 2008, Intevac had 394 employeebjding 6 contract employees of which 133 were in
research and development, 164 in operations, amd &ministration, customer support and market@bthe
394 employees, 247 were in the Equipment segm@8twere in the Intevac Photonics segment, and 44 ime
Corporate.

Compliance with Environmental Regulations

Intevac is subject to a variety of governmentalitations relating to the use, storage, dischargedling,
emission, generation, manufacture, treatment aspbdal of toxic or otherwise hazardous substamtesnicals,
materials or waste. Intevac treats the cost of ¢pimpwith government regulations and operatingite svorkplace
as a normal cost of business and allocates theottisése activities to all functions, except where cost can be
isolated and charged to a specific function. Therenmental standards and regulations promulgayegiovernmen
agencies in California, Wyoming and Singapore &yerous and set a high standard of compliancevaubelieves
its costs of compliance with these regulations staddards are comparable to other companies apgsithilar
facilities in these jurisdictions.
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Executive Officers of the Registrani

Certain information about our executive officersoadlarch 4, 2009 is listed below:

Name Age Position

Executive Officers

Norman H. Pont 70 Chairman of the Boar

Kevin Fairbairn 55 President and Chief Executive Offic

Jeffrey Andreson 47 Vice President, Finance and Administration, Chief
Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secret

Michael Russak 62 Executive Vice President of Business Development,
Equipment Produci

Michael Barne: 5C Vice President and Chief Technical Offic

Kimberly Burk 43 Vice President, Human Resour«

Joseph Pietre 54 Vice President and General Manager, Intevac Phod:

Other Key Officers

Verle Aebi 54 Chief Technology Officer, Intevac Photon

James Bir 44 Vice President, Customer Support, Equipment Prax

Terry Bluck 49 Vice President, Technology, Equipment Prodi

Jerry Carollo 56 Vice President and General Manager, Intevac Vision
Systems

Keith Carron 50 Vice President and General Manager, Delti

Timothy Justyr 46 Vice President of Operations, Intevac Photol

Dave Kelly 46 Vice President, Engineering, Intevac Photol

Ralph Kerns 62 Vice President, Business Development, Equipment
Products

Mr. Pondis a founder of Intevac and has served as Chaiohtre Board since February 1991. Mr. Pond
served as President and Chief Executive Officenffebruary 1991 until July 2000 and again from Smybier 2001
through January 2002. Mr. Pond holds a BS in plsyisam the University of Missouri at Rolla and arsih
physics from the University of California at Los deles.

Mr. Fairbairn joined Intevac as President and Chief Executivéc@&ffin January 2002 and was appointed a
director in February 2002. Before joining Intevidr, Fairbairn was employed by Applied Materialsrfrduly 1985
to January 2002, most recently as Vice PresidethGaneral Manager of the Conductor Etch Organiratiih
responsibility for the Silicon and Metal Etch Diies. From 1996 to 1999, Mr. Fairbairn was Genbfahager of
Applied Materials’ Plasma Enhanced Chemical Vapep@sition Business Unit and from 1993 to 1996, he w
General Manager of Applied Materials’ Plasma Sil@wb Product Business Unit. Mr. Fairbairn holdshda in
engineering sciences from Cambridge University.

Mr. Andresorjoined Intevac in June 2007 and has served asRfiesident, Finance and Administration, Chief
Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary sincgusti 2007. Before joining Intevac Mr. Andreson seras
managing director and controller of Applied Matésjanc.’s Global Services product group. Sincaijog Applied
Materials in 1995, Mr. Andreson held a number afieefinancial positions, including managing dir@gtGlobal
Financial Planning and Analysis; Controller, Metsubsidiary; controller, North American Sales aetvi®e; and
Controller, Volume Manufacturing. From 1989 throug¥®5, Mr. Andreson held various roles at Measurex
Corporation. Mr. Andreson holds an MBA from Santar@ University and a BS in Finance from San Jda&eS
University.

Dr. RussaHoined Intevac in July 2008 as Executive Vice Rtfest of Business Development, Equipment
Products. Before joining Intevac Dr. Russak seag&resident and Chief Technical Officer of Kormagnf 2000 to
2007. From 1993 to 2000, Dr. Russak served as Riiesident of Research and Development at HMT Tdobgo
Previously, Dr. Russak held management positiotisarResearch Division of IBM Corporation. PrioiBM,
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Dr. Russak worked for Grumman Aerospace Corporaa contributing scientist. Dr. Russak holds arBS
Ceramic Engineering and a PhD in Materials Scidrara Rutgers University.

Dr. Barnesjoined Intevac as Vice President and Chief Techrdficer in February 2006. Before joining
Intevac, Dr. Barnes was General Manager of the Bighsity Plasma Chemical Vapor Deposition Busirsis at
Novellus Systems from March 2004 to February 2606m January 2004 to March 2004, he was Vice Peasi
Technology at Nanosys, and from August 2003 to dan2004, he was Vice President, Engineering at @few
Technologies. Dr. Barnes was employed by Appliededals from April 1998 to August 2003, first adlanaging
Director and subsequently as Vice President, Etajirtieering and Technology. Dr. Barnes holds a BS,avid Phl
in electrical engineering from the University of déligan.

Ms. Burkwas promoted to Vice President of Human Resourc2908. Previously she served as Human
Resource Director since May 2000. Prior to joiningevac, Ms. Burk served as Human Resources Maraiger
Moen, Inc. from 1999 to 2000 and as Human Resoweasmger of Lawson Mardon from 1994 to 1999. MstkBu
holds a BS in sociology from Northern lllinois Ueisity.

Dr. Pietrasjoined Intevac as Vice President and General Manaigihe Intevac Photonics Business in August
2006. Before joining Intevac, Dr. Pietras was emptbby the Sarnoff Corporation from March 2005uty 2006 a:
General Manager of Sarnoff Imaging Systems. Fropte®eber 1998 to March 2005, he was employed by Rope
Scientific as Vice President, Operations. Dr. Rigtrolds a BS in Physics from the Stevens Instififeechnology
and a MA and PhD in Physics from Columbia Universit

Mr. Aebihas served as Chief Technology Officer of our lateRPhotonics business since August 2006.
Previously, Mr. Aebi served as President of thet@hios Division from July 2000 to July 2006 andGeneral
Manager of the Photonics Division since May 1995. Aebi was elected as a Vice President of the Gomjin
September 1995. From 1988 through 1994, Mr. Aelsi tha Engineering Manager of the night vision beisin
Intevac acquired from Varian Associates in 1991emgthe was responsible for new product developimethe
areas of advanced photocathodes and image intnssifilr. Aebi holds a BS in physics and an MS ecelcal
engineering from Stanford University.

Mr. Birt joined Intevac as Vice President, Customer Supmfdtie Equipment Products Division in September
2004. Before joining Intevac, Mr. Birt was employeyl Applied Materials from July 1992 to Septemb@d£2, most
recently as Director, Field Operations/Quality Nofmerica. Mr. Birt holds a BS in electrical engéniag from
Texas A&M University.

Mr. Bluckrejoined Intevac as Vice President, TechnologyhefEEquipment Products Division in August 2004.
Mr. Bluck had previously worked at Intevac from Bather 1996 to November 2002 in various engineering
positions. The business unit Mr. Bluck worked fasasold to Photon Dynamics in November 2002, anddse
employed there as Vice President, Rapid Thermaé@Product Engineering until August 2004. Mr.cRIbolds ¢
BS in physics from San Jose State University.

Mr. Carollo joined Intevac in November 2007 as Vice Presidedt@eneral Manager of Intevac’s Creative
Display Systems subsidiary. Prior to joining Intevisir. Carollo was founder, president and CEO addiive
Display Systems. Prior to founding Creative Dispstems Mr. Carollo worked for Rockwell-Collins {@mics
ElectroOptics from 1993 to 2006 where his most recenttipmsivas General Manager. Mr. Corollo holds nume
patents in the area of optics, display systemsoatidal communications, a MS in Optics from the \émsity of
Rochester and a BS in Physics from the State Usityesf New York.

Dr. Carronjoined Intevac in January 2007 as Managing Direatat General Manager of Intevac’s DeltaNu,
Inc. subsidiary. In 2008, Dr. Carron was promotedice President. Prior to joining Intevac, Dr. €ar was the
CEO of DeltaNu, LLC from March 2002 until Janua§0Z. Dr. Carron was also a professor of Chemigtthiea
University of Wyoming from 1988 to 2006. Dr. Carrbalds a BA in Chemistry from Washington Universityd a
PhD in Chemistry from Northwestern University.

Mr. Justynhas served as Vice President of Operations, IntBtatonics from October 2008. Mr. Justyn served
as Vice President, Equipment Manufacturing fromiK®97 to October 2008. Mr. Justyn joined Inteuac

11




Table of Contents

February 1991 and has served in various rolesrifequipment Products Division and our former nigiston
business. Mr. Justyn holds a BS in chemical engingérom the University of California, Santa Baraa

Mr. Kelly joined Intevac in December 2006 as Vice Presidemgineering of the Intevac Photonics business.
Before joining Intevac, Mr. Kelly was employed bgdtake MASD LLC, a division of Roper Industriesrfro
January 2004 to December 2006, most recently as Riiesident, Engineering and Custom Service. Frouehbe!
2000 to December 2003, he was employed by Fastnbémyly AG as Vice President, Engineering. Mr. Kéilblds :
BS and a MS in mechanical engineering from the elrsitty of Michigan.

Dr. Kernsjoined Intevac as Vice President, Business Deveéopraf the Equipment Products Division in
August 2003. Before joining Intevac, Dr. Kerns veasployed by Applied Materials from April 1997 to Wember
2002, most recently as Managing Director for BusinBevelopment for the Process Modules Group. &uslyi,
Dr. Kerns was General Manager of Applied Materiddgtal Etch Division from 2000 to 2002. From 19868000,
Dr. Kerns was Senior Director for Applied Materid¥orth America Multinational Accounts, and fromdBto
1998, he was General Manager of Applied Materiaislectric Etch Division. Dr. Kerns holds a BS inemistry
from the University of Idaho and a PhD in theora@tichemistry from Princeton University.

Available Information

Intevac’s website ibttp://www.intevac.conintevac makes available free of charge, on or thindgts website,
its annual, quarterly and current reports, andamgndments to those reports, as soon as reas@rabticable afte
electronically filing such reports with, or furnisly them to, the SEC. This website address is dedrio be an
inactive textual reference only and none of therimfation contained on Intevac’s website is pathf report or is
incorporated by reference herein.

Trade Marks

“200 Lean®”, “AccuLuber™ " “ExaminerR™”, “Lean Etch™", “LIVAR ®” “MicroVista ®” , “NightVista
®” “MOSIR ®” and “Night Port™ ", among others, are our trademarks.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

The following factors could materially affect Int/s business, financial condition or results oérggpions and
should be carefully considered in evaluating thenBany and its business, in addition to other inftion presente
elsewhere in this report.

The industries we serve are cyclical, volatile amapredictable.

The majority of our revenue is derived from theesafl equipment used to manufacture commodity prisduc
such as disk drives. This subjects us to busingdeg; the timing, length and volatility of whichrc be difficult to
predict. When demand for commaodity products exceedduction capacity, then demand for new captaigment
such as ours tends to be amplified. Converselynvelu@ply of commodity products exceeds demand, deemand
for new capital equipment such as ours tends telpeessed. For example, sales of systems for maglst
production were severely depressed from mid-1998 mid-2003 and grew rapidly from 2004 through B0The
number of new systems delivered in the seconddi@007 was significantly lower than the numbesp$tems
delivered in the first half of the year, and fis2@D8 new system shipments were significantly lothan 2007. We
cannot predict with any certainty when these cyul#ishbegin or end, although we believe we entdred a
downturn in the cycle in late 2007 which we exgeatontinue through 2009

Our equipment represents only a portion of thetahpkpenditure that our customers incur when thgyrade
or add production capacity. Accordingly, our custosngenerally commit to make large capital expeme, far in
excess of the cost of our systems alone, whendéeigle to purchase our systems. The magnitude=eétbapital
expenditures requires our customers to have atedsgye amounts of capital. The magnetic disk semdiconductc
manufacturing industries have made significant @alts to their production capacity in the last fgsars. Our
customers are unlikely to be willing or able to ttoue this level of capital investment during teeent
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downturn in the overall economy, or during a downtin the hard disk drive industry, or the semiaactdr
industry.

We must effectively manage our resources and ptamucapacity to meet rapidly changing demand. Our
business experiences rapid growth and contraatibitch stresses our infrastructure, internal systentsmanageri
resources. During periods of increasing demanadoiproducts, we must have sufficient manufactudapgacity
and inventory to meet customer demand; attracirr@nd motivate a sufficient number of qualifiadividuals; anc
effectively manage our supply chain. During periofidecreasing demand for our products, we mustblbeto aligi
our cost structure with prevailing market condispmotivate and retain key employees and effegtiednage our
supply chain. For example, in the fourth quarte2@®8, we engaged in significant cost reductionsuess, as a
result of which we expect to reduce expenses byoappately $10 million on an annual basis.

Sales of our equipment are primarily dependent amr @ustomers’ upgrade and capacity expansion plarsi
whether our customers select our equipment.

We have no control over our customers’ upgradecapacity expansion plans, and we cannot be suyenttie
select, or continue to select, our equipment whew tipgrade or expand their capacity. The salele égcour
equipment systems can be a year or longer, inplvidividuals from many different areas of Intexaaa numerou
product presentations and demonstrations for aasp@ctive customers. Our sales process also coryrimafiides
production of samples, customization of our prodirat installation of evaluation systems in thedges of our
prospective customers. We do not enter into longr-ontracts with our customers, and until an orslactually
submitted by a customer there is no binding commitinto purchase our systems. Intevac Photobigsiness is als
subject to long sales cycles because many ofasymts, such as our military imaging products, ofteust be
designed into the customers’ end products, whieloéten complex state-of-the-art products. Theseldpment
cycles are often multi-year, and our sales areicgant on our customers successfully integratingppaduct into
their product, completing development of their preidand then obtaining production orders for tipeaduct from
the U.S. government or its allies.

Sales of new manufacturing systems are also dependeobsolescence and replacement of the insth#led ¢
our customers’ existing equipment with newer, mmapable equipment. If upgrades are developed xtane the
useful life of the installed base of legacy systetinen we tend to sell more upgrade products fetegacy systems
and fewer new systems, which can significantly cediotal revenue. For example, during 2007 and 2008 of
our 200 Lean customers decided to use legacy sgdtamthe production of first generations of pewtienlar media
which delayed the replacement of such legacy systeith new 200 Lean systems.

Our 200 Lean customers also experience compefition companies that produce alternative storage
technologies like flash memory, which offer sma#ieze, lower power consumption and more ruggedydssif
alternative technologies, such as flash memoryaceghard disk drives as a significant method gitdi storage,
then demand for our hard disk manufacturing progluciuld decrease.

We are exposed to risks associated with a highlyaamtrated customer base.

Historically, a significant portion of our revenimeany particular period has been attributablealesof our
disk sputtering systems to a limited number of @ungrs. In 2008, two of our customers accounte®$86 of total
revenues, and four customers in aggregate accotont&3% of total revenues. The same four custojiers
aggregate, accounted for 56% of our net accountsvable at December 31, 2008. This concentrati@ustomers
can lead to extreme variability in revenue andrftial results from period to period. For examplegrahe last eigr
quarters, our revenues per quarter have fluctuadtsleen $16.4 million and $76.4 million.

Industry consolidation can limit the number of pdial customers for our products. For example, Seag
acquired Maxtor in 2006 and Western Digital acqiii®mag in 2007. The concentration of our custobzese may
enable our customers to demand pricing and othestanfavorable to Intevac, and makes us more vaiihe to
changes in demand by a given customer. Orders drogfatively limited number of manufacturers havecainted
for, and will likely continue to account for, a stlntial portion of our revenues. The loss of ohihese large
customers, or delays in purchasing by them, coalefa material and adverse effect on our revenues.
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Our growth depends on development of technicallyadced new products and process

We have invested heavily, and continue to investhé development of new products, especially @w hean
Etch system. Our success in developing and seli@vgproducts depends upon a variety of factorsydieg our
ability to: predict future customer requirementsika technological advances, achieve a low totdlaoswvnership
for our products, introduce new products on scheedubnufacture products cost-effectively includiragnsitioning
production to volume manufacturing; commercialind attain customer acceptance of our productsaahtkve
acceptable and reliable performance of our newyarisdn the field. Our new product decisions angettgoment
commitments must anticipate continuously evolvinguistry requirements significantly in advance désaln
addition, we are attempting to expand into newetated markets, including the semiconductor maidedur Lean
Etch system. Failure to correctly assess the diteeanarkets, to successfully develop cost effectiroducts to
address the markets, or to establish effectivessaild support of the new products would have anmahtzlverse
effect on future revenues and profits.

Rapid technological change in our served markegsires us to rapidly develop new technically adeahc
products. Our future success depends in part oahility to develop and offer new products with ioped
capabilities and to continue to enhance our exjgtiroducts. If new products have reliability or lifygproblems,
our performance may be impacted by reduced ortlgser manufacturing costs, delays in acceptandepagment
for new products and additional service and wayrarpenses.

Our operating results fluctuate significantly fromquarter to quarter, which can lead to volatility ithe price of
our common stock.

Over the last eight quarters, our quarterly reverhave fluctuated between $16.4 million and $7614om and
our operating income (loss) as a percentage ohreshas fluctuated between approximately (120&19d)18.5%
of revenues. Over the same period, the price oEommon stock has fluctuated between $3.93 andb¥3ier
share.

We anticipate that our revenues, operating mamgiascommon stock price will continue to fluctuate d
variety of reasons, including: (1) changes in thménd, due to seasonality, cyclicality and othetois in the
markets for computer systems, storage subsystetheasumer electronics containing disks our custempmduce
with our systems; (2) delays or problems in theoihtiction and acceptance of our new products, loretg of
existing products; (3) timing of orders, acceptantrew systems by our customers or cancellaticdhage orders;
(4) new products, services or technological inniowvest by our competitors or us; (5) changes in oanufacturing
costs and operating expense; (6) changes in gezmabmic, political, stock market and industry ditions; and
(7) any failure of our operating results to meet élxpectations of investment research analystsvestors.

Any of these, or other factors, could lead to \ititptand/or a rapid change in the trading priceoaf common
shares. In the past, securities class actiontitigdhas been instituted against companies follgvpeariods of
volatility in the market price of their securitiesny such litigation, if instituted against Intevaould result in
substantial costs and diversion of management.

The liquidity of our auction rate securities is ingired, which could impact our ability to meet cash
requirements and require additional debt financing.

At December 31, 2008, we held $74.4 million of &urctrate securities. The market for these secaritad
historically been highly liquid, even though thetion rate securities that we hold have underlymagurities
ranging from 23 to 39 years. The liquidity was a&eleid through auctions, which occurred every 7 od@&
depending on the security, in which the interesd pa each security was reset to current markesrae never
intended to hold these securities to maturity,rathier to use the auction feature to sell the ##zsias needed to
provide liquidity. Since February 2008, all of themuction rate securities have failed auction. dinetion rate
securities will continue to be illiquid until a stessful auction process is reinstated, they ateustsred into a more
liquid security, or a buyer is found outside of thection process. We do not know when, or if, thilsoccur. All of
the auction rate securities held by us are studantstructured issues, originated under the Uehatment of
Education’s Federal Family Education Loan Prograith wrincipal and interest 97% — 98% reinsured ligy t
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U.S. Department of Education. All of the auctiotersecurities continue to be rated AAA, but theraea assurance
that AAA ratings will continue in the future. Wevaareclassified all of these securities from shertn to long-term
investments and recorded a temporary impairmengehaf $8.1 million. If: (1) the issuers of the &on rate
securities are unable to successfully resume agtmr (2) the issuers do not redeem the auctiensecurities; or
(3) a liquid market for the auction rate securitiegs not develop; or (4) the U.S. Department afdation fails to
support its guaranty of the obligations; or (5)séer any other valuation metrics or processesgehahen Intevac
may be required to further adjust the carrying gafithe auction rate securities and/or recordtharethan-
temporary impairment charge. In addition, we mayirlegal or other costs in connection with attesriptexit our
investment, including incurring litigation costsak decide to pursue legal action. If we decidpursue litigation,
we could incur significant legal costs and thene lsa no guarantee our efforts would be successful.

In order to increase our liquidity we entered iatline of credit with Citigroup Global Markets Insecured by
$57 million of our auction rate securities. At Dedger 31, 2008, approximately $20 million of cradiavailable
pursuant to the loan facility. This loan facilityagnbe terminated at the discretion of Citi and am®wutstanding
are payable on demand. If we are unable to maiti@itine of credit, or if the interest rate of tihvee of credit is
prohibitive or the amount of the line of creditnsufficient, we could experience difficulties ireeting our cash
requirements until the market for the auction ssteurities becomes liquid again and we could hasegk
additional debt funding to finance our operations.

The volatility and disruption of the capital and edit markets and adverse changes in the global esog may
negatively impact our revenues and our ability tocess financing.

While we intend to finance operations with existaash, cash flow from operations and, if necessary,
borrowing under our existing credit facility, we yigequire additional financing to support our cangd growth.
However, due to the existing uncertainty in theitzhand credit markets, our access to capital n@ybe available
on terms acceptable to us or at all. Further, vieaske regional and national economic conditionsipeor worsen,
we could experience decreased revenues from ouatiges attributable to decreases in consumer spgtelvels
and could fail to satisfy the financial terms toigthwe are subject under our existing credit agesgm

We may be subject to additional impairment chargks to potential declines in the fair value of oassets.

As a result of our acquisitions, we have signifiogmodwill and intangible assets on our balanceshiWe test
goodwill and intangible assets for impairment queaodic basis as required, and whenever everdhages in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value n@tybe recoverable. The events or changes thad ceqlire us to
test our goodwill and intangible assets for impaintinclude: a reduction in our stock price, and assult market
capitalization, changes in our estimated futuréa dksvs, as well as changes in rates of growthunindustry or in
any of our reporting units. In the fourth quarté2608, we recorded an impairment charge of $10lkom for
goodwill due to a decline in the our market capttion and certain purchased technology intangalskets due to
lower revenue expectations in light of current apieg performance and future operating expectatidreswill
continue to evaluate the carrying value of our ri@mng goodwill and intangible assets and if we daiee in the
future that there is a potential further impairmienény of our reporting units, we may be requitedecord
additional charges to earnings which could matgredversely affect our financial results and coalsb materially
adversely affect our business. See Note 6. “Goddwd Purchased Intangible Assets” in the Notebéo
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionfrimation related to impairment of goodwill andaingible asset

We operate in an intensely competitive marketplaaed our competitors have greater resources thandee

In the market for our disk sputtering systems, weehexperienced competition from competitors sich a
Anelva Corporation, a subsidiary of Canon, which kald substantial numbers of systems worldwid¢hérmarket
for semiconductor equipment, we are attemptinghterea market dominated by competitors such asiégpl
Materials, LAM Research and Tokyo Electron, Ltdthe market for our military imaging products, weerience
competition from companies such as ITT Industiiies, and BAE. In the markets for our commercial
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imaging products, we compete with companies sudknaer, Basler, Dalsa, E2V, Hamamatsu, Texas Instnts
and Roper Industries for sensor and camera pradaratiswith companies such as Ahura, B&W Tek, Horiba
Jobin Yvon, InPhotonics, Ocean Optics, Renishaw,amiths Detection for Raman spectrometer prod@uis.
competitors have substantially greater financadhnical, marketing, manufacturing and other resesithan we do,
especially in the semiconductor equipment marketre/live have not previously offered a product. Wenoa
ensure that our competitors will not develop enkaments to, or future generations of, competitivadpcts that
offer superior price or performance features. Lilsmywe cannot ensure that new competitors willember our
markets and develop such enhanced products. Maremmpetition for our customers is intense, and ou
competitors have historically offered substanti@tipg concessions and incentives to attract ostaiaers or retain
their existing customers.

We may not be able to obtain export licenses frdra U.S. government permitting delivery of our pracs to
international customers.

Many of our products, and especially Intevac Phie&mproducts, require export licenses from
U.S. Government agencies under the Export Admatisin Act, the Trading with the Enemy Act of 191f7e Arms
Export Act of 1976 or the International TrafficArms Regulations. These regulations limit the pt&tmarket for
some of our products. We can give no assurancevinatill be successful in obtaining all the liceasecessary to
export our products. Heightened government scrugfrgxport licenses for defense related producssrbsulted in
lengthened review periods for our license applareti Exports to countries that are not consideyeithé
U.S. Government to be allies are likely to be podbd, and even sales to U.S. allies may be limiedlure to
obtain export licenses or delays in obtaining I8&@s) or revocation of previously issued licenseslavprevent us
from selling the affected products outside the ethiBtates and could negatively impact our restilbgperations.

The Intevac Photonics business is dependent on lg@&ernment contracts, which are subject to fixedcmng,
immediate termination and a number of procurementles and regulations.

We sell many of our imaging products and servigesctly to the U.S. government, as well as to prime
contractors for various U.S. government programs. @venues from government contracts totaled $dlln,
$14.1 million, and $10.2 million in 2008, 2007, &2@D6, respectively. Funding of multi-year governingrograms
is subject to congressional appropriations, antetfeeno guarantee that the U.S. government wikerfarther
appropriations, particularly given the U.S. goveemt’s recent focus on spending in other areass$althe
U.S. government and its prime contractors may bésaffected by changes in procurement policiesgéud
considerations and political developments in théddhStates or abroad. For example, if the U.Segawent is less
focused on defense spending or there is a decirasstilities, demand for our products could dasee The loss of
funding for a government program would result loss of future revenues attributable to that prograhe
influence of any of these factors, which are beyoudcontrol, could negatively impact our result®perations.

A significant portion of our U.S. government reveris derived from fixed-price development and piditun
contracts. Under fixegtice contracts, unexpected increases in the oaft\telop or manufacture a product, whe
due to inaccurate estimates in the bidding proeesmticipated increases in material costs, redpoediuction
volumes, inefficiencies or other factors, are bdipeis. We have experienced cost overruns in teetpat have
resulted in losses on certain contracts, and mpgréance additional cost overruns in the future.ahéerequired to
recognize the total estimated impact of cost overiin the period in which they are first identifi&lch cost
overruns could have a material adverse effect emasults of operations.

Generally, government contracts contain provisipesnitting termination, in whole or in part, withtqurior
notice at the government’s convenience upon thenpay of compensation only for work done and comreiita
made at the time of termination. We cannot enwaedne or more of the government contracts undéchwwve, or
our customers, operate will not be terminated utitkese circumstances. Also, we cannot ensure thabmour
customers, would be able to procure new governimamtracts to offset the revenues lost as a refaly
termination of existing contracts, nor can we eaghat we, or our customers, will continue to remaigood
standing as federal contractors.
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As a U.S. government contractor we must comply wjtecific government rules and regulations and are
subject to routine audits and investigations by.d&vernment agencies. If we fail to comply witkedk rules and
regulations, the results could include: (1) redutdiin the value of our contracts; (2) reductionamounts
previously billed and recognized as revenue; (3fre@t modifications or termination; (4) the assasst of
penalties and fines; and (5) suspension or debariran government contracting or subcontractingageriod of
time or permanently.

Changes to our effective tax rate affect our resutif operations.

As a global company, we are subject to taxatiothénUnited States and various other countries.ifgignt
judgment is required to determine and estimatedwade tax liabilities. Our future effective tax eatould be
affected by: (1) changes in tax laws; (2) the atmmn of earnings to countries with differing tates; (3) changes in
worldwide projected annual earnings in current futdre years: (4) accounting pronouncements; oclfanges in
the valuation of our deferred tax assets and ltedsl Although we believe our tax estimates assomable, there
can be no assurance that any final determinatitimait be different from the treatment reflectecbur historical
income tax provisions and accruals, which couldltés additional payments by Intevac.

We booked a significant tax benefit in 2008 basednanagement’s belief that we could both carry-Haskes
to years Intevac paid income taxes and carry-faivi@x credits to future years where we would geledisxable
income. If our expectations of future income am@imect, we could be required to establish a vadnadllowance
against some or all of the deferred tax assets ddnild result in Intevac recording income tax ewgaein a year wil
a net operating loss.

Our success depends on international sales andrttenagement of global operations.

In 2008, approximately 69% of our revenues camenfregions outside the United States. Most of our
international sales are to customers in Asia, witicludes products shipped to overseas operatibns o
U.S. companies. We currently have manufacturinditias in California, Wyoming and Singapore andeimational
customer support offices in Singapore, China, MsilayKorea and Japan. We expect that internatsadak will
continue to account for a significant portion of ¢tatal revenue in future years. Certain of ourpdigps are also
located outside the United States.

Managing our global operations presents challemggigding, but not limited to, those arising frofi) global
trade issues; (2) variations in protection of ilegtlual property and other legal rights in diffdreauntries;
(3) concerns of U.S. governmental agencies reggugissible national commercial and/or security@ssuosed by
growing manufacturing business in Asia; (4) fluciom of interest rates, raw material costs, labuat aperating
costs, and exchange rates, including the weakeglagve position of the U.S. dollar; (5) variatfoim the ability to
develop relationships with suppliers and other lbcsinesses; (6) changes in the laws and regotbthe United
States, including export restrictions, and othemtoes, as well as their interpretation and aggian; (7) the need
to provide technical and spares support in diffelecations; (8) political and economic instabijif@) cultural
differences; (10) varying government incentivepitomote development; (11) shipping costs and delays
(12) adverse conditions in credit markets; (13)atams in tariffs, quotas, tax codes and otherkeiabarriers; and
(14) barriers to movement of cash.

We must regularly assess the size, capability acakion of our global infrastructure and make appete
changes to address these issues.

Our success is dependent on recruiting and retaigia highly talented work force.

Our employees are vital to our success, and ouni@yagement, engineering and other employees fficaidi
to replace. We generally do not have employmentraots with our key employees. Further, we do natrtain key
person life insurance on any of our employees.&pansion of high technology companies worldwide ha
increased demand and competition for qualifiedgramel, and has made companies increasingly pregectiprior
employees. It may be difficult for us to locate doyees who are not subject to non-competition ageres and
other restrictions.
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The majority of our U.S. operations are locate@alifornia where the cost of living and of recrngi
employees is high. Additionally, our operating ffesdepend, in large part, upon our ability to iretnd attract
qualified management, engineering, marketing, maetufing, customer support, sales and administgtérsonne
Furthermore, we compete with industries, such asérd disk drive and semiconductor industriesskilted
employees. Failure to retain key personnel, ottract, assimilate or retain additional highly dfiedl employees to
meet our needs in the future, could have a matenidladverse effect our business, financial camdiind results of
operations.

We are dependent on certain suppliers for parts dige our products.

We are a manufacturing business. Purchased parssittioe the largest component of our product dOst.
ability to manufacture depends on the timely dejivaf parts, components and subassemblies fromlisuppVe
obtain some of the key components and asteemblies used in our products from a single supmi a limited grou
of suppliers. If any of our suppliers fail to dedivquality parts on a timely basis, we may expeegetelays in
manufacturing, which could result in delayed prddiaiveries, increased costs to expedite deligesiedevelop
alternative suppliers, or require redesign of aadpcts to accommodate alternative suppliers. Safoer supplier.
are thinly capitalized and may be vulnerable ttufaigiven recent economic conditions.

Our business depends on the integrity of our ingsltual property rights.

The success of our business depends upon theitptefjour intellectual property rights, and we oahensure
that: (1) any of our pending or future patent aggiibns will be allowed or that any of the allowagaplications will
be issued as patents or will issue with claim$efd¢cope we sought; (2) any of our patents willo®invalidated,
deemed unenforceable, circumvented or challen@dhé rights granted under our patents will previdmpetitive
advantages to us; (4) other parties will not dgvesimilar products, duplicate our products or desigound our
patents; or (5) our patent rights, intellectualgany laws or our agreements will adequately prtadec intellectual
property or competitive position.

From time to time, we have received claims thaeweeinfringing third parties’ intellectual properights or
seeking to invalidate our rights. We cannot ensluae third parties will not in the future claim thee have infringe
current or future patents, trademarks or other netary rights relating to our products. Any clajmsth or without
merit, could be time-consuming, result in costlightion, cause product shipment delays or requsreo enter into
royalty or licensing agreements. Such royalty cerising agreements, if required, may not be aveilaib terms
acceptable to us.

We could be involved in litigation.

From time to time we may be involved in litigatiofivarious types, including litigation alleging iiffgement ¢
intellectual property rights and other claims. Egample, in July 2006, Intevac filed a patent mjgment lawsuit
against Unaxis USA, Inc. and its affiliates UnaB@zers AG and Unaxis Balzers, Ltd. alleging infiément by
Unaxis of a patent relating to our 200 Lean systEnis lawsuit was dismissed in July 2008. Litigatie expensive,
subjects us to the risk of significant damagesrandires significant management time and attergtimhcould have
a material and adverse effect on our businessydinhcondition and results of operations.

Difficulties in integrating past or future acquisibns could adversely affect our business.

We have completed a number of acquisitions dururgoperating history. For example, in 2007, we aegl
certain assets of DeltaNu, LLC and certain asde@entive Display Systems, LLC and in 2008 we a@@glicertain
assets of OC Oerlikon Balzers Ltd. We have speditrasly continue to spend significant resources ifjemg and
pursuing future acquisition opportunities. Acquis involve numerous risks including: (1) diffitek in
integrating the operations, technologies and prtsdoicthe acquired companies; (2) the diversioausf
management’s attention from other business conganus(3) the potential loss of key employees efabquired
companies. Failure to achieve the anticipated hisnaffthe prior and any future acquisitions ostcessfully
integrate the operations of the companies we aequiuld have a material and adverse effect on asinbss,
financial condition and results of operations. Aaure acquisitions could also result in potengiailutive issuance
of equity securities, acquisition- or divestituedated write-offs or the assumption of debt andiogent liabilities.
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We use hazardous materials and are subject to riskaon-compliance with environmental and safe
regulations.

We are subject to a variety of governmental regniatrelating to the use, storage, discharge, ivamdl
emission, generation, manufacture, treatment asgbdal of toxic or otherwise hazardous substamtesnicals,
materials or waste. If we fail to comply with curter future regulations, such failure could resulsuspension of
our operations, alteration of our manufacturingcpss, or substantial civil penalties or criminakB against us or
our officers, directors or employees. Additionatlyese regulations could require us to acquire msipe
remediation or abatement equipment or to incur tsmigl expenses to comply with them.

Business interruptions could adversely affect oyserations.

Our operations are vulnerable to interruption log,fearthquake or other natural disaster, quamstin other
disruptions associated with infectious diseasetsomal catastrophe, terrorist activities, war, dfgions in our
computing and communications infrastructure dugawer loss, telecommunications failure, human ephysical
or electronic security breaches and computer virused other events beyond our control. We do ae¢ la detailed
disaster recovery plan. Despite our implementatiometwork security measures, our tools and sefaers
vulnerable to computer viruses, break-ins and aingisruptions from unauthorized tampering with computer
systems and tools located at customer sites. €allitistability could cause us to incur increasests in
transportation, make such transportation unreljaht&ease our insurance costs and cause intenahtarrency
markets to fluctuate. This same instability coudardnthe same effects on our suppliers and thdityata timely
deliver their products. In addition, we do not gasufficient business interruption insurance to pemsate us for all
losses that may occur, and any losses or damag@sed by us could have a material adverse effectur business
and results of operations. For example, we selirmgarthquake risks because we believe this iprident
financial decision based on the high cost of thetéd coverage available in the earthquake ins@amarket. An
earthquake could significantly disrupt our openagiomost of which are conducted in California.dticl also
significantly delay our research and engineeririgrebn new products, most of which is also condddh
California. We take steps to minimize the damage would be caused by business interruptions,Haretis no
certainty that our efforts will prove successful.

We are required to evaluate our internal control @vfinancial reporting under Section 404 of the Szanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, and any adverse results fromtsewaluation could result in a loss of investor dithence in
our financial reports and have an adverse effect our stock price.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002, our management must perform evaluatiorsiof
internal control over financial reporting. Begingim 2004, our Form 10-K has included a report anagement of
their assessment of the adequacy of such inteamatal. Additionally, our independent registeredleiaccounting
firm must publicly attest to the effectiveness af mternal control.

We have completed the evaluation of our internatmds over financial reporting as required by Rec#04 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Although our assessmesiinge and evaluation resulted in our conclusiat #s of
December 31, 2008, our internal controls over famreporting were effective, we cannot prediet dutcome of
our testing in future periods. Ongoing compliangtthis requirement is complex, costly and timeaming. If:
(1) Intevac fails to maintain effective internahtml over financial reporting; (2) our managemeogs not timely
assess the adequacy of such internal control;)aui8independent registered public accounting fimes not
deliver an unqualified opinion as to the effectiges of our controls, then we could be subjectitpréstatement of
previously reported financial results, (2) regutatsanctions and (3) a decline in the public’s pption of Intevac,
which could have a material and adverse effectwrbasiness, financial condition and results ofraiens

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

None.

Item 2. Properties

Intevac maintains its corporate headquarters inaSatara, California. The location, approximatesand type
of facility of the principal properties are listedlow. Intevac leases all of its properties andsduos own any real
estate.
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Location Square Footag Principal Use

Santa Clara, CA 169,58: Corporate Headquarters; Equipment and Intevac Riusto
Marketing, Manufacturing, Engineering and Customer
Support

Fremont, CA 9,50¢ Intevac Photonics Sensor Fabricat

Laramie, WY 12,00( Intevac Photonics Raman Spectrometer Manufacti

Carlsbad, C# 10,36( Intevac Photonics Micro Display Product Manufaatgi

Singapore 31,94 Equipment Manufacturing and Customer Sup

Korea 1,55¢ Equipment Customer Suppt

Malaysia 1,291 Equipment Customer Suppt

Japar 1,507 Equipment Customer Suppt

Shenzhen, Chin 2,56¢ Equipment Customer Suppt

Intevac considers these properties adequate toiteeeirrent and future requirements. Intevac raidyl
assesses the size, capability and location ofdtsagjinfrastructure and periodically makes adjiestts based on
these assessments.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

From time to time, Intevac is involved in claimsddagal proceedings that arise in the ordinary sewf
business. Intevac expects that the number andis@mie of these matters will increase as Intevaosiness
expands. Any claims or proceedings against us,veneberitorious or not, could be time consuminguhein costly
litigation, require significant amounts of manageirtéme, result in the diversion of significant ogtonal
resources, or require us to enter into royaltyigarising agreements which, if required, may noaveglable on
terms favorable to us or at all. Intevac is nospraly party to any lawsuit or proceeding thathitevac’s opinion, is
likely to seriously harm Intevac’s business.

Iltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Secu-Holders

None.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registran’'s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters arsslier Purchases of Equity
Securities
Price Range of Common Stock

Intevac common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Naltidiarket (NASDAQ Global Select) under the symbol
“IVAC.” As of February 26, 2009, there were 129 dheis of record. In fiscal years 2008 and 2007 kntedid not
declare or pay cash dividends to its stockholdatevac currently has no plans to declare or pap chividends.

The following table sets forth the high and lowsitm sale prices per share as reported on The Nasational
Market for the periods indicated.

High Low

Fiscal 2007

First Quartel $30.57 $22.0(

Second Quarte 26.71 18.9:2

Third Quartel 22.3i 13.2:¢

Fourth Quarte 18.12 14.01
Fiscal 2008

First Quarte! $14.2¢ $10.1¢

Second Quarte 17.4¢ 11.1¢

Third Quartel 13.3:2 9.5(C

Fourth Quarte 10.6¢4 3.9

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers

None.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return on Intevac’s Common Stock witht thf
the NASDAQ Stock Market Total Return Index, a broaarket index published by the Center for Research
Security Prices (“CRSP”gnd the NASDAQ Computer Manufacturers Stock TottulRy Index compiled by CRS
The comparison for each of the periods assume$iitdt was invested on December 31, 2003 in Intev@ommor
Stock, the stocks included in the NASDAQ Stock Markotal Return Index and the stocks included & th
NASDAQ Computer Manufacturers Stock Total Returdeix These indices, which reflect formulas for dend
reinvestment and weighting of individual stocks,nidt necessarily reflect returns that could beead by
individual investors.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN SINCE DECEMBE R 31, 2003
AMONG INTEVAC, NASDAQ STOCK MARKET TOTAL RETURN IND EX AND
NASDAQ COMPUTER MANUFACTURERS TOTAL RETURN INDEX
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—1—=  Intevac, Inc.
250 | =A— Nasdag Stock Market Total Return Index
=0 Nasdag Computer Manufacturers Total Return Index
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g Lo
“ N
50
o
0 T T T T T T
20003 2004 2(H)5 2004 2H)T 2008
12/31/03 | 12/31/04 | 12/30/05 | 12/29/06 | 12/31/07 | 12/31/08
Intevac, Inc $10C $ 54 $ 94 $184 $102 $36
Nasdaq Stock Market Total Return Inc 10C 10¢ 111 12z 132 64
Nasdagq Computer Manufacturers Total Return It | 10C 13C 13z 13€ 19¢ 84
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Da

The following selected financial information hasbalerived from Intevac’s historical audited cordated
financial statements and should be read in conjometith the consolidated financial statements,abeompanying
notes and Management’s Discussion and Analysisnafri€ial Condition and Results of Operations far th
corresponding fiscal years .

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(In thousands, except per share data)

Net revenue $110,30° $215,83: $259,87! $137,22¢ $69,61¢

Gross profit $ 43,33¢ $ 96,04 $100,95¢ $ 43,57¢ $15,85¢

Operating income (los: $(30,47) $ 27,43¢ $ 47,99¢ $ 14,717 $(5,249

Net income (loss $(15,34%) $ 27,34¢ $ 46,69¢ $ 16,157 $(4,34¢)
Earnings (loss) per shai

Basic $ (07) $ 128 $ 222 $ 07¢ $ (0.29

Diluted $ 07) $ 12 $ 21t $ 0.7¢ $ (0.2

At year end:
Total asset $189,16¢ $215,41: $206,00: $130,44: $79,62:
Long-term debt $ — $ 1,8% $ — 3 - $ —
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drResults of Operation

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is imded to facilitate an understanding of Integdmusines
and results of operations. This MD&A should be regmdonjunction with Intevac’s Consolidated Finaaici
Statements and the accompanying Notes to Consadidahancial Statements included elsewhere in this
The following discussion contains forward-lookirtgtements and should also be read in conjunctitim tive
cautionary statement set forth at the beginninthpisfForm 10-K. MD&A includes the following sectisn

* Overview: a summary of Intevi's business, measurements and opportun
» Results of Operation: a discussion of operating resu

« Liquidity and Capital Resource an analysis of cash flows, sources and usessbf cantractual obligations
and financial positior

« Critical Accounting Policies: a discussion of critical accounting policies ttetjuire the exercise of
judgments and estimate

Overview

Intevac provides manufacturing equipment and smhgtio the hard disk drive industry and offers adeal
etch technology systems to the semiconductor imglusttevac’s 200 Lean platform may be suitableg¢aain non-
magnetic thin film applications such as opticaltotgs, photovoltaic and wear-resistant coatingsaaigh to date
Intevac has not received revenues from such apiolica Intevac also provides sensitive eledptical devices use
in high-performance digital cameras for militarydasommercial applications. Intevac’s customers @oteéntial
customers include manufacturers of hard disk drisemiconductor chips and wafers, as well as mediceentific
and security companies, law enforcement and the gd&rnment and its contractors. Intevac repartssegments:
Equipment and Intevac Photonics. Effective in theosid quarter of 2008, Intevac renamed the Imaging
Instrumentation segment to Intevac Photonics. @uttie third quarter of 2008, Intevac completedabeguisition of
certain assets and liabilities of the magnetic medjuipment business of OC Oerlikon Balzers Lt@eflikon”).

Product development and manufacturing activitiesiom North America and Asia. Intevac’s equipmandl
service products are highly technical and, withékeeption of Japan, are sold primarily througlireat sales force.
During the third quarter of 2008, Intevac entergo an alliance with a Korean equipment manufactanel
distributor, TES Co., Ltd. (“TES"). Under the agneent TES has the rights to manufacture and sellat's Lean
Etch system for the Korean and Chinese marketsl|rdaadac has the rights to manufacture and sell TB&mical
vapor deposition equipment for customers througkioairest of the world. To date no sales have beghe
pursuant to this contract.

Intevac’s results are driven primarily by worldwidemand for hard disk drives, which in turn depemend-
user demand for personal computers, enterprisestiattage, personal audio and video players and\gdene
platforms. Intevac’s business is subject to cythiedustry conditions, as demand for manufactugngipment and
services can change depending on supply and defoahdrd disk drives, chips, and other electroraeides, as
well as other factors, such as global economic itimmd and technological advances in fabricatioocpsses.

% Change % Change

Fiscal Yeat 2008 2007 2006 2008 vs. 200° 2007 vs. 200t
(In thousands, except percentages and per share anrds)

Net revenue $110,30° $215,83¢ $259,87! (48.9% (16.9%
Gross profit 43,33¢ 96,04: 100,95¢ (54.9% (4.99%
Gross margin percel 39.2% 44.5% 38.8% (5.2% 5.7%
Net income (loss (15,34Y)  27,34'  46,69¢ (156.1)% (41.4%
Earnings (loss) per diluted she $ 07) $ 12t $ 21¢ (157.9)% (42.9%

During fiscal 2006 Intevac reported record reveragescreasing end-user demand for hard drivesan t
desktop PC market and in the non-desktop marketjding mobile, and consumer electronic productselr
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increased customer investments in hard disk dri@eufacturing equipment as did the technology ttaomsto
perpendicular magnetic recording.

Fiscal 2007 financial results reflected continueddjconditions in the hard disk drive industry. Bewes and
net income were lower than 2006 levels and declingde second half of 2007. During this perioceirsc expande
its photonics product portfolio with the acquisit®of DeltaNu, LLC, (“Delta Nu”) and Creative Digyl Systems,
LLC (“CDS").

Fiscal 2008 financial results reflected a difficetvironment as Intevac's customers reduced oyddlaapital
expenditures as a result of industry consolidatiwite erosion and reduced demand as a resulbbabéconomic
conditions. In this period, Intevac focused on lang costs, improving efficiencies, and bringingwgroducts to
market. In 2008, Intevac acquired certain assetdiahilities of OC Oerlikon Balzers Ltd. (“Oerlikd)’'s magnetic
media equipment business. In the fourth quartéisoél 2008, in response to the deteriorating entoaonditions,
Intevac announced and executed a global cost riedysian that reduced its cost structure and ish darn, while
still enabling Intevac to invest in products thall drive future growth. Also during the fourth guer of fiscal 2008,
Intevac’s market capitalization and financial ooitavere adversely impacted by the current macrosodan
business environment. This triggered Intevac’'sgrering interim impairment tests on its goodwill anthngible
assets; and as a result Intevac recorded non-cestwgl and intangible impairment charges of $1®lion.

Intevac expects the difficult environment to contrinto fiscal 2009. The global economic climatd an
constrained financing environment have caused adsstwdown in capital equipment purchases by aostomers,
with uncertainty as to the depth and duration efdbwnturn. While the uncertainty of end market dethcontinue
to dampen expectations for the hard drive markégvhac expects that in 2009 demand for some equipwié
occur due to the retirement of some legacy systémeddition, Intevac believes that research aneidpment
activities, including patterned media, will requivew equipment. Intevac does not expect any dfatd drive
customers to add new systems for capacity in 2@@@vac expects that in 2009, Intevac Photonicénless will
grow, driven by government spending plus incorgorabf Intevac products into development, pre-puiidun and
some early stage production programs.

Results of Operations

Net revenues

Years Ended December 31, % Change % Change
2008 2007 2006 2008 vs. 200 2007 vs. 200
(In thousands, except percentage:
Equipment $ 87,46¢ $196,68t $248,48: (55.5)% (20.6%
Intevac Photonic 22,83¢ 19,14¢ 11,39¢ 19.2% 68.1%
Total net revenue $110,30° $215,83: $259,87" (48.9% (16.9%

Net revenues consist primarily of sales of equipnosed to develop and manufacture thin-film disks], to a
lesser extent, related equipment and system compgjrfat panel equipment technology license feestract
research and development related to the developofisensors, cameras and systems; low-light imaginducts
and Raman spectrometers.

The decrease in Equipment revenues in 2008 wagprilmarily to a reduction in the number of 200 Lean
systems delivered. In 2008 Intevac delivered el@@hLean systems compared to twenty-nine 200 kgstems in
2007 and forty-six 200 Lean systems in 2006. Eqeipimevenue in 2008 also included eleven disk dabion
systems compared to four disk lubrication systam20i07 and thirteen disk lubrication in 2006. Raxesfrom disk
equipment technology upgrades and spare part deatesgnificantly in 2008 versus 2007 and 2006.imu2007,
Intevac sold a D-Stét flat panel technology license for $1.3 million.

Fiscal 2008 was a slow year for new system capaditijtions in the hard disk drive market due toupgrade
and reuse of approximately twenty legacy tools imsly in storage. This substantially met the imceatal capacit
requirements of one of our largest customers. Eqgeig revenues in 2009 are not expected to exceefti|20els,
given the uncertainty in the market.
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Intevac Photonics revenues increased by 19.3%2@$8illion in 2008, which consisted of $8.5 mitiiof
product revenue and $14.3 million of contract redeand development revenue. Intevac Photonics 28@hue of
$19.1 million consisted of $5.2 million of produetvenue and $13.9 million of contract researchdewklopment
revenue. Intevac Photonics 2006 revenue of $11llibmconsisted of $1.7 million of product revenaed
$9.7 million of contract research and developmeménue. The increase in product revenues resuttedHigher
sales of low-light detection sensors and camerad usmilitary night vision surveillance and commial
applications as well as table-top and portable Reimstruments and Near-Eye Display products. Theegse in
contract research and development revenue wagshé of a higher volume of contracts and incremler#venue
generated from contract close-outs. In 2009, Intdzotonics revenue is expected to grow, due piliyrtar
increased product sales. During 2009, Intevac dgpaer 50% of Intevac’s revenue to come from pobdales.
Substantial growth in future Intevac Photonics rewes is dependent on the proliferation of Intevéathinology
into major military programs, continued defensensleg, the ability to obtain export licenses fordign customers,
obtaining production subcontracts for these progtaand development and sale of commercial products.

Intevac’s backlog of orders at December 31, 2008 $20.2 million, as compared to $34.2 million at
December 31, 2007 and $125.0 million at DecembeRB@6. Equipment backlog at December 31, 2008 was
$11.4 million compared to $28.4 at December 31,7280d $119.4 million at December 31, 2006. Inte¥aotonics
backlog at December 31, 2008 was $8.8 million camgbto $5.8 million at December 31, 2007 and $5l6am at
December 31, 2006. Equipment backlog at Decembe2@®18 includes one 200 Lean system for a non-ntaggne
media application, as compared to two 200 Learesysiat December 31, 2007, and twenty-four 200 lsyatems
at December 31, 2006.

Significant portions of Intevac’s revenues in a@ytjgular period have been attributable to salesltmited
number of customers. In 2008 sales to Seagate @adhHGlobal Storage Technologies each accourtethbre
than 10% of Intevas'revenues and in the aggregate sales to thesarerstaccounted for 69% of revenues. In :
and 2006 sales to Seagate, Matsubo - Intevac’'sidapalistributor, Hitachi Global Storage Technaegand Fuji
Electric each accounted for more than 10% of Intesveevenues. In the aggregate sales to thesenasto
accounted for 90% and 93% of revenues in 2007 808,2espectively. The magnetic disk manufactuiinlystry
consists of a small number of large manufactutar@006 Seagate acquired Maxtor, and in 2007, Wefdaital
acquired Komag, both of which further concentrdtedvac’s customer base.

International sales totaled $76.5 million, $177 i0iom, and $233.4 million in 2008, 2007, and 2006,
respectively, accounting for 69%, 82%, and 90%atfrevenues. The decreases in international sa2308 and
2007 was primarily due to decreases in net revefraesdisk sputtering systems. Substantially allrdévac’'s
international sales are to customers in Asia, witicludes products shipped to overseas operatibns o
U.S. companies.

Gross margin

Years Ended December 31 % Change % Change
2008 2007 2006 2008 vs. 200" 2007 vs. 200\
(In thousands, except percentages)
Equipment gross prof $35,79° $87,88: $ 97,16 (59.9% (9.5)%
% of Equipment net revenu 40.9% 44.7% 39.1%
Intevac Photonics gross pra $ 7,54 $8,15¢ $ 3,79¢ (7.©% 114.8%
% of Intevac Photonics net revent 33.(% 42.€% 33.2%
Total gross profi $43,33¢  $96,04! $100,95¢ (54.9% (4.9%
% of net revenue 39.2% 44 5% 38.8%

Cost of net revenues consists primarily of purcbasaterials and costs attributable to contractareseand
development, and also includes fabrication, assgndst and installation labor and overhead, custespecific
engineering costs, warranty costs, royalties, ious for inventory reserves and scrap. Cost ofeetnues for
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2008, 2007 and 2006 included $781,000, $638,0005488,000 of equity-based compensation expense,
respectively.

Equipment gross margin was 40.9% in 2008 compardd 7% in 2007 and 39.1% in 2006. Lower volume,
product mix, unabsorbed factory utilization andtsdsom acquired businesses, which were offsetimn Ipy cost
reduction programs contributed to the lower groasgim for 2008. Higher gross margin in 2007 reslftem
changes in product mix, higher average sellinggsrignd cost reduction programs. Intevac expectgriss margin
for the Equipment business in 2009 to be essentiadl same as 2008 at similar revenue levels, amdrithan 2008
at reduced revenue levels. Gross margins in thépBEwnt business will vary depending on a numbexdafitional
factors, including product mix, product cost, systeonfiguration and pricing, factory utilizatiomdprovisions for
excess and obsolete inventory.

Intevac Photonics gross margin was 33.0% in 2008pewed 42.6% in 2007 and 33.3% in 2006. The deereas
in gross margin in 2008 resulted primarily fromrig&sed provisions for inventory and warranty amtdased costs
from acquired businesses. Higher gross margin @y 28sulted primarily from higher-margin developinen
contracts, favorable adjustments from contractezdass and increased product sales. Intevac exghectgoss
margin for the Intevac Photonics business in 2@0gprove over 2008, primarily as a result of thejgcted
increase in product sales, which typically caryhi@r gross margins.

Research and development

Years Ended December 31 % Change % Change
2008 2007 2006 2008 vs. 200° 2007 vs. 200t
(In thousands, except percentage:
Research and development expe $35,08: $40,137  $30,03¢ (12.60% 33.6%
% of net revenue 31.8% 18.¢% 11.€%

Research and development expense consists priro&plptotype materials, salaries and related aafsts
employees engaged in ongoing research, designeuadogyment activities for disk sputtering equipment
semiconductor equipment and Intevac Photonics mtsdResearch and development costs for 2008, 2002006
included $2.0 million, $2.1 million and $1.4 millimf equity-based compensation expense, respectivel

Research and development spending decreased fgoriept during 2008 as compared to 2007 and incdease
in 2007 as compared to 2006. The decrease in Equipspending during 2008 was due primarily to loggending
on the development of Intevac’s Lean EtchTM prodingt, and to a lesser extent, reductions in ingent
compensation expense. Increased Equipment speimdd@7 was due primarily to Lean Etch developneemd, to
lesser extent development of disk sputtering priduntevac Photonics increased research and dewelat
spending levels in 2008 for sensor yield improvetsesensor development and digital night visiongieg
development.

Intevac expects that research and development sewil decrease in 2009 primarily as a resulthe lower
level of spending on Intevac’'s Lean Etch produw.liEngineering headcount grew from 129 at theoé2906, to
141 at the end of 2007 and declined to 133 attldeoé 2008.

Research and development expenses do not inclstie @o$8.5 million, $7.4 million, and $6.1 millioim
2008, 2007, and 2006, respectively, which areedl&d customer-funded contract research and dewelop
programs and included in cost of net revenues.

Selling, general and administrative

Years Ended December 31 %Change % Change
2008 2007 2006 2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
(In thousands, except percentages)
Selling, general and administrative expe $28,22¢ $28,47( $22,92¢ 0.9% 24.2%
% of net revenue 25.6% 13.2% 8.8%
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Selling, general and administrative expense canpistarily of selling, marketing, customer suppértancial
and management costs and also includes produdticustomer samples, travel, liability insuranceialeand
professional services and bad debt expense. Aledtimsales and international sales of disk spngqiroducts in
Asia, with the exception of Japan, are typicallydedy Intevac's direct sales force, whereas saldapan of disk
sputtering products and other products are typicaide by Intevac’s Japanese distributor, Matsutho, provides
services such as sales, installation, warrantycastbmer support. Intevac also has subsidiari€rigapore and in
Hong Kong, along with field offices in Japan, Mad&@y, Korea and Shenzhen, China to support Inteveagifoment
customers in Asia. Selling, general and adminiseatosts for 2008, 2007 and 2006 included $3.8anil
$3.5 million and $1.5 million of equity-based compation expense, respectively.

Selling, general and administrative spending in82@@s flat to 2007 levels as a result of cost rédnc
activities, and lower provisions for employee prsfiaring and bonus plans, partially offset by éased costs
related to business development, customer seruidesapport in both the Equipment and Intevac Phogon
businesses and higher equity-based compensati@msapintevac’s selling, general and administrdiea@dcount
increased from 77 at the end of 2006, to 111 aettieof 2007 and then decreased to 97 at the eP@d0&. Intevac
expects that selling, general and administratiygeases will decrease in 2009 over the amount $p&®08 due
primarily to a projected decrease in costs reladezistomer service and support for the Equipmasiness offset
by the addition of key business development permsbinrthe Intevac Photonics business.

Global cost reduction plan

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, Intevamaunced a global cost reduction plan (“the Planheduce
the global workforce by fifteen percent. Implemeiata of the Plan was completed in the fourth quaitée total
cost of implementing the Plan was $386,000 andrepgrted under cost of products sold and operabpgnses.
Substantially all cash outlays in connection with Plan occurred in the fourth quarter of fisc2d&0
Implementation of the Plan is expected to redugepses by approximately $10 million on an annuaisha

Impairment of goodwill and intangibles

In September 2008, Intevac performed its annuasassent of impairment for goodwill which did nosu in
an impairment of goodwill. In the fourth quarterfisical 2008, Intevac experienced a significantidedn its stock
price and Intevac’'s market capitalization fell bvelthe recorded value of its consolidated net as3#&is required
Intevac to perform an interim test of its goodwifid intangible assets for impairment. As a redut® goodwill
impairment test, Intevac concluded that the cagyimount of the goodwill in the Equipment reporturgt
exceeded its implied fair value and recorded araimpent charge of $9.7 million. The goodwill assded with the
Intevac Photonics segment was not impaired. Asaltref the intangible assets impairment test Materecorded a
$808,000 impairment charge related to the writestltmfair value of the net carrying value of certpurchased
technology intangible assets in the Equipment abtelvbc Photonics segments due to lower revenuetatimms an
future operating expectations.

Intevac will continue to evaluate the carrying \veabf goodwill and intangible assets and if it isedimined that
there is a potential impairment, Intevac may re@uiditional charges to earnings which would advrera#ect its
financial results. For further details, see Not# Blotes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Interest income and other, net.

Years Ended December 31, % Change % Change
2008 2007 2006 2008 vs. 2007 2007 vs. 2006
(In thousands, except percentages)
Interest income and other, r $3,932 $8,14: $3,77¢ (51.)% 115.5%

Interest income and other, net in 2008 include® $#illion of interest income on investments, and $80 in
net other income, partially offset by $120,000riterest expense. Interest income and other, r#90i included a
$1.5 million gain on the redemption of Intevac’sf@rred interest in 601 California Avenue LLC, $blion of
interest income on investments and $129,000 itetr income. The decrease in interest income @8 2¢as
driven by lower interest rates on Intevac’s investis and lower average invested balances. Intexsne and
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other, net in 2006 consisted of $390,000 of divitleftom 601 California Avenue LLC, $3.5 million ioterest
income on investments and $113,000 in net otheeresgy Intevac expects interest income and othetomecrease
in 2009 due to a reduction in interest income dimarily to a reduction in interest rates and loweerage invested
balances.

Provision for (benefit from) income taxes

Years Ended December 31 % Change % Change
2008 2007 2006 2008 vs. 200° 2007 vs. 200t
(In thousands, except percentage:
Provision for (benefit from) income tax $(11,19¢4) $8,23: $5,07¢ (236.00% 62.1%

Intevac’s effective income tax provision rate w2s244 for fiscal 2008, 23.1% for fiscal 2007, an8%.for
fiscal 2006. Intevac’s tax rate differs from thepbgable statutory rates due primarily to the métion of deferred
and current credits and the effect of permanefférmihces and adjustments of prior permanent diife¥e. Intevac’s
future effective income tax rate depends on varfag®rs including, the level of Intevac’s projettearnings, the
geographic composition of worldwide earnings, gulations governing each region, net operating ¢asry-
forwards, availability of tax credits and the effeeness of Intevac’s tax planning strategies. Mgmaent carefully
monitors these factors and timely adjusts the &ffeéncome tax rate accordingly. Management belethat the
valuation allowances for Intevac’s deferred tavetsare adequate based on several factors inctudindegree to
which Intevac’s 2008 loss was attributable to ualiems or charges; (2) long duration of Intevaigéerred tax
assets; and (3) expectation of improved earningiserong term.

Business Combinations

On July 14, 2008, Intevac acquired certain assatdiabilities of OC Oerlikon Balzers Ltd. (“Oertk”)'s
magnetic media equipment business for a purchase @i $15.1 million in cash, net of cash acquitedaddition
Intevac agreed to pay contingent considerationadikdn in the form of a royalty on Intevac’s netvenue from
commercial sales of certain products. This agreémeeminates on July 13, 2011. Intevac has madgayments to
Oerlikon under this agreement through DecembeRBQ8. As part of the acquisition, Intevac also mdento a
settlement agreement with Oerlikon related to amanfringement lawsuit filed by Intevac againstadis USA,
Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Oerlikon, anticims in the litigation were dismissed.

On November 9, 2007, Intevac acquired the assetsentain liabilities of Creative Display SysterhEC
(“CDS") for a purchase price of $6.0 million in taset of cash acquired. The acquired businessuppglier of
high-performance micro-display products for neag-apd portable applications in defense and comuadararkets.

On January 31, 2007, Intevac acquired the assdtsatain liabilities of DeltaNu, LLC (“DeltaNu”of a
purchase price of $5.8 million of which $2 milli@ras paid in cash at the close of the acquisiti@m$lion was
paid on January 31, 2008 and $2 million was paidamuary 31, 2009, which is in the form of a ndernestbearinc
note. Interest is imputed, and the related notalpiayis recorded at a discount in the accompangmsolidated
Balance Sheets. The acquired business is a suppbenall footprint and handheld Raman spectrometry
instruments.

For further details, see Note 7 of Notes to Coudsddid Financial Statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2008, the Financial Accounting Standard BIoGGFASB”) issued Statement on Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 162, “The Hierarchy of GeatlgrAccepted Accounting Principles” (“SFAS 162{yhich
identifies the sources of accounting principles tiredframework for selecting the principles to lsediin the
preparation of financial statements of non-govemmi@esntities that are presented in conformity vgigmerally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) in the WnitStates. SFAS 162 is effective sixty days follgihe SECS
approval of The Public Company Accounting Oversigbard’s related amendments to remove the GAAP hiere
from auditing standards. Intevac currently adhésebe hierarchy of GAAP as presented in SFAS 162,
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and implementation is not expected to have a natenpact on Intevac’s financial position and résaif
operations.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positi6RSP”) 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of
Intangible Assets” (“FSP 142-3"). The FSP amendsf#ctors that an entity should consider in deteimgi the
useful life of a recognized intangible asset urffeAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets’jriclude the
entity’s historical experience in renewing or extigrg similar arrangements, whether or not the gearents have
explicit renewal or extension provisions. Previgush entity was precluded from using its own assionp about
renewal or extension of an arrangement where tlasdikely to be substantial cost or modificatioBatities
without their own historical experience should ddasthe assumptions market participants wouldals®it renew:
or extension. The amendment may result in the Us&fof an entity’s intangible asset differingofn the period of
expected cash flows that was used to measureitheafae of the underlying asset using the marketigipant’s
perceived value. The FSP is effective for finanstatements issued for fiscal years beginning &fesrember 15,
2008, and for interim periods within those fiscahys. Early adoption is prohibited. The requireradoit
determining the useful life of intangible assetplgjpo intangible assets acquired after Janua009. The
disclosure requirements will be applied prospetfite all intangible assets recognized as of, afzsequent to, the
effective date. Intevac does not expect that thdémentation of FSP 142-3 will have a material istmn Intevacs
financial position and results of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “[usares about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities — An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 18BFAS 161”). SFAS 161 enhances required disalesu
regarding derivatives and hedging activities. SA&% is effective for fiscal years and interim pesdoeginning
after November 15, 2008. Intevac does not expedttttie implementation of SFAS 161 will have a matémpact
on Intevac’s financial position and results of aiEems.

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No. 141()siness Combinations” (“SFAS 141R"). SFAS 141R
retains the fundamental acquisition method of anting established in Statement 141; however, anobiner
things, SFAS 141R requires recognition of assedisliabilities of non-controlling interests acquirddir value
measurement of consideration and contingent coreida, expense recognition for transaction costsaertain
integration costs, recognition of the fair valuecoftingencies, and adjustments to income tax esgoar changes
in an acquirer’s existing valuation allowances wcertain tax positions that result from the busine@mbination.
SFAS 141R is effective for annual reporting peribdginning after December 15, 2008. Intevac exp@E#sS 141}
will have an impact on Intevac’s financial positiand results of operations, but the nature and matmof the
specific effects will depend upon the nature, teamd size of the acquisitions Intevac consummdtes the
effective date of January 1, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160ntdatrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements, an Amendment of Accounting ResearcletBuNo 51" (“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 establishes
accounting and reporting standards for ownershgrésts in subsidiaries held by parties other tharparent,
changes in a parent’s ownership of a noncontrolligrest, calculation and disclosure of the cadstéd net
income attributable to the parent and the noncdintganterest, changes in a parent’s ownershipriggt while the
parent retains its controlling financial interestidair value measurement of any retained noncbintgcequity
investment. SFAS 160 is effective for financiatstaents issued for fiscal years beginning afterdbdzer 15, 200¢
and interim periods within those fiscal years. ariplementation is prohibited. Intevac must imp&rhthese new
requirements in its first quarter of fiscal 2008telvac does not expect that the implementatiorFé{$160 will
have a material impact on Intevac’s financial posiand results of operations.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP 157-1, “Agapion of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement
No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements ThatrdgidFair Value Measurements for Purposes of L
Classification or Measurement under Statement ‘3R 157-1") and FSP 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB
Statement No. 157" (“FSP 157-2"). FSP 15@riends SFAS No. 157 to remove certain leasingdcdiasns from its
scope. FSP 157-2 delays the effective date of SRASL57 for all non-financial assets and non-finahicabilities,
except for items that are recognized or disclosédiavalue in the financial statements on a reogrbasis (at least
annually), until fiscal years beginning after Noumm 15, 2008. Intevac does not expect that the
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implementation of FSP 157-1 and FSP 157-2 will heawveaterial impact on Intevac’s financial positammd results
of operations.

In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP 157-3, “Detang the Fair Value of a Financial Asset in a Matrk
That Is Not Active” (“FSP 157-3"which clarifies the application of SFAS 157 whea tharket for a financial as:
is inactive. Specifically, FSP 157-3 clarifies h¢ly management’s internal assumptions should beidered in
measuring fair value when observable data are resept, (2) observable market information fromreaciive
market should be taken into account, and (3) tleeofi®roker quotes or pricing services should besitiered in
assessing the relevance of observable and unob$edata to measure fair value. The guidance in BSP3 is
effective immediately. Intevac considered the gnadaprovided by FSP 157-3 in its determinationstineated fair
values as of December 31, 2008, and the impachotaterial.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2008, Intevac had $105.5 millionash, cash equivalents, and investments compared t
$140.7 million at December 31, 2007. During fis2@08, cash, cash equivalents and investments cectdy
$35.1 million due primarily to cash used by opemgtactivities, the purchase of certain assets ofikda, purchases
of fixed assets and a scheduled payment to themsvaid®eltaNu, LLC, partially offset by cash recsivfrom the
sale of Intevac common stock to employees thromgbl@yee benefit plans.

Cash, cash equivalents and investments consikedbtlowing:

December 31 December 31
2008 2007
(In thousands)
Cash and cash equivalel $ 39,200 $ 27,67
Shor-term investment — 110,98!
Long-term investment 66,32¢ 2,00¢
Total cash, cas-equivalents and investmer $ 10552¢ $ 140,66

Cash used by operating activities totaled $8.2ionilin 2008 compared to $40.6 million generateapgrating
activities in 2007 and $55.2 million generated bgm@ting activities in 2006. Lower operating casiwfwas a resu
of a net loss adjusted to exclude the effect ofcash charges including impairment of goodwill &mdngibles,
depreciation, amortization and equity-based comgiéns This decrease in operating cash providedpgyating
activities was also affected by changes in worldapital. Intevac continues to carefully manage wuaylcapital.
The number of days outstanding for Intevac’s actoueceivable were 45 at December 31, 2008, cordparé6 at
December 31, 2007 and 58 at December 31, 200&dciteinventory turns were slightly less in 2008 ver2087 a:
Intevac reacted responsively to the declining mackaditions. It is anticipated that market corahi may continue
to weaken in the next few quarters, but Intevagdtes that its efforts to reduce costs througlgliobal cost
reduction plan and headcount restructuring actiwiylemented in the fourth quarter will reducedsh loss from
operations to a level sustainable until market @@ and Intevac’s business improves.

Accounts receivable totaled $15.0 million at Decenttil, 2008 compared to $14.1 million at DecemHer 3
2007. The increase in the receivable balance wagdmarily to having a 200 Lean system recognagdevenue
the fourth quarter. Net inventories decreased bg #4llion during 2008 due primarily to decreased®oth raw
materials and work-in-progress. Accounts payatiged $4.2 million at December 31, 2008 compared to
$7.7 million at December 31, 2007. The decreask8dd million relates to the decrease in inventanchases and a
slowdown in Intevac’s business. Accrued payroll egldted liabilities decreased by $5.2 million eigr2008 due to
a decrease in accruals for bonuses and employé&egraring. Other accrued liabilities decreasenirfi$4.2 million
at December 31, 2007 to $3.2 million at Decembe2B08, primarily due to reductions in accrualslfaevac’s
warranty obligations. Customer advances decreasetd$5.6 million at December 31, 2007 to $2.8 roillat
December 31, 2008 due to the decrease in backibg@mber 31, 2008.

Investing activities in 2008 generated cash of @h8illion as compared to cash used of $59.4 mililoB007
and cash used of $37.3 million in 2006. In 200&pewls from maturities of investments, net of pusebatotaled
$38.9 million. Purchases of investments, net otpeals from sales and maturities, totaled $49.2amilh 2007
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and $28.9 million in 2006. During 2008, Intevacested $15.1 million in the acquisition of certagsets from
Oerlikon. During 2007, Intevac invested $6.9 millim the acquisitions of DeltaNu and CDS, and latesold
Intevac’s investment in 601 California Avenue LL@apital expenditures totaled $4.2 million in 2068mpared to
$5.7 million in 2007 and $8.4 million in 2006.

Financing activities generated cash of $165,0@0®8, $6.9 million in 2007, and $6.2 million in Z00’he
sale of Intevac common stock to Intevac’s employkesugh Intevac’s employee benefit plans provided
$1.8 million in 2008, $3.9 million in 2007, and $3nillion in 2006. Intevac realized tax benefitsrir equity-based
compensation of $3.0 million in 2007 and $2.7 maiilin 2006. In 2008, Intevac made a scheduled patyofe
$2.0 million to the former owners of DeltaNu.

As of December 31, 2008, Intevac’s available-fde-scurities represented $74.4 million par valuauztion
rate securities (“ARS”)less a temporary valuation adjustment of $8.1 ariltio reflect their current lack of liquidi
This adjustment was recorded in other comprehenso@me and did not affect Intevac’s earnings scdl 2008.
Management continues to monitor the ARS situatimhificonditions worsen, will re-evaluate the temgrg nature
of the valuation adjustment. Due to current madgetditions, these investments have experiencegfailictions
beginning in mid-February 2008. These failed aunditesult in a lack of liquidity in the securitiésit do not affect
the underlying collateral of the securities. Inteb&lieves that given their high credit qualitywitl ultimately
recover at par all amounts invested in these g@Esirintevac does not anticipate that any potelattk of liquidity
in these ARS will affect its ability to finance ibperations and planned capital expenditures. auteontinues to
monitor efforts by the financial markets to findesthative means for restoring the liquidity of thésvestments.
During fiscal 2008, a net $7.1 million of ARS wes@d or redeemed at par. These investments argf@dsas non-
current assets until Intevac has better visibéigyto when their liquidity will be restored. Thassification and
valuation of these securities will continue to beiewed quarterly.

As described in Note 8 of Notes to Consolidate@haial Statements, at December 31, 2008, the d&hilevof
the ARS was estimated at $66.3 million based oalaation by Houlihan Smith & Company, Inc., usingadunted
cash flow models. The estimates of future cashdlave based on certain key assumptions, such@sudisrates
appropriate for the type of asset and risk, whighsignificant unobservable inputs. As of Decengifgr2008, there
was insufficient observable market informationttoe ARS held by Intevac to determine the fair valllgerefore
Level 3 fair values were estimated for these s&esrby incorporating assumptions that market pigiints would
use in their estimates of fair value. Some of tleessimptions included credit quality, collaterdlaa, final stated
maturity, estimates of the probability of beingledlor becoming liquid prior to final maturity, rehptions of
similar ARS, previous market activity for the sameestment security, impact due to extended perdasaximum
auction rates and valuation models.

Intevac has entered into a line of credit with @iup Global Markets Inc. under which approximately
$20 million is available. Intevac intends to usis tme to help secure its ability to fund cashuiegments until
Intevac is able to liquidate its ARS holdings. Bdditional information on this borrowing facilitgee Note 10 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme

Intevac believes that Intevac’s existing cash, eglivalents and investments will be sufficienirteet
Intevac’s cash requirements for the foreseeabigdutntevac intends to undertake approximatelyndibon in
capital expenditures during the next 12 months.
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Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes Intevac’s contrattldigations as of December 31, 2008:

Payments Due by Perioc

Total <1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years

(In thousands)
Operating lease obligatiol $8187 $262: $546(C $ 104 $ —
Purchase obligations and commitmel 5,50z 5,50z — — —
Long term debt obligatior? 2,00( 2,00( — — —
Other long term liabilitie3 50¢ 50¢ — — —
Total4 $16,19¢ $10,63: $546( $ 104 $ —

1 Purchase obligations include agreements to purdj@sgs or services that are enforceable and legaljing on
Intevac and that specify all significant terms liling fixed or minimum quantities to be purchasi@edd,
minimum or variable price provisions; and the apprate timing of the transaction. Purchase oblgaiexclud:
agreements that are cancelable without penaltys& barchase obligations are related principaliptentory anc
other items

2 Amounts represent total anticipated cash paymentsiding anticipated interest payments that aterecorded
on the consolidated balance sheets and the-term portion of the obligatior

3 Intevac is unable to reliably estimate the timifigubure payments related to uncertain tax pos#tjgherefore,
$540,000 of income taxes payable has been excludedthe table abovt

4 Total excludes contractual obligations already réed on the consolidated balance sheet as cuiabilities
(except for the short-term portion of the long-tetabt and other long-term liabilities) and cerfaimchase
obligations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2008, Intevac did not have aatenal off-balance sheet arrangements (as defined
Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of Regulation S-K).

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidated financial statesmant related disclosures in conformity with accimgn
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica requires management to make judgmeassinaptions
and estimates that affect the amounts reportece Nof Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeessribes the
significant accounting policies used in the prepaneof the consolidated financial statements. &erof these
significant accounting policies are considereddctitical accounting policies.

A critical accounting policy is defined as one tlsaboth material to the presentation of Intevaoesolidated
financial statements and requires management te wmiidfficult, subjective or complex judgments thautd have a
material effect on Intevac’s financial conditionresults of operations. Specifically, these posdiave the
following attributes: (1) Intevac is required to keaassumptions about matters that are highly uaiceat the time «
the estimate; and (2) different estimates Intevadd:reasonably have used, or changes in the dstifmat are
reasonably likely to occur, would have a materitda on Intevac’s financial condition or resultisoperations.

Estimates and assumptions about future eventshamdetffects cannot be determined with certaintjevac
bases its estimates on historical experience andous other assumptions believed to be appkcabt
reasonable under the circumstances. These estimaieshange as new events occur, as additionahmafion is
obtained and as Intevacbperating environment changes. These changeshisigecally been minor and have b
included in the consolidated financial statemestsapn as they became known. In addition, managemen
periodically faced with uncertainties, the outcoraéwhich are not within its control and will noé tiknown for
prolonged periods of time. These uncertaintiesdaeussed in the section above entitled “Risk Fact®ased on a
critical assessment of its accounting policies tedunderlying judgments and uncertainties affgctive
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application of those policies, management beli¢kasIntevacs consolidated financial statements are fairlyestat
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America, and progigeeaningful
presentation of Intevac’s financial condition ardults of operations.

Management believes that the following are critmatounting policies:

Revenue Recoghnitio

Intevac recognizes revenue when persuasive eviddrae arrangement exists, delivery has occurrektitie
and risk of loss have passed to Intevac’s custamservices have been rendered, the price is fixetbterminable,
and collectibility is reasonably assured. Intevatigpping terms are customarily FOB shipping poin¢quivalent
terms. Intevac revenue recognition policy generally resultseivenue recognition at the following points: (1) &i
transactions where legal title passes to the custaimon shipment, Intevac recognizes revenue ulpipment for al
products that have been demonstrated to meet gregecifications prior to shipment; the portiorrefenue
associated with certain installation-related tasldeferred based on the estimated fair value flaidrevenue is
recognized upon completion of the installationtedietasks; (2) for products that have not been dsinated to
meet product specifications prior to shipment, neseis recognized at customer acceptance; anadn3) f
arrangements containing multiple elements, themaeeelating to the undelivered elements is defeateestimated
fair value until delivery of the deferred elemeR&venue related to sales of spare parts is génezabgnized upo
shipment. Revenue related to services is genardlygnized upon completion of the services.

Intevac performs research and development workrwat@ous government-sponsored research contracts.
Revenue on cost-plus-fee contracts is recognizéitetextent of costs actually incurred plus a propoate amount
of the fee earned. Intevac considers fixed feeguodst-plus-fee contracts to be earned in pragott the
allowable costs actually incurred in performancéhefcontract. Revenue on fixed-price contracteésgnized
using the percentage-of-completion method of cabh@acounting. Intevac determines the percentagwleied
based on the percentage of costs incurred to dawdation to total estimated costs expected uponptetion of the
contract. When estimates of total costs to be meclion a contract exceed total estimates of revenbe earned, a
provision for the entire loss on the contract orded in the period the loss is determined.

Inventories

Inventories are priced using average actual cogtsaee stated at the lower of cost or market. Breyg valus
of inventory is reduced for estimated obsolescéayctne difference between its cost and the estidnaarket value
based upon assumptions about future demand. Ineaadaates the inventory carrying value for potrgikcess an
obsolete inventory exposures by analyzing histbdod anticipated demand. In addition, inventodes evaluated
for potential obsolescence due to the effect ofkmand anticipated engineering change orders awdoneducts. If
actual demand were to be substantially lower tistimated, additional inventory adjustments for escer obsolete
inventory might be required, which could have aarat adverse effect on Intevac’s business, firelraondition
and results of operations.

Warranty

Intevac estimates the costs that may be incurrdéruhe warranty we provide and record a liabilitghe
amount of such costs at the time the related rev@nrecognized. Estimated warranty costs are méted by
analyzing specific product and historical configioa statistics and regional warranty support cdstevac's
warranty obligation is affected by product failueges, material usage, and labor costs incurredrirecting product
failures during the warranty period. As Intevacustomer engineers and process support engiaxeehighly traine
and deployed globally, labor availability is a gfgrant factor in determining labor costs. The qitgrand
availability of critical replacement parts is anatlsignificant factor in estimating warranty cotigforeseen
component failures or exceptional component peréore can also result in changes to warranty cdéststual
warranty costs differ substantially from our estiesa revisions to the estimated warranty liabiligyuld be requirec
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Income Taxes

Intevac accounts for income taxes by recognizirfgrded tax assets and liabilities using statuteryrates for
the effect of temporary differences between thekkmwl tax bases of recorded assets and liabilitetspperating
losses and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred &pets are also reduced by a valuation allowaritésifnore likely
than not that a portion of the deferred tax as$enot be realized. Management has determinedith&imore likely
than not that its future taxable income will befwignt to realize its deferred tax assets.

The effective tax rate is highly dependent upongdbegraphic composition of worldwide earnings, tax
regulations governing each region, nem-deductible expenses and availability of taxlitse Management careful
monitors the changes in many factors and adjustefflective income tax rate as required. If actaaults differ
from these estimates, Intevac could be requiregddord a valuation allowance on deferred tax assedsljust its
effective income tax rate, which could have a maltadverse effect on Intevac’s business, finanmiadition and
results of operations.

The calculation of tax liabilities involves sigriéint judgment in estimating the impact of uncetiefin the
application of complex tax laws. Resolution of thescertainties in a manner inconsistent with latéy
expectations could have a material impact on Intsvasults of operations and financial condition.

Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets

Intevac reviews goodwill and intangible assetsriggairment whenever events or changes in circurasg&an
indicate that the carrying amount of these assaismt be recoverable, and also reviews goodwilliatangibles
with indefinite lives annually for impairment. Imgible assets, such as purchased technology, aezally recorde
in connection with a business acquisition. The ealasigned to intangible assets is usually basegtmates and
judgments regarding expectations for the succesdifercycle of products and technology acquirdéctual
product acceptance differs significantly from tiséiraates, Intevac may be required to record an immgant charge
to write down the asset to its realizable valuginkzstes of fair value are primarily determined @stliscounted cash
flows and a market multiples approach. These agpesmuse significant estimates and assumptionsdimng
projected future cash flows, discount rate reftegthe inherent risk in future cash flows, perpetwawth rate and
determination of appropriate market comparableghérfourth quarter of 2008, Intevac recorded apaiimment
charge of $10.5 million for goodwill and purchasedhnology intangible assets due to a decline irketavalue and
lower revenue expectations in light of current apieg performance and future operating expectations

Equity-Based Compensation

Intevac records compensation expense for equitgebawards under SFAS 123(R) using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. This model requires Inteva@stimate the expected volatility of the pricdraévac’s
common stock and the expected life of the equisedeaawards. SFAS 123(R) also requires forfeitutienages of
equity-based awards. Estimating volatility, expecteddifiel forfeitures requires significant judgment andaaalysit
of historical data. Intevac may have to increasamensation expense for equity-based awards if bitsalts differ
from Intevac’s estimates significantly.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Interest rate risk. Intevac’s exposure to market risk for changesterest rates relates primarily to Intevac’s
investment portfolio. Intevac does not use denwaafinancial instruments in Intevac’s investmenttfadio. Intevac
places investments with high quality credit issuwrd, by policy, limits the amount of credit expasto any one
issuer. Investments typically consist of auctioe igecurities and debt instruments issued by te gbvernment
and its agencies.

The table below presents principal amounts ande@haeighted-average interest rates by year of nityafor
Intevac’s investment portfolio at December 31, 2008

Fair
2009 2010 2011 Beyond Total Value
(In thousands, except percentage:
Cash equivalent
Fixed rate amount $15,000 — — —  $15,00C  $15,00(
Weightec-average rat 0.28% — — —
Variable rate amoun $ 6,78¢ —_ - — $6,78¢ $ 6,78¢
Weightec-average rat 095% — — —
Long-term investment
Fixed rate amount — — —  $74,40C $74,40C $66,32¢
Weightec-average rat — —_ - 2.3%
Total investment portfoli $21,78¢ — — $74,40C $96,18¢ $88,11:

At December 31, 2008, Intevac held investmentsigtian rate securities. With the liquidity issueperienced
in global credit and capital markets, Intevac’staurcrate securities have experienced multipleethauctions.
Intevac continues to earn interest at the maximantractual rate for each security. The estimatddegsof the
auction rate securities held by Intevac are nodomg par. As of December 31, 2008, Intevac had3béfilion in
auction rate securities in the consolidated balaheet, which is net of an unrealized loss of $8illion. The
unrealized loss is included in other comprehensigeme as the decline in value is deemed to be desny due
primarily to Intevac’s ability and intent to holdese securities long enough to recover their values

Intevac continues to monitor the market for auctiate securities and consider its impact (if any}tee fair
market value of its investments. If the current ke&iconditions continue, or the anticipated recpwemarket
values does not occur, Intevac may be requireddord additional unrealized losses or record araimgent charge
in 2009.

Based on Intevac’s ability to access its caslextsected operating cash flows, and other sourceadif,
Intevac does not anticipate that the lack of ligyidf these investments will affect Intevac'’s dito operate its
business in the ordinary course.

Foreign exchange risk.From time to time, Intevac enters into foreigmrency forward exchange contracts to
economically hedge certain of Intevac’s anticipdtadign currency transaction, translation and easurement
exposures. The objective of these contracts isitinmze the impact of foreign currency exchange rabvements
on Intevac’s operating results. Intevac had noigoreurrency forward exchange contracts during@fthe years
ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders Intevac, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Intevac, Inc. (a Delaware corporatoia)
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”) as ofd@mber 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related consatida
statements of operations, stockholders’ equity@mdprehensive income (loss), and cash flows fon eathe three
years in the period ended December 31, 2008. Glitsanf the basic financial statements includedfifencial
statement schedule listed in the index appeariniguhem 15(a). These financial statements anchéiiah statement
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’sagement. Our responsibility is to express an opiwin these
financial statements and financial statement sdedaised on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighargio
(United States). Those standards require that ame ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurerifinancial statements. An audit also includeessing the
accounting principles used and significant estismatade by management, as well as evaluating thralbfieancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the
financial position of Intevac, Inc. and subsidiarés of December 31, 2008 and 2007 and the redutsir
operations and their cash flows for each of thedtyears in the period ended December 31, 2008nfoanity with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates of America. Also in our opinion, theatedl financial
statement schedule, when considered in relatidihetdasic financial statements taken as a whobsepits fairly, in
all material respects, the information set fortaréin.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), Intevac, Inc. and subsidiariet@rimal control over financial reporting as of Det®mn31, 2008,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control — Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO)andeport dated March 2, 2009 expressed an uifigdal
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s imaécontrol over financial reporting.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
San Jose, California

March 2, 2009
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INTEVAC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31
2008 2007
(In thousands)

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 39,20 $ 27,67¢
Shor-term investment — 110,98!
Trade and other accounts receivable, net of allocesof $145 and $57 at December
2008 and 2007, respective 15,01« 14,14
Inventories, ne 17,67¢ 22,13:
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 4,80¢ 4,16:
Deferred income tax ass¢ 3,204 3,60¢
Total current asse 79,89¢ 182,70:
Property, plant and equipment, | 14,88¢ 15,40:
Long-term investment 66,32¢ 2,00¢
Goodwill 7,90t 7,90¢
Other intangible assets, net of amortization of3p68d $218 at December 31, 2008 and
2007, respectivel 4,054 1,782
Deferred income taxes and other long term as 16,091 5,611
Total asset $189,16¢ $215,41:

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Note payable $ 2,00 $ 1,99:
Accounts payabl 4,21¢ 7,67¢
Accrued payroll and related liabilitie 3,39¢ 8,61(
Other accrued liabilitie 3,17¢ 4,16:%
Customer advance 2,801 5,631
Total current liabilities 15,59: 28,07¢
Other lon¢-term liabilities 50¢ 27¢
Long-term note payabl — 1,89¢

Stockholder' equity:
Undesignated preferred stock, $0.001 par valu®0D0shares authorized, no shares
issued and outstandi — —
Common stock, $0.001 par valu
Authorized shares — 50,000 issued and outstandiiages — 21,805 and 21,591 at

December 31, 2008 and 2007, respecti 22 22
Additional paic-in-capital 128,68t 120,02.
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I (4,809 605
Retained earning 49,16¢ 64,51«

Total stockholder equity 173,06¢ 185,16:.
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $189,16¢ $215,41:

See accompanying notes.
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INTEVAC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006
(In thousands, except per share amount

Net revenues

Systems and componetl $ 95,96: $202,29. $250,15¢
Technology developmel 14,34* 13,54 9,71
Total net revenue 110,30° 215,83« 259,87!

Cost of net revenue

Systems and componel 58,50: 112,37¢ 152,81«

Technology developmel 8,46¢ 7,41°F 6,102

Total cost of net revenur 66,96¢ 119,79: 158,91¢

Gross profit 43,33¢ 96,04: 100,95¢
Operating expense

Research and developm 35,08: 40,13} 30,03¢

Selling, general and administrati 28,22¢ 28,47( 22,92«

Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass 10,49¢ — —
Total operating expens 73,81( 68,60" 52,96(
Operating income (lost (30,477 27,43¢ 47,99¢
Interest incom 3,96¢ 6,544 3,501
Other income (expense), r (36) 1,59¢ 277
Income (loss) before income tax (26,539 35,57¢ 51,77%
Provision (benefit) for income tax (11,199 8,23: 5,07¢
Net income (loss $(15,34Y) $ 27,34¢ $ 46,69¢
Basic income (loss) per sha

Net income (loss $ (07) $ 126 $ 22¢

Shares used in per share amol 21,724 21,44 21,01t
Diluted income (loss) per shai

Net income (loss $ 07) $ 128 $ 21¢

Shares used in per share amol 21,72« 22,15( 21,93¢

See accompanying notes.
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Balance at December 31, 2C
Shares issued in connection wi
Exercise of stock optior
Employee stock purchase pl
Income tax benefits realized from activity
employee stock plar
Stocl-based compensation expel
Net income
Foreign currency translation adjustm
Comprehensive incon
Balance at December 31, 2C
Shares issued in connection wi
Exercise of stock optior
Employee stock purchase pl
Reclassification of par value for Delaware
reincorporatior
Income tax benefits realized from activity
employee stock plar
Stocl-based compensation expel
Net income
Foreign currency translation adjustm
Comprehensive incon
Balance at December 31, 2C
Shares issued in connection wi
Exercise of stock optior
Employee stock purchase pl

INTEVAC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Common Stock

Shares

Amount

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated Retained

Other Earnings Total

Comprehensive (Accumulated Stockholder¢
Income (Loss) Deficit) Equity

(In thousands)

Income tax benefits realized from activity in

employee stock plar
Stocl-based compensation expel
Net loss
Unrealized loss on securities held as
available for sali
Foreign currency translation adjustm

Comprehensive los
Balance at December 31, 2C

20,66¢ $ 9597¢ $ 1,187 $ 23 $ (9529 $ 87,87
36C 2,66€ — — — 2,66¢
15¢ 824 — — — 824
— — 2,700 — — 2,701
— — 342 — — 3,42¢
— — — — 46,69 46,69¢
— — — 11€ — 11€

46,81

21,18t $ 99,46f $ 7,31¢ $ 354 $  37,16¢ $ 144,31
31z 2,141 352 — — 2,49¢
90 671 704 — — 1,37¢
— (102,259 102,25¢ — — —
— —  3,00¢ — — 3,00¢
— —  6,37¢ — — 6,37¢
— — — — 27,348 27,34t
— — — 251 — 251

27,59¢

21,59: $ 22 $120,02: $ 605 $ 6451¢ $ 185,16
48 — 32z — — 32z
16€ —  1,51¢ — — 1,51¢
— — 327 — — 327
— —  6,49¢ — — 6,49¢
— — — — (15,34%) (15,345
— = — (5,24 — (5,24
— — — (166) — (166)

(20,759

21,80t $ 22 $128,68¢ $ (4809 $  49,16¢ $ 173,06

See accompanying notes.
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INTEVAC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)

Operating activities
Net income (loss $(15,34f) $ 27,34t $ 46,69¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to @eshcand cash equivalents provided

(used in) operating activitie

Depreciation & amortizatio 4,70¢ 4,20: 2,84¢
Net accretion of investment premiums and disco (25€) (a75) (264)
Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass 10,49¢ — —
Amortization of intangible asse 70C 21¢ —
Equity-based compensatic 6,577 6,27( 3,35¢
Deferred income taxe (8,002 (1,659 (4,58))
Excess tax benefits from eqi-based compensatic (327) (3,009 (2,707
Loss on disposal of equipme 7 — 39
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl 76E 26,68 2,92¢
Inventory 4,43¢ 16,657 (12,999
Prepaid expenses and other as (200 (2,537 (1,909
Accounts payabl (3,46¢) (8,677) 8,90¢
Accrued payroll and other accrued liabilit (5,475 (3,969 9,76:
Customer advance (2,917 (20,736 3,107
Total adjustment 7,151 13,28¢ 8,49
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (usegbiajating activitie: (8,194 40,63¢ 55,19
Investing activities
Purchase of investmer (7,000 (175,629 (152,28()
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investn 45,85( 126,40( 123,42!
Sale of investment in 601 California Avenue L — 2,431 —
Acquisition of Oerlikon assets, net of cash acqu (15,099 — —
Acquisition of DeltaNu, LLC, net of cash acquit (2,089 —
Acquisition of Creative Display Systems, LLC, nétash acquire: — (4,782 —
Purchase of equipme (4,185 (5,735 (8,427
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (usedve}ting activities 19,57: (59,399 (37,27¢)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common si 1,83¢ 3,86¢ 3,49(
Repayment of note payat (2,000 — —
Excess tax benefits from eqi-based compensation pls 327 3,00¢ 2,707
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by finaraatigities 16E 6,87¢ 6,197
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (15) 114 75
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 11,52¢ (11,767 24,18t
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe 27,67 39,44( 15,25¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $39,200 $ 2767: $ 39,44
Cash paid (received) fo
Income taxe: $ 41C $ 1164 $ 5,72C
Income tax refunt (3,717 (259) —
Other nol-cash change:
Notes payable issued for the acquisition of DeltaN1C $ — $ 372 % —

See accompanying notes.
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principals of Consolidation and Basis of Presentati

The consolidated financial statements include tm@ants of Intevac, Inc. and its subsidiaries (lateor the
Company) after elimination of inter-company balanaad transactions.

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America requires management tceregkmates and assumptions that affect the amogpsted
in the consolidated financial statements and acemyipg notes. Actual results could differ mateyidtbm those
estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts in the Consolidated e Statements have been reclassified to confor2®08
presentation. The reclassifications had no mateffatt on total assets, liabilities, equity, matdme (loss) or
comprehensive income (loss) previously reported.

Out of Period Adjustment

In the third quarter of 2008, Intevac recorded djustment to decrease the income tax benefit byl S8
relating to an immaterial error originating in 199%e adjustment was due to an understatementofria tax
expense in prior years (and an understatemeneaklated deferred tax liability) resulting frondiéference
between book and tax basis related to Intevacésest in a real estate investment. Intevac deteuinat the
impact of this correction was not material to ahyhe prior years’ financial statements and recdrite correction
in the quarter ended September 27, 2008.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Intevac considers all highly liquid investmentstwat maturity of three months or less when purchésbd
cash equivalents. Available-for-sale securitiesststing solely of Auction Rate Securities (“ARSd)e carried at
fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reetnithin other comprehensive income (loss) agarsee
component of stockholders’ equity. Realized gams lasses and declines in value judged to be dtizer
temporary, if any, on available for sales secwgitiee included in earnings. Held-to-maturity sd@siare carried at
amortized cost. The cost of investment securitéd is determined by the specific identificationthre.

Fair Value Measurement — Definition and Hierarchy

In the first quarter of 2008, Intevac implementéat&mnent of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 157,"Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”) for finanicéssets and liabilities that are re-measured and
reported at fair value at each reporting periodASRE57 defines fair value as the price that wodddreived from
selling an asset or paid to transfer a liabilitamorderly transaction between market participahtee measureme
date.

SFAS 157 requires that fair value measurementsdssitied and disclosed in one of the followingegar
categories:

Level 1 — Valuations based on quoted prices in active etarfor identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuations based other than quoted prices in aatigekets for identical assets and liabilities, gd
prices for identical or similar assets or liabdgiin inactive markets, or other inputs that arseolmble or can be
corroborated by observable market data for subatpnthe full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Valuations based on inputs that are generalgbsearvable and typically reflect management’s
estimates of assumptions that market participantddwse in pricing the asset or liability.
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

As of December 31, 2008, financial assets meaautitzing: (1) Level 1 inputs included money markends
in the amount of $6.8 million and U.S. TreasurysBih the amount of $15.0 million which were valuzased on
guoted market prices in active markets for idehsegurities, and (2) Level 3 inputs in the amaafri$66.3 million
included long term investments in ARS consistingedurities collateralized by student loans whiehewalued
using a third-party valuation firm (see Note 8).d¢cember 31, 2008, Intevac did not have any fiizassets
measured utilizing Level 2 inputs. Also at Decem®kr2008, Intevac did not have any liabilitiesttvare required
to be measured at fair value.

Trade Receivables and Doubtful Accounts

Intevac evaluates the collectibility of trade rexadiles on an ongoing basis and provide reservéssiga
potential losses when appropriate. Management aeslyistorical bad debts, customer concentratmrstpmer
credit worthiness, changes in customer paymeneteeids and current economic trends when evalu#tieg
adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accountst@uer accounts are written off against the allaeanhen the
amount is deemed uncollectible.

Included in trade receivables are unbilled recdasbelated to government contracts of $1.3 milkoal
$1.9 million at December 31, 2008 and Decembef8QY7, respectively which includes $329,000 and $XEDof
fee retention, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories are generally stated at the lower ot oo market, with cost determined on an averagelzasis.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Equipment and leasehold improvements are stateasatDepreciation is computed using the straigie-|
method over the estimated useful lives of the asaefollows: computers and software, 3 years; machand
equipment, 5 years; furniture, 7 years; vehiclegedrs; and leasehold improvements, remaining lease

Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets &ested for impairment on an annual basis and behaeaual
tests in certain circumstances, and written dowamimpaired. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2068sed upon an
interim impairment analysis Intevac wrote off &l.% million of goodwill in its Equipment segment.

Purchased intangible assets other than goodwikhan@rtized over their useful lives unless thesediare
determined to be indefinite. Purchased intangibiets are carried at cost, less accumulated aitiotiz
Amortization is computed over the estimated uskfak of the respective assets, generally oneittedin years
using the straight line method.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intatgydssets to be held and used are reviewed foriimeat
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amount of such assets mayenot b
recoverable. Determination of recoverability ofdelived assets is based on an estimate of undisedduture cash
flows resulting from the use of the asset andvien&ual disposition. Measurement of an impairmess lfor long-
lived assets and certain identifiable intangiblsets that management expects to hold and usedd basthe fair
value of the asset. When an impairment loss isgized, the carrying amount of the asset is redtzéd
estimated fair value. As a result of Intevac’s pot¢d undiscounted future cash flows related ttaiceof its
intangible assets being less than the carryingevafihose assets, Intevac recorded an impairntemge of
$808,000 in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.
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INTEVAC, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognimdg enacted tax rates for the effect of tempodéfgrences
between book and tax bases of recorded asset&ailili¢s. Deferred tax assets are reduced bylaatian
allowance if it is more likely than not that a port of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

On a quarterly basis, Intevac provides for incomes$ based upon an annual effective income taxThete
effective tax rate is highly dependent upon thel@®¥ Intevac’s projected earnings, the geograpbioposition of
worldwide earnings, tax regulations governing e@ghion, net operating loss carry-forwards, avalighbof tax
credits and the effectiveness of Intevac’s tax ipilag strategies. Intevac carefully monitors thenges in many
factors and adjust its effective income tax ratadimely basis. If actual results differ from tstimates, this could
have a material effect on Intevac’s business, firdrtondition and results of operations.

The calculation of tax liabilities involves sigriéint judgment in estimating the impact of uncetiefin the
application of complex tax laws. Resolution of #hescertainties in a manner inconsistent with latéy
expectations could have a material effect on Intsviusiness, financial condition and results aragions.

Intevac recognizes accrued interest and penattlated to unrecognized tax benefits in the provi$ay income
taxes.

Sales and Value Added Taxes

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to gowental authorities are presented on a net basei
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Revenue Recognition

Intevac recognizes revenue when persuasive evidgrare arrangement exists, delivery has occurretide
and risk of loss have passed to Intevac’s custamservices have been rendered, the price is fixetbterminable,
and collectibility is reasonably assured. Intevatigpping terms are customarily FOB shipping pomn¢quivalent
terms. Intevacs revenue recognition policy generally resultseivenue recognition at the following points: (1) &
transactions where legal title passes to the cistaimon shipment, Intevac recognizes revenue ulpipment for al
products that have been demonstrated to meet gregecifications prior to shipment; the portiorrefenue
associated with certain installation-related tasldeferred based on the estimated fair value lzeitdrevenue is
recognized upon completion of the installationteditasks; (2) for products that have not been detnated to
meet product specifications prior to shipment, neseis recognized at customer acceptance; anadn3) f
arrangements containing multiple elements, themaeeelating to the undelivered elements is defeateestimated
fair value until delivery of the deferred elemerR&venue related to sales of spare parts is génezabgnized upo
shipment. Revenue related to services is genardlygnized upon completion of the services.

Intevac performs research and development workrwat@us government-sponsored research contracts.
Revenue on cost-plus-fee contracts is recognizéitetextent of costs actually incurred plus a priipoate amount
of the fee earned. Intevac considers fixed feeguodst-plus-fee contracts to be earned in pragott the
allowable costs actually incurred in performancéhefcontract. Revenue on fixed-price contracteésgnized
using the percentage-of-completion method of cah@acounting. Intevac determines the percentagglaied
based on the percentage of costs incurred to daidation to total estimated costs expected uponptetion of the
contract. When estimates of total costs to be neclion a contract exceed total estimates of revembe earned, a
provision for the entire loss on the contract oreled in the period the loss is determined.

Foreign Currency Translation

The functional currency of Intevacforeign subsidiaries, with the exception of H&umg, is the local curren
of the country in which the respective subsidigrgmates. Hong Kong’s functional currency is the
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U.S. dollar. Assets and liabilities recorded inefign currencies are translated at year-end exchatge revenues
and expenses are translated at average exchargeltaing the year. The effect of foreign curretrapslation
adjustments are included in stockholders’ equitga asmponent of accumulated other comprehensivariadan the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Thetefiééoreign currency transactions are include®iher incom:
in the determination of net income. Net gains osgks) from foreign currency transactions were, (X)), $62,000
and ($55,000) in 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Comprehensive Income

The components of accumulated other comprehensbarie (loss), were as follows at December 31, 2008

2007:
December 31
2008 2007
(In thousands)
Accumulated net unrealized holding loss on avag-for-sale investments, net of t $(5,247) $ —
Foreign currency translation gains and los 43¢ 60E
Total accumulated other comprehensive income ( $(4,80¢) $60%

Employee Stock Plans

Intevac has equity-based compensation plans tbatda for the grant to employees of equity-basedrdg
including incentive or non-statutory stock optiorestricted stock, stock appreciation rights, penfance units and
performance shares. In addition, these plans pedadthe grant of non-statutory stock optionsao-+employee
directors and consultants. Intevac also has an@melstock purchase plan, which provides Intevawiployees
with the opportunity to purchase Intevac commomwlstat a discount through payroll deductions. SeteRdor a
complete description of these plans and their atog treatment.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2008, the Financial Accounting Standard BIo@FASB”) issued SFAS No. 162, “The Hierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles” (“SFAS?215 which identifies the sources of accountinghpiples and
the framework for selecting the principles to bedus the preparation of financial statements of-governmental
entities that are presented in conformity with gatg accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) iretunited
States. SFAS 162 is effective sixty days followihg SECS approval of The Public Company Accounting Ovéat
Board'’s related amendments to remove the GAAP kibyafrom auditing standards. Intevac is curreptrgluating
the potential impact of the implementation of SFE& on its financial position and results of opiera. Intevac
currently adheres to the hierarchy of GAAP as preskin SFAS 162, and implementation is not expgktichave a
material impact on Intevac'’s financial position ardults of operations.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positi6RSP”) 142-3, “Determination of the Useful Life of
Intangible Assets” (“FSP 142-3"). The FSP amendsf#ictors that an entity should consider in deteimgi the
useful life of a recognized intangible asset urffeAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets’jriclude the
entity’s historical experience in renewing or extiglg similar arrangements, whether or not the gearents have
explicit renewal or extension provisions. Previguah entity was precluded from using its own asgionp about
renewal or extension of an arrangement where thasdikely to be substantial cost or modificatioBatities
without their own historical experience should ddasthe assumptions market participants wouldals®it renew:
or extension. The amendment may result in the Us&fof an entity’s intangible asset differingofn the period of
expected cash flows that was used to measureitheafae of the underlying asset using the marketigipant’s
perceived value. The FSP is effective for finanstatements issued for fiscal years beginning after
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December 15, 2008, and for interim periods withiose fiscal years. Early adoption is prohibitede Téquirements
for determining the useful life of intangible assapply to intangible assets acquired after Janlia?@09. Intevac
does not expect that the implementation of FSP3L4# have a material impact on Intevac’s finahgiasition and
results of operations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “[isares about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities — An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 18BFAS 161”). SFAS 161 enhances required disalesu
regarding derivatives and hedging activities. SA&S is effective for fiscal years and interim pesdoeginning
after November 15, 2008. Intevac does not expetttte implementation of SFAS 161 will have a matempact
on Intevac’s financial position and results of gpiEems.

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No. 141)siness Combinations” (“SFAS 141R"). SFAS 141R
retains the fundamental acquisition method of anting established in Statement 141; however, anobiner
things, SFAS 141R requires recognition of assedisliabilities of non-controlling interests acquirddir value
measurement of consideration and contingent coraida, expense recognition for transaction costscertain
integration costs, recognition of the fair valuecoftingencies, and adjustments to income tax es@oar changes
in an acquirer’s existing valuation allowances wcertain tax positions that result from the busine@mbination.
SFAS 141R is effective for annual reporting peribdginning after December 15, 2008 and will bevate
prospectively. Intevac expects SFAS 141R will hamempact on Intevac’s financial position and resof
operations, but the nature and magnitude of theifspeffects will depend upon the nature, termd aize of the
acquisitions Intevac consummates after the effeaate of January 1, 2009.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160ntdatrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements, an Amendment of Accounting ResearcletBuNo 51" (“SFAS 160”). SFAS 160 establishes
accounting and reporting standards for ownershgrésts in subsidiaries held by parties other tharparent,
changes in a parent’s ownership of a noncontroilimerest, calculation and disclosure of the cadstdd net
income attributable to the parent and the noncdintganterest, changes in a parent’s ownershipriggt while the
parent retains its controlling financial interestidair value measurement of any retained noncbintgcequity
investment. SFAS 160 is effective for financialtetaents issued for fiscal years beginning afterdbdmer 15, 200t
and interim periods within those fiscal years. ariplementation is prohibited. Intevac must imp&hthese new
requirements in its first quarter of fiscal 2008telvac does not expect that the implementatiorFé{$160 will
have a material impact on Intevac’s financial posiand results of operations.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FSP 157-1, “Agapion of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement
No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements ThatrdégtdFair Value Measurements for Purposes of L
Classification or Measurement under Statement ‘I3 157-1") and FSP 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB
Statement No. 157" (“FSP 157-2"). FSP 15@riends SFAS No. 157 to remove certain leasingdcdiasns from its
scope. FSP 157-2 delays the effective date of SRASL57 for all non-financial assets and non-finahicabilities,
except for items that are recognized or disclosddiavalue in the financial statements on a reogrbasis (at least
annually), until fiscal years beginning after Noumm 15, 2008. Intevac does not expect that theeamephtation of
FSP 157-1 and FSP 157-2 will have a material impadnhtevac’s financial position and results of i®ns.

In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP 157-3, “Detang the Fair Value of a Financial Asset in a Mgtrk
That Is Not Active” (“FSP 157-3"which clarifies the application of SFAS 157 whea tharket for a financial as:
is inactive. Specifically, FSP 157-3 clarifies h¢ly management’s internal assumptions should beidered in
measuring fair value when observable data are resept, (2) observable market information fromreaciive
market should be taken into account, and (3) tleeofi®roker quotes or pricing services should besimtered in
assessing the relevance of observable and unobseata to measure fair value. The guidance in BSP3 is
effective immediately. Intevac considered the gnadaprovided by FSP 157-3 in its determinationstineated fair
values as of December 31, 2008, and the impachotaterial.
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2. Equity-Based Compensatiot

On January 1, 2006, Intevac adopted Statemennain€ial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004)
“Share-Based Payment,” (“SFAS 123(R)") which regaithe measurement and recognition of compensation
expense for all share-based payment awards magaptoyees, consultants and directors based upagraime-date
fair value of those awards. Intevac adopted SFARRPusing the modified prospective transition nogthUnder
the modified prospective method, Intevac recognadpensation cost for all share-based paymentsegtafter
January 1, 2006, plus any awards granted as ofrBleee31, 2005, that remained unvested at that fiine.
estimated fair value of Intevac’s equity-based asaless expected forfeitures, is amortized ovelatlhiardsservice
periods using the graded vesting attribution metihding the years ended December 31, 2008, 2002686
Intevac recognized equity-based compensation expmteted to stock options and ESPP of $6.6 million
$6.3 million and $3.4 million, respectively.

Descriptions of Plans
2004 Equity Incentive Plan

In 2004, the Board of Directors and Intevac stodttérs approved adoption of the 2004 Plan. The Zifty
Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan”) serves as the ssmar equity incentive program to the 1995 StockddfStock
Issuance Plan (the “1995 Plan”). Upon adoptiorhef2004 Plan, all remaining shares available uasce under
the 1995 Plan were transferred to the 2004 Plan.

The 2004 Plan is a broad-based, long-term reteptiogram intended to attract and retain qualified
management and employees, and align stockholdegraptbyee interests. The 2004 Plan permits thet gfan
incentive or non-statutory stock options, restdcséock, stock appreciation rights, performancesusmnd
performance shares. To date only stock options baee issued pursuant to the 2004 Plan. Optioe pristing
period, and other terms are determined by the adtrator of the 2004 Plan, but the option pricellsienerally not
be less than 100% of the fair market value peresharthe date of grant. As of December 31, 20@nfllion
shares of common stock were authorized for futssadance under the 2004 Plan. Options granted timel@004
Plan are exercisable upon vesting and vest ovérdseof up to five years. Options currently expicelater than ten
years from the date of grant. The 2004 Plan expiodater than March 10, 201

During the year ended December 31, 2008, Intevawtgd 697,000 stock options pursuant to the 2084 Pl
with an estimated total grant-date fair value afB$4illion, including 7,500 shares granted to astdtant with a
grant date fair value of $50,000. Of this amounmtgVac estimated that the equity-based compensatiaption
grants that will be forfeited, and are thereforé eéxpected to vest, was $904,000. During the yede@

December 31, 2007, Intevac granted 750,000 stotirapwith an estimated total grant-date fair vatfie

$7.4 million, including 3,000 shares granted t@astltant with a grant date fair value of $24,000this amount,
Intevac estimated that the equity-based compemsadicoption grants that will be forfeited, and #nerefore not
expected to vest, was $1.6 million. During the yeradted December 31, 2006, Intevac granted 943108R eptions
with an estimated total grant-date fair value dd.$1million. Of this amount, Intevac estimated ttiet equity-based
compensation for the awards not expected to vestd8at million.

2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In 2003, Intevac’s stockholders approved adoptioth® 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ERPP”
which serves as the successor to the Employee Budhase Plan originally adopted in 1995. Uporp#do of the
ESPP, all shares available for issuance underrtbegdan were transferred to the ESPP. The ESBFiges that
eligible employees may purchase Intevac commorkgtoough payroll deductions at a price equal t%8% the
lower of the fair market value at the beginningha applicable offering period or at the end ofreapplicable
purchase interval. Offering periods are generally years in length, and consist of a series ofsdrith purchase
intervals. Eligible employees may join the ESPEhatbeginning of any six-month purchase intervaldér the
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terms of the ESPP, employees can choose to hatee1@%o of their base earnings withheld to purchasevac
common stock. Under the ESPP, Intevac sold 166 @000 and 159,000 shares to employees in 2008, 26d
2006, respectively. As of December 31, 2008, 132giares remained available for issuance undet SR,
During the years ended December 31, 2008, 20072@0@ Intevac granted purchase rights with an egéchtotal
grant-date value of $1.0 million, $2.0 million a$#l.6 million, respectively.

The effect of recording equity-based compensatboritfe years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and\2866
as follows (in thousands):

2008 2007 2006

Equity-based compensation by type of aw:

Stock options $525. $5517 $2,80¢

Employee stock purchase pl 1,243 864 622
Amounts released to cost of sales (capitalized\anitory) 78 (117) (69
Total equit-based compensatic 6,571 6,27( 3,35¢
Tax effect on equit-based compensati (1,785 (1,882) (784)
Net effect on net incom $4,792 $4,38 $2,57¢

Approximately $102,000 and $180,000 of equity-basmtipensation is included in inventory as of
December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007, resphctive

Stock Options

The exercise price of each stock option equalsrthkket price of Intevac’s stock on the date of gritost
options are scheduled to vest over four years &pule=no later than ten years after the grant détte.fair value of
each option grant is estimated on the date of grsing the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Thizdel was
developed for use in estimating the value of pijpliaded options that have no vesting restrictiang are fully
transferable. Intevac’s employee stock options lwagacteristics significantly different from thasfepublicly
traded options. The weighted average assumpti@tsinghe model are outlined in the following table

2008 2007 2006

Stock Options
Expected volatility 65.6(% 66.61% 74.4%%
Risk free interest rai 281% 4.052% 4.68%
Expected term of options (in yea 4.47 4.4¢ 4.71
Dividend yield None None None

The computation of the expected volatility assunptised in the Black-Scholes calculations for neants is
based on historical volatility of Intevac’s stodkage. The risk-free interest rate is based on thilyavailable on
U.S. Treasury Strips with an equivalent remaingrgnt The expected life of employee stock optiopsasents the
weighted-average period that the stock optiongapected to remain outstanding and was determiasedoon
historical experience of similar awards, giving sigieration to the contractual terms of the stockedeawards and
vesting schedules. The dividend yield assumptidraged on Intevac’s history of not paying divideadd the
assumption of not paying dividends in the future.

The weighted-average estimated fair value of emg#atock options granted during the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $6.12, $a8%$H1.22 per share, respectively.
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ESPP

The fair value of the employee stock purchase iigbttimated on the date of grant using the Bachkeles
option pricing model with the following weightederage assumptions:

2008 2007 2006

Stock Purchase Right

Expected volatility 62.65% 63.15% 59.2%%
Risk free interest rai 1.68% 3.9% 4.67%
Expected term of purchase rights (in yei 1.87 1.97 1.9z
Dividend yield None None None

The expected life of purchase rights is the peabtime remaining in the current offering periocheélweighted-
average estimated fair value of employee stockhmse rights granted pursuant to the ESPP duringetties ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $5.40, $823%68 per share, respectively.

Stock Plan Activity
2004 Equity Incentive Plan

A summary of activity under the above captionechidaas follows:

Weighted

Weighted Average
Average Remaining  Aggregate

Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term (years) Value
Options outstanding at December 31, 2 2,587,85. $13.31 7.6¢  $8,004,45!
Options grante: 697,30( $11.4(
Options forfeitec (311,339 $15.0¢
Options exercise (47,409 $ 6.8(C
Options outstanding at December 31, 2 2,926,41. $12.8: 7.1 $ 683,64
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2,719,97! $12.74 7.0C $ 680,39
Options exercisable at December 31, 2 1,232,87. $11.6¢ 54¢ $ 667,87

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrfiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $204,000,
$5.1 million and $4.8 million, respectively. At Dernber 31, 2008, Intevac had $5.7 million of totalacognized
compensation expense, net of estimated forfeituedsted to stock option plans that will be recagdiover the
weighted average period of 1.4 years.
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The options outstanding and currently exercisabl@ezember 31, 2008 were in the following exergisee

ranges:
Options Outstanding
Weighted
Average Options Exercisable
Number of Remaining Weighted Number Weighted
Shares Contractual Average Vested and Average
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding Term (In Years)  Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
$2.63— $4.06 313,14 3.5C $ 2.9¢ 313,14: $ 2.9¢
$4.07— $7.72 330,17 5.9¢ $ 6.94 109,270 $ 6.34
$7.73— $10.69 249,66 5.02 $ 9.32 160,56! $ 9.9¢
$10.70— $15.40 840,86 8.8¢ $12.3¢ 130,05 $13.2¢
$15.41— $15.81 144,37! 6.54 $15.8( 77,628 $15.8(
$15.82— $16.13 638,06 7.85 $16.12 247,83¢ $16.1:
$16.14— $22.01 241 ,50( 7.7 $19.71 126,000 $19.6¢
$22.12— $29.45 168,62! 7.4¢ $25.4¢ 68,37t $24.87
$2.63— $29.45 2,926,41. 7.12 $12.8¢  1,232,87. $11.6¢

2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

During fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006 the aggecig&insic value of purchase rights exercisedaunride
ESPP was $267,000, $317,000 and $2.1 million, msmdy, determined as of the date of purchaseirguiscal
years 2008, 2007 and 2006, 166,000, 90,000 an®@B38hares were purchased at an average per staref
$9.15, $15.27 and $5.18. At December 31, 2008etivere 132,000 shares available to be issued tinel&SPP.
As of December 31, 2008, Intevac had $754,000taf tmrecognized compensation expense, net of atgdn
forfeitures related to purchase rights that willreeognized over the weighted average period oféa3s.

3. Earnings Per Share

Intevac calculates basic earnings per share (“EBSig net income (loss) and the weighted-averageber of
shares outstanding during the reporting periodut®d EPS includes the effect from potential isseasfacommon
stock pursuant to the exercise of employee stotikiog

The following table sets forth the computation aéic and diluted income (loss) per share:

2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)
Numerator:
Numerator for diluted earnings per share — incologs] available to
common stockholdel $(15,345  $27,34F  $46,69¢
Denominator
Denominator for basic earnings per sk— weightec-average share 21,72¢ 21,447 21,01t
Effect of dilutive securities
Employee stock options(: — 703 921
Dilutive potential common shar: — 703 921
Denominator for diluted earnings per sh— adjustec 21,72¢ 22,15( 21,93¢

(1) Potentially dilutive securities, consisting of skmissuable upon exercise of employee stock optioas
excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS ffitredfect would be anti-dilutive. The weighted azge number
of employee stock options excluded from the twehanath periods ended December 31, 2008, 2007, ad@l 20
was 2,760,874, 784,684, and 426,606 respecti
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4. Concentrations
Credit Risk and Significant Customers

Financial instruments that potentially subjectaisignificant concentrations of credit risk consitash
equivalents, short- and long-term investments, actsoreceivable and foreign exchange forward cotdrdntevac
generally invests its excess cash in money maudgetd, ARS and debt securities of the U.S. govertizea its
agencies. By policy, investments in money marketifuand ARS are rated AAA or better, and Intevaitdi the
amount of credit exposure to any one issuer.

Intevac’s accounts receivable tend to be concattriata limited number of customers. At December28D8,
two customers accounted for 40% and 11%, respégtioEIntevac’s accounts receivable and in aggtega
accounted for 51% of net accounts receivable. Atdirdber 31, 2007, three customers accounted for 12%,and
11%, respectively, of Intevac’s accounts receivalple in aggregate accounted for 38% of net accaantsvable.

Intevac’s largest customers tend to change frorogeo period. Historically, a significant portiaf Intevac’'s
revenues in any particular period have been atafida to sales to a limited number of customer2008, two
customers accounted for 35% and 34%, respectigélyonsolidated net revenues and in aggregate atetdor
69% of net revenues. In 2007, four customers adeduior 31%, 23%, 23% and 13%, respectively, ofsolidated
net revenues and in aggregate accounted for 90%taEvenues. In 2006, three customers accounté®$6, 22%
and 19%, respectively, of consolidated net reveanesin aggregate accounted for 93% of net revenotevac
performs credit evaluations of its customers’ ficiahcondition and generally requires depositsysiesn orders but
does not generally require collateral or other sgcto support customer receivables.

Products

Disk manufacturing products contributed a significportion of Intevac’s revenues in 2008, 2007, 2006.
Intevac expects that the ability to maintain oraxgpits current levels of revenues in the futurédepend upon
continuing market demand for its products; its &ssdn enhancing its existing systems and deveioginl
manufacturing competitive disk manufacturing equépin such as the 200 Lean; Intevac’s success ielaigng
both military and commercial products based ofoitslight technology; and its success in utilizilmgevac'’s
expertise in complex manufacturing equipment toettlgy new equipment products for semiconductor
manufacturing.

5. Balance Sheet Detail:

Balance sheet details were as follows for the yeaded December 31, 2008 and 2007:

Inventory
Inventories are stated at the lower of average @ostarket and consist of the following:

December 31

2008 2007
(In thousands)
Raw material $10,47C  $13,66¢
Work-in-progress 4,93 6,191
Finished good 2,27z 2,27¢

$17,67¢  $22,13¢

Finished goods inventory consists primarily of céeted systems at customer sites that are undergoing
installation and acceptance testing.
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Inventory reserves included in the above numbers 8.1 million and $7.8 million at December 3102@&nd
2007, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

December 31

2008 2007
(In thousands)
Leasehold improvemen $13,83:  $12,63:
Machinery and equipme 28,26 27,18t
42,09° 39,81¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize 27,21 24,41«
Total property, plant and equipment, $14,88¢  $15,40:

Customer Advances

Customer advances generally represent nonrefundaplesits invoiced by the Company in connectior wit
receiving customer purchase orders and other epeateding acceptance of systems. Customer adveglagsd to
products that have not been shipped to customergaluded in accounts receivable were $1.7 milabn
December 31, 2008. There were no customer advaelegsd to products that had not been shippedstomers
and included in accounts receivable at Decembe?2@17.

Other Accrued Liabilities

December 31,

2008 2007
(In thousands)
Accrued product warrantie $1,28¢ $2,81¢
Deferred incomt 58¢ 25C
Other taxes payab 517 90
Accrued income taxe 421 18t
Other 362 824
Total other accrued liabilitie $3,17F  $4,16:
6. Goodwill and Purchased Intangible Assets, Ne
Information regarding our goodwill by reportablgs®nt is as follows:
Intevac
Equipment Photonics Total
(In thousands)

Balance as of January 1, 2C $ - $ — $ —

Goodwill acquired during the peric — 7,90t 7,90t
Balance as of December 31, 2( — 7,90¢% 7,90¢%

Goodwill acquired during the peric 9,76¢ — 9,76¢

Impairment charge (9,68¢) — (9,689

Foreign exchang (79 — (79
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ — $ 790t $7,90¢
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Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets #&sted for impairment on an annual basis or maguiently
upon the occurrence of circumstances that inditetegoodwill and indefinite life intangible assaetay be
impaired. Intevac completed its annual goodwill @imment tests as of the September 27, 2008, apddat
determined that no indicators of impairment existeaf September 27, 2008. However, in the fountirigr of
fiscal 2008, Intevac experienced a significant ithecin its stock price and concluded that thereevgrifficient
indicators to require Intevac to perform an integoodwill impairment analysis as of November 22)0As a
result of the decline in its stock price, Intevaniarket capitalization fell significantly belowethecorded value of i
consolidated net assets. Based on the results agsiessment of goodwill for impairment, Intevaeeined that
the fair value of its Equipment reporting unit wass than the carrying value and impairment existédrefore,
Intevac performed the second step of the impairrresttto determine the implied fair value of godtiwi
Specifically, Intevac hypothetically allocated #stimated fair value of its equity as determinethanfirst step to
recognized and unrecognized net assets, includimgptions to intangible assets. The analysis igid that there
would be no remaining implied value attributableyamdwill in the Equipment reporting unit and aatiogly,
Intevac wrote off all $9.7 million of goodwill ins Equipment reporting unit. The goodwill assodateth the
Intevac Photonics reporting unit was not impaired.

Information regarding other acquisition-relatechimgible assets is as follows:

December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Gross Net Gross

Carrying  Accumulated Carrying Carrying  Accumulated Net Carrying
Amount  Amortization Amount Amount  Amortization Amount

(In thousands)
Customer relationshif $3,15: $ 28z $287C $ 62C $ 35 % 58E
Purchased technolog 1,13¢ 101 1,03t 89C 15 87t
Covenants not to compe 14C 111 29 14C 48 92
Backlog 19¢ 19¢ — 23C 12C 11C
Total amortizable intangible assi 4,62 693 3,934 1,88( 21¢ 1,662
Indefinite life tradenam 12C — 12C 12C — 12C
Total intangible asse $4741 $ 692 $4,05¢ $2,000 $ 21€ $ 1,782

In connection with the triggering event discusseove, during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 200@vac
performed an impairment test on intangible assadsd@termined that certain purchased technologtagsthe
Equipment and Intevac Photonics segments were ragpdiie to lower revenue expectations in lightwfent
operating performance and future operating expectst The determination was based on reviewingneséd
undiscounted cash flows for these intangible assdtich were less than their carrying values. Assailt, Intevac
recorded an impairment charge of $808,000 as ofNiber 22, 2008, which represents the differencgdsst the
estimated fair values of these intangible asset®agpared to their carrying fair values which weetermined bast
upon market conditions, the income approach whidlzed cash flow projections, and other factors.

Total amortization expense of purchased intangifuethe years ended September 31, 2008 and 2087 wa
$700,000 and $218,000 respectively. Future amaidiz&xpense is expected to be $561,000 for 20862 $00 for
2010, $541,000 for 2011, $541,000 for 2012, $541 {80 2013 and $1.2 million thereafter. Intangibksets by
segment are as follows: Equipment; $2.9 million antdvac Photonics; $1.2 million.

7. Business Combinations

On July 14, 2008, Intevac acquired certain assetdiabilities of OC Oerlikon Balzers Ltd. (“Oerbk”)’s
magnetic media equipment business for a purchase @f $15.1 million in cash, net of cash acquitedaddition
Intevac agreed to pay contingent considerationedikdn in the form of a royalty on Intevac’s nevenue from
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commercial sales of certain products. This agreémeeminates on July 13, 2011. Intevac has madgayments to
Oerlikon under this agreement through DecembeRBQ@8. As part of the acquisition, Intevac also exdénto a
settlement agreement with Oerlikon related to apanfringement lawsuit filed by Intevac againstadis USA,
Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Oerlikon, anticims in the litigation were dismissed.

In connection with this acquisition, Intevac recmitdyoodwill of $9.8 million and intangible assets o
$3.8 million. Of the $3.8 million of acquired intgible assets, $2.6 million was assigned to custoeiationships
(to be amortized over 6 to 9 years), $1.2 millicessvassigned to purchased technology (to be amadizer 3 to
7 years) and $80,000 was assigned to acquireddzatkd be amortized over 1 year). Future contingayments
will also be allocated to goodwill. Any change retestimated fair value of the net assets acqwikdhange the
amount of the purchase price allocable to goodwiill.

On November 9, 2007, Intevac acquired the assetsamain liabilities of Creative Display Systerh&C
(“CDS") for a purchase price of $6.0 million in taset of cash acquired. The acquired businessiuppglier of
high-performance micro-display products for neag-apd portable applications in defense and comaderarkets.
In connection with this acquisition, Intevac receddyoodwill of $2.5 million and intangible asset$t.6 million.
Of the $1.6 million of acquired intangible ass&890,000 was assigned to purchased technologye(tortortized
over 10 years), $560,000 was assigned to custataionships (to be amortized over 13 years), $ld@was
assigned to acquired backlog (to be amortized bwerar), and $40,000 was assigned to covenants gompete
(to be amortized over 3 years).

On January 31, 2007, Intevac acquired the assdtsatain liabilities of DeltaNu, LLC (“DeltaNu”of a
purchase price of $5.8 million of which $2.0 miflivas paid in cash at the close of the acquisi®@r) million was
paid on January 31, 2008 and $2.0 million was paidanuary 31, 2009, which is in the form of a imterest-
bearing note. Interest is imputed, and the relattd payable is recorded at a discount in the apaoging
Consolidated Balance Sheets. The acquired busmessupplier of small footprint and handheld Raman
spectrometry instruments. In connection with thiguasition, Intevac recorded goodwill of $5.4 nali, an
indefinite-life tradename of $120,000 and amortieabtangible assets of $280,000 which are comgrige
customer relationships, covenants not to competeébanklog to be amortized over their respectivdulsiees of 1-
2 years.

The results of operations for the acquired busegbsve been included in Intevac’s consolidate@si@nts of
operations for the periods subsequent to theire@s acquisition dates. Pro forma results of afiens have not
been presented because the effects of the acgnssiindividually and in aggregate, were not materi

8. Financial Instruments

Intevac’s investment portfolio consists of castshcaquivalents and investments in ARS and debtisiesuof
the U.S. government and its agencies. Includeddounts payable is $916,000 and $2.1 million ofkboeerdraft a
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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The table below presents the estimated fair valumrmrtized principal amount and major securityetygpr
Intevac’s investments:

December 31 December 31
2008 2007
(In thousands)

Amortized principal amoun

Debt securities issued by U.S. government agel $ — $ 29,74«
Auction rate securitie 66,32¢ 81,45(
Corporate debt securitit — 1,80(
Total investments in debt securiti $ 66328 $ 112,99
Shor-term investment $ — $ 110,98
Long-term investment 66,32¢ 2,00¢
Total investments in debt securiti $ 66328 $ 112,99
Approximate fair value of investments in debt séms $ 66,32¢ $ 113,02¢

As of December 31, 2008, Intevadhvestment portfolio included $74 million parwalin ARS. All of the AR
are student loan structured issues, where the loawes been originated under the U.S. DepartmeBtatation’s
Federal Family Education Loan Program. The prifcipal interest are 97-98% reinsured by the U.S aliapent of
Education, the collateral ratios range from 103%18%, and the securities are rated AAA. Thesesimrents have
experienced failed auctions beginning in Febru®@8 The investments in ARS will not be accessilitl a
successful auction occurs, they are restructuredaimore liquid security, a buyer is found outsfi¢he auction
process, or the underlying securities have matured.

At December 31, 2008, the fair value of the ARS estimated at $66.3 million based on a valuation by
Houlihan Smith & Company, Inc. using discountedhctiew models. The estimates of future cash floveskased
on certain key assumptions, such as discount agi@opriate for the type of asset and risk, whiehsggnificant
unobservable inputs. As of December 31, 2008, thainsufficient observable market information ttee ARS
held by Intevac to determine the fair value. Theref_evel 3 fair values were estimated for theseisges by
incorporating assumptions that market participargsld use in their estimates of fair value. Soméete
assumptions included credit quality, collateralmat final stated maturity, estimates of the praligiof being
called or becoming liquid prior to final maturitgdemptions of similar ARS, previous market acyivdr the same
investment security, impact due to extended peridasaximum auction rates and valuation modelss€he
securities are classified as long-term assets asgeaent believes that the ARS market will not bezdiquid
within the next year. Potentially, it could taketiuthe final maturity of the underlying notes (ging from 23 years
to 39 years) to realize these investments’ recovadae. Management currently believes these séesidre not
other-than-temporarily impaired, primarily due b tgovernment guarantee of the underlying secsi el
Intevac’s ability to hold these securities for fbeeseeable future.

As of December 31, 2008, based on the Level 3 tialuperformed Intevac determined that there wdsdline
in fair value of its auction rate securities of B&illion, which was deemed temporary. The unrealiloss is
included in other comprehensive income. Factorsidaened in determining whether a loss is tempoiraziude
length of time and the extent to which the investtisefair value has been less than the cost b#madjnancial
condition and near-term prospects of the issuehuiting any specific events which may influence dperations of
the issuer and Intevac'’s intent and ability toirethe investment for a period of time sufficieatallow for any
anticipated recovery of fair value.
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The following table presents the changes in LeviesBuments measured on a recurring basis foy¢he
ended December 31, 2008. The majority of Intevhelgel 3 balances consist of investment securitiessified as
available-for-sale with changes in fair value releat in equity.

Changes in Level 3 instruments (in thousands):

Investment securities at January 1, 2 $81,45(
Net unrealized gains and losses included in east —
Net unrealized gains and losses included in otbempeehensive incon (8,072)
Purchases and settlements, (7,050
Investment securities at December 31, 2 $66,32¢
Net change in unrealized gains and losses relatingstruments still held at December 31, 21 $(8,079)

9. Equity Investment
601 California Avenue LLC

In 1995, Intevac entered into a Limited Liabilitp@pany Operating Agreement (the “Operating Agreditien
with 601 California Avenue LLC (the “LLC"), a Catifnia limited liability company formed and owned loyevac
and certain stockholders of Intevac. Under the @jrgg Agreement Intevac transferred Intevac’s lbakkinterest
in the site of its discontinued night vision busisén exchange for a Preferred Share in the LLG witace value of
$3.9 million. During 1996, the LLC formed a joirgénture with Stanford University (the “Stanford J¥8)develop
and lease the property. In December 2007, the @il sold the property, and LLC redeemed Intevac’
$3.9 million Preferred Share.

Intevac accounted for the investment under therashod and originally recorded Intevac’s investtierthe
LLC at $2,431,000, which represented Intevac’sohisal carrying value of the leasehold intereghia site. The
Company received dividends of $292,500 and $390i®@007 and 2006, respectively, from LLC. Theséd#inds
and the $1,469,000 gain realized upon redemptidheoPreferred Share in December 2007 were inclidether
income and expense.

10. Borrowing Facility

On March 5, 2008, Intevac entered into an agreemihtCitigroup Global Markets Inc (“Citi") for aezured
revolving loan facility. This loan facility may berminated at the discretion of Citi and amountstaunding are
payable on demand. It is secured by Intevac’s ABI8 &t Citi. Approximately $20 million of credit @urrently
available pursuant to the loan facility. The ingtnate on the loan facility is Prime minus 1.5ce@t. No amounts
were outstanding under this credit facility at Dmeber 31, 2008.
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11. Income Taxes

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes ondme (loss) from continuing operations consistthef
following (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Federal.
Current $ (3,49¢) $953¢ $947¢
Deferred (7,447 (1,507%) (3,750
(10,940 8,021 5,72¢

State:

Current 3 3 2
Deferred (560 (147) (831)
(557) (144) (829

Foreign:
Current 308 35C 17¢
Total $(11,1949 $8,23: $5,07¢

Income (loss) before income taxes (benefit) coedisf the following (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
u.s $(28,88t) $32,06¢  $51,00:
Foreign 2,341 3,517 773
$(26,53¢) $35,57¢  $51,77%

Effective tax rate 42.2% 23.1% 9.8%

The tax benefits associated with exercises of naliftpd stock options and disqualifying dispositsoof stock
acquired through incentive stock options and thpleyee stock purchase plan increased income tacesable by
$327,000 in 2008 and reduced taxes payable byr®ion in 2007. Such benefits were credited toiiddal paid-
in capital.
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying ameont

assets and liabilities for financial reporting pagps and the amounts for income tax purposes.figeymti
components of deferred tax assets are as followh@usands):

Deferred tax asset
Vacation, rent, warranty and other accrt
Depreciation and amortizatic
Inventory valuatior
Deferred incomt
Equity-based compensatic
Research and other tax credit c-forwards
Impairment losses on available for sale secur
Other

Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass
Net deferred tax asse

As reported on the balance she¢
Current assel
Deferred tax asse
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass
Net current deferred tax ass
Other long term asse
Deferred tax asse
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass
Net nor-current deferred tax asst

Net deferred tax asse

December 31,

2008 2007
$ 74z $ 1,14
3,80¢ 18€
325, 3217
(264) 99
4,93t  3,00:
9,320  2,47:
2,82¢ —
(552) (47)
24,06  10,07:
(6,09) (2,729
$17,96¢( $ 7,34¢
$ 369€ $ 4,13¢
(492) (524)
3,20, 3,60¢
20,37C  5,93¢
(5,605 (2,199
14,768 3,74
$17,96¢ $ 7,34¢

The valuation allowance of $6.1 million is attribbte to state income tax temporary differencesdaferred
research and development credits that are nozedsdi in 2009. State research credit carry-forwafd&b.2 million,

net of a $4.0 million valuation allowance, do nepiee.
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The difference between the tax provision (benefithe statutory federal income tax rate and tkgtavision
(benefit) was as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Income tax (benefit) at the federal statutory $ (9,289 $12,45: $ 18,120
State income taxes, net of federal ber (312 27 (539
Effect of foreign operations taxes at various r: (51¢) (879 (93
Research tax credi (1,100 (1,800 (2,129
Effect of tax rate changes, permanent differenoesaajustments of prior

deferrals (36) (1,699 (38)
Equity-based compensatic — — 1,94:
Unrecognized tax benefi 14C 40C —
Change in valuation allowan: — (121 (12,189
Other (79 (147) —

Total $(11,199 $ 8,23t $ 5,07¢

Included in the above rate reconciliation for te@ayended December 31, 2008 is $696,000 of netdbim
federal and state adjustments related to priomesés for research tax credits, the Domestic A@iviProduction
Deduction, deduction limits on executive compemsgtand a book and tax basis difference relatédtévac’s
interest in a real estate investment.

Intevac has not provided for U.S. federal income fameign withholding taxes on approximately $6.#ion
of undistributed earnings from non-U.S. operatias®f December 31, 2008 because Intevac intenesneest suc
earnings indefinitely outside of the United Statéfntevac were to distribute these earnings, ifpréax credits may
become available under current law to reduce theltiag U.S. income tax liability. Determination thle amount of
unrecognized deferred tax liability related to #hearnings is not practicable. Intevac will rerhé& hon-indefinitely
reinvested earnings, if any, of Intevac’s non-lWishsidiaries where excess cash has accumulatddtanec
determines that it is advantageous for businessatipas, tax or cash reasons.

Included in prepaid expenses and other currentsaas®ecember 31, 2008 is $2.8 million of Federabme
taxes receivable which represents amounts avaifablearryback of losses. As of December 31, 2088 Compan'
had state NOL carryforwards available to offsetifatstate taxable income of approximately $8.6iomlthat expire
in 2028. In addition, the Company had various fatland state tax credit carryforwards combinedppiraximately
$8.5 million. Approximately $2.5 million of the aii carryforwards expire between 2026 and 2028thad
remaining amount is available indefinitely.
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The total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefis $540,000 as of December 31, 2008, of whictoup
$140,000 would affect Intevac's effective tax réiteealized. The aggregate changes in the balahgeoss
unrecognized tax benefits were as follows:

(In thousands):
Beginning balance as of December 31, 2 $ 40C
Settlements and effective settlements with taxaitihs and related remeasureme —
Lapse of statute of limitatior —
Increases in balances related to tax positionsitdkeing prior period —
Decreases in balances related to tax positions tdigng prior period —
Increases in balances related to tax positionsitdkeing current perio 14C
Balance as of at December 31, 2! $ 54C

The unrecognized tax benefits may decrease ingketwelve months due to examinations by tax adtileer
Intevac did not accrue any interest or penaltieged to these unrecognized tax benefits becausedn has other
tax attributes which would offset any potentialdsxdue.

Intevac is subject to income taxes in the U.S. f&ldarisdiction, and various states and foreigtsjiictions.
Tax regulations within each jurisdiction are subjecthe interpretation of the related tax laws esgllations and
require significant judgment to apply. With few eptions, Intevac is not subject to U.S. federalesand local, or
international jurisdictions income tax examinatidaystax authorities for the years before 2004. Stage of
California is scheduled to commence an examinatfdhe fiscal years ended 2005, 2006 and 2007 lmUzey
2009. Presently, there are no other active incax@xaminations in the jurisdictions where Intevperates.

12. Employee Benefit Plans
Employee Savings and Retirement Plan

In 1991, Intevac established a defined contributetitement plan with 401(k) plan features. Thengavers al
United States employees eighteen years and oldgrldyees may make contributions by a percentagéctih in
their salaries, not to exceed the statutorily pibsd annual limit. Intevac made cash contributioh$541,000
$481,000 and $437,000 for the years ended Dece®ih@008, 2007, and 2006, respectively. Employess m
choose among twelve investment options for theitrdoutions and their share of Intevac’s contribng, and they
are able to move funds between investment optibasatime. Intevac’s common stock is not one efitivestment
options. Administrative expenses relating to trengre insignificant.

Employee Bonus Plans

Intevac has various employee bonus plans. A psbiiFing plan provides for the distribution of agesrtage of
pre-tax profits to substantially all of Intevacimployees not eligible for other performarfzagsed incentive plans,
to a maximum percentage of compensation. Othes@arard annual or quarterly bonuses to Inteva@setives
and key contributors based on the achievementdfitability and other specific performance criteridere were n
charges to expense under these plans for the gdadddecember 31, 2008. Charges to expense ureter pans
were $5.2 million and $8.3 million for the yeargled December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

13. Commitments and Contingencie:
Leases

Intevac leases certain facilities under non-cardelaperating leases that expire at various tinpet® irebruary
2013. Certain of Intevac’s leases contain provisifam rental adjustments, including a provisiondzhsn
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increases in the Bay Area Consumer Price Indekudied in other long term assets on the ConsolidB&ddnce
Sheets is $1.3 million of prepaid rent relatechi® ¢ffective rent on Intevac’s long-term leaselfbdevac’s

Santa Clara facility. The facility leases requinéelac to pay for all normal maintenance costss&rental expense
was approximately $3.2 million, $3.3 million, an®.% million for the years ended December 31, 2@08,7, and
2006, respectively. Future minimum lease paymeneaember 31, 2008 totaled $8.2 million and were:

$2.6 million for fiscal 2009; $2.4 million for fisd 2010; $2.2 million for fiscal 2011; $798,000 facal 2012; and
$104,000 for fiscal 2013.

Guarantees
Officer and Director Indemnifications

As permitted or required under Delaware law anthéomaximum extent allowable under that law, Intelvas
certain obligations to indemnify its current andnfier officers and directors for certain events aruwrences while
the officer or director is, or was serving, at lrge’s request in such capacity. These indemnibicadbligations are
valid as long as the director or officer acted aod faith and in a manner the person reasonabigugel to be in or
not opposed to the best interests of the corporatiml, with respect to any criminal action or pegtiag, had no
reasonable cause to believe his or her conductmlasvful. The maximum potential amount of future/ments
Intevac could be required to make under these indferation obligations is unlimited; however, In@vhas a
director and officer insurance policy that mitigatetevacs exposure and enables Intevac to recover a patiany
future amounts paid. As a result of Intevac’s iasge policy coverage, Intevac believes the estifatie value of
these indemnification obligations is not material.

Other Indemnifications

As is customary in Intevac’s industry, many of lrge’s contracts provide remedies to certain thadips such
as defense, settlement, or payment of judgmeribfeliectual property claims related to the usésproducts. Suc
indemnification obligations may not be subject taximum loss clauses. Historically, payments matieé to
these indemnifications have been immaterial.

Warranty

Intevac provides for the estimated cost of warravitgn revenue is recognized. Intevac’s warranpeis
contract terms and for its systems the warranticifly ranges between 12 and 24 months from custome
acceptance. For systems sold through a distriblttayac offers a 3 month warranty. The remaindemy warrant
period is the responsibility of the distributor. fing this warranty period any defective non-consbimgarts are
replaced and installed at no charge to the custofimer warranty period on consumable parts is lidhitetheir
reasonable usable lives. Intevac uses estimatead @preplacement costs along with its historigatranty
experience to determine its warranty obligatiotevac generally provides a twelve month warrantyjt®intevac
Photonics’ products. The provision for the estirddtdure costs of warranty is based upon histogoat and
product performance experience. Intevac exercigggnjent in determining the underlying estimates.

On the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the sieont-portion of the warranty provision is includadther accrue
liabilities, while the long-term portion is includén other long-term liabilities. The expense agsed with product
warranties issued or adjusted is included in cbaebrevenues on the Consolidated Statements efdfipns.
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The following table displays the activity in the manty provision account for 2008 and 2007:

2008 2007

(In thousands)
Beginning balanc $3,09z2 $5,28¢
Expenditures incurred under warrant (2,999 (4,15¢)
Accruals for product warrantie 1,45(C 2,13
Adjustments to previously existing warranty accst 15C (170
Ending balanc: $1,69 $ 3,09

The following table displays the balance sheetsifi@stion of the warranty provision account at Beber 31,
2008 and 2007:

December 31

2008 2007
(In thousands)
Other accrued liabilitie $1,28¢ $2,81¢
Other lon¢-term liabilities 40¢ 27¢
Total warranty provisiol $1,698  $3,097

Legal Matters

On July 7, 2006, Intevac filed a patent infringetrlawsuit against Unaxis USA, Inc., a wholly owned
subsidiary of OC Oerlikon Balzers Ltd. (Oerlikomdaits affiliates, Unaxis Balzers AG and Unaxis Z&aib, Ltd. in
the United States District Court for the Centradtiict of California. On July 14, 2008, as partleé acquisition of
certain assets of Oerlikon, Intevac entered irdetdement agreement which dismissed all claintheritigation.

From time to time, Intevac receives notificatioarfr third parties, including customers and supplisegking
indemnification, litigation support, payment of neynor other actions in connection with claims magdainst them.
In addition, from time to time, Intevac receivegification from third parties claiming that Intevatay be or is
infringing their intellectual property or other hitg. Intevac also is subject to various other Ipgateedings and
claims, both asserted and unasserted, that artbe iordinary course of business. Although the @ute of these
claims and proceedings cannot be predicted wittaicgy, Intevac does not believe that any of theker existing
proceedings or claims will have a material advef§ect on its consolidated financial condition esults of
operations.

14. Segment and Geographic Informatior

Intevac’s two reportable segments are: Equipmedtiatevac Photonics. Effective in the second quante
2008, Intevac renamed the Imaging Instrumentatgment to Intevac Photonics. Intevac’s chief opegat
decision-maker has been identified as the PresalehtCEO, who reviews operating results to makésibets about
allocating resources and assessing performandbda@ntire Company. Segment information is preskbésed
upon Intevac's management organization structud 8ecember 31, 2008 and the distinctive natureach
segment. Future changes to this internal finarstiaktture may result in changes to the reportaggengnts
disclosed.

Each reportable segment is separately managedaanseparate financial results that are reviewedteyac’s
chief operating decision-maker. Each reportablensgg contains closely related products that argueto the
particular segment. Segment operating profit igieined based upon internal performance measueskhysthe
chief operating decision-maker.
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Intevac derives the segment results from its irtiemmanagement reporting system. The accountingipsli
Intevac uses to derive reportable segment resdtsubstantially the same as those used for extexparting
purposes. Management measures the performancelofei@ortable segment based upon several metidading
orders, net revenues and operating income. Managames these results to evaluate the performaneaadto
assign resources to, each of the reportable segniatdvac manages certain operating expensesaselyaat the
corporate level. Intevac allocates certain of tr@sporate expenses to the segments in an amouat 3% of ne
revenues. Segment operating income excludes ihiamesne/expense and other financial charges aswhie taxes
according to how a particular reportable segmantisagement is measured. Management does not conside
impairment charges and unallocated costs in meagthie performance of the reportable segments.

The Equipment segment designs, manufactures arkkteanagnetic media sputtering equipment to thd har
disk drive industry and offers leading-edge, higheuctivity etch systems to the semiconductor itrgus
Additionally, Intevac’s 200 Lean platform may betahble for certain non-magnetic thin film applicais such as
optical coatings, photovoltaic and wear-resistagting. The majority of Intevas’revenue is currently derived frc
the Equipment segment and Intevac expects thah#jerity of its revenues for the next several yesitscontinue
to be derived from the Equipment segment.

The Intevac Photonics segment develops compadteffestive, high-sensitivity digitabptical products for th
capture and display of low-light images and theogpanalysis of materials. Intevac provides sesstameras and
systems for commercial applications in the inspectimedical, scientific and security industries &rdyovernment
applications such as night vision and long-ranggetisidentification.

Net Revenues

2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)
Equipment $ 87,46¢ $196,68¢ $248,48:
Intevac Photonic 22,83¢ 19,14¢ 11,39:
Total segment net revenu $110,30° $215,83: $259,87!
Operating Profit (Loss)
2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)

Equipment $ (9,929 $32,90! $52,22:
Intevac Photonic (6,674 (2,919 (4,826
Total segment operating profit (los (16,599 29,98/ 47,39
Unallocated cost (3,375 (2,549 602
Impairment of goodwill and intangible ass (10,499 — —

Operating income (los!

Interest incom:

Other income and expense,
Income (loss) before income tax

(30,47) 27,43t 47,99
3,96¢ 6,54¢ 3,501
(36) 1,59t 277
$(26,539) $35,57¢ $51,77
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Depreciation and amortization

2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)
Equipment $2,851 $2,22¢  $1,12(
Intevac Photonic 1,38¢ 1,492 1,217
Total segment depreciation and amortiza 4,23¢ 3,72( 2,33i
Unallocated cost 1,17¢ 701 50¢
Total consolidated depreciation and amortiza $5,40¢ $4,421 $2,84¢
Capital Additions
2008 2007 2006
(In thousands)
Equipment $1,58¢ $2,81€ $5,70Z
Intevac Photonic 1,748 85¢ 97¢
Total segment capital additio 3,331 3,674 6,681
Unallocatec 854 2,061 1,742
Total consolidated capital additio $4,185 $5,73t  $8,42¢
Segment Assets
2008 2007
(In thousands)
Equipment $ 33,13 $ 31,81«
Intevac Photonic 23,83¢ 25,60¢
Total segment asse 56,97 57,42
Cash and investmen 105,52¢ 140,66
Deferred income taxe 17,96¢ 7,34¢
Other current asse 3,75 4,162
Common property, plant and equipm 3,645 3,96¢
Other asset 1,30¢ 1,84¢
Consolidated total asse $189,16¢ $215,41.
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Geographic revenue information for the three yeaded December 31, 2008 is based on the locatitireof
customer. Revenue from unaffiliated customers mgggphic region/country was as follows:

2008 2007 2006

(In thousands)
United State: $ 33,80¢ $ 38,800 $ 26,47
Asia(*) 75,10: 175,90 233,15¢
Europe 1,321 1,08: 244
Rest of world 78 43 —
Total net revenue $110,30° $215,83: $259,87!

(*) Revenues are attributable to the geographic arediich Intevac’s customers are located. Net trademues in
Asia includes shipments to Singapore, China, JapariMalaysia

Net property, plant and equipment by geographi@regt December 31 was as follows:

2008 2007
(In thousands)
United State: $14,01¢  $14,36¢
Asia 87C 1,03¢
Net property, plant & equipme $14,88¢  $15,40:

15. Quarterly Consolidated Results of Operations (Unauiied)

Three Months Ended

March 29, June 28, Sept. 27, Dec. 31,

2008 2008 2008 2008
(In thousands, except per share date
Net sales $33,17¢  $32,13: $28,56( $ 16,44(
Gross profit 15,31: 13,13 9,08t 5,81(
Net income (loss 1,56: (937 (3,359 (12,619
Basic income (loss) per she $ 007 $ (0.04H $ (0.15) $ (0.59
Diluted income (loss) per sha 0.07 (0.09) (0.15) (0.5¢)

Three Months Ended

March 31, June 30, Sept. 29, Dec. 31,

2007 2007 2007 2007

(In thousands, except per share date
Net sales $76,37¢ $72,10¢ $50,60: $16,75:
Gross profit 32,78: 30,827 24,61: 7,81¢
Net income (loss 9,84t 11,55: 8,36¢ (2,416
Basic income (loss) per she $ 0.4¢ $ 054 $ 03¢ $ (0.1))
Diluted income (loss) per sha 0.44 0.52 0.3¢ (0.17
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants orcAganting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Management's Report on Assessment of Internal Contls Over Financial Reporting
Conclusions Regarding Disclosure Controls and Prdcees

Intevac’s chief executive officer and Intevac’sefHinancial officer have concluded, based on tredieation of
the effectiveness of Intevac’s disclosure contaold procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) addl%(e) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) lavéats management, with the participation of Intévahief
executive officer and Intevac’s chief financialioffr, that Intevac’s disclosure controls and proced were
effective as of December 31, 2008.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finaia Reporting

Intevac’s management is responsible for establishitd maintaining adequate internal control ovearicial
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15()18der the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,rasraded).
Under the supervision and with the participationndévac’s management, including Intevac’s chief@xive
officer and chief financial officer, Intevac conded an evaluation of the effectiveness of Intevadsrnal control
over financial reporting based on the frameworkniernal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission, or COSO. Based on Intevac's evalnati
under the framework imternal Control — Integrated Frameworkntevac’'s management has concluded that
Intevac’s internal control over financial reportings effective as of December 31, 2008.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportm

There were no changes in Intevac’s internal comvel financial reporting during Intevac’s fouribdal
guarter that have materially affected, or are reably likely to materially affect, Intevac’s intexicontrol over
financial reporting.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Intevac’s management, including Intevac’s chiefeerize officer and chief financial officer, doestrexpect
that Intevac’s disclosure controls and procedurdatevac’s internal controls will prevent all erscand all fraud. A
control system, no matter how well conceived anerafed, can provide only reasonable, not absastjrance th
the objectives of the control system are met. Feurttine design of a control system must reflecfaloethat there a
resource constraints, and the benefits of contnaist be considered relative to their costs. Intsvdisclosure
controls and procedures and Intevac’s internalrotsthave been designed to provide reasonableaas=iof
achieving their objectives. Because of the inheligntations in all control systems, no evaluatmfircontrols can
provide absolute assurance that all control isanesinstances of fraud, if any, within Intevac haeen detected.
An evaluation was performed under the supervisimhwith the participation of Intevac’s manageméntluding
Intevac'’s chief executive officer and chief finaaladfficer, of the effectiveness of the design apdration of
Intevac’s disclosure controls and procedures @&eatmber 31, 2008. Based on that evaluation, Inteva
management, including Intevac’s chief executivéceffand chief financial officer, concluded thatelvac'’s
disclosure controls and procedures were effectitkeareasonable assurance level.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Shareholders Intevac, Inc.

We have audited Intevac, Inc. (a Delaware corpanqtand subsidiaries’ (collectively, the “Companiidernal
control over financial reporting as of DecemberZ108, based on criteria establishedhiernal Control —
Integrated Frarrework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgsitins of the Treadway Commission
(“COS0”). The Company’s management is responsiterfaintaining effective internal control over firc@al
reporting and for its assessment of the effectissmd internal control over financial reportingglided in the
accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Coftver Financial Reporting. Our responsibility sexpress
an opinion on the Company'’s internal control oveafcial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8oa
(United States). Those standards require that e ghd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financiaporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control digancial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and ¢ipgraffectiveness of internal control based onabsessed risk,
and performing such other procedures as we comsldercessary in the circumstances. We believethaudit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesassu
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipieee A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (Iajpeto the maintenance of records that, in reasiendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) ideweasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as nactsgarmit preparation of financial statementsdcordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréipts and expenditures of the company are breadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management anedtdirs of the company; and (3) provide reasonafderance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitexd acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegsts.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Intevac, Inc. and subsidiaries rtaiimed, in all material respects, effective intéwntrol over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, basedriteria established imternal Control — Integrated
Frameworkissued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the consolidated balance shedtgefac Inc. as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 {fzendelated
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdldgtsty and comprehensive income (loss), and das¥s for
each of the three years in the period ended DeceBih@008. Our audits of the basic financial starts included
the financial statement schedule listed in thexrajgpearing under Item 15(a). Our report dated k&r2009
expressed an unqualified opinion on those condelitifinancial statements and schedule.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP
San Jose, California

March 2, 2009

68




Table of Contents

Item 9B. Other Information

On January 26, 2008, the Compensation CommittéeedBoard of Directors of the Company approved a
written document to reflect the Executive IncentRlan, an annual bonus plan structure previousiglased in the
Company’s 8-K filed on February 7, 2006. The Exe®utncentive Plan establishes the criteria, alioce,
methodologies and metrics for the payment of anbaauses, if any, to various management and executi
employees of the Company. The Executive Incentlaa Bocument is attached as Exhibit 10.11 to thiaual
Report on Form 10-K.

PART Il

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

The information required by this item relating b@ tCompany’s directors and nominees, disclosuatimgl to
compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securitiesh&ge Act of 1934, and information regarding Intés@ode of
ethics, audit committee and stockholder recommémusfor director nominees is included under thgticas
“Election of Directors,” “Nominees,” “Business Exjience of Nominees for Election as Directors,” “Bdba
Meetings and Committees,” “Corporate Governancedisf “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Repagtin
Compliance " and “Code of Business Conduct anddsthin the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 28@@ual
Meeting of Stockholders and is incorporated hebgimeference. The information required by this itextating to
the Company'’s executive officers and key employeé@scluded under the caption “Executive Officeusider
Item 4 in Part | of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item is includater the caption “Executive Compensation and Relate
Information” in the Company’s Proxy Statement foe 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and is ipocated
herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners afbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

Securities authorized for issuance under equitypemsation plans. The following table summarizes the
number of outstanding options granted to emplogeekdirectors, as well as the number of securniéewining
available for future issuance, under Intevac’s gotompensation plans at December 31, 2008.

(@) ©

Number of Securities (b) Number of Securities
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Remaining Available
Exercise of Exercise Price of for Future Issuance
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Under Equity
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Compensation Plans

@
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders(2 2,926,411 % 7.1¢% 886,21¢
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holder: — — —

Total 2,926,41 7.13 886,21¢

(1) Excludes securities reflected in column

(2) Included in the column (c) amount are 132,326 shavailable for future issuance under Intevac’s3200
Employee Stock Purchase Pl

The other information required by this item is uraéd under the caption “Ownership of Securitiesthie
Company’s Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Megtif Stockholders and is incorporated herein ligremce.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independenci

The information required by this item is includatter the captions “Certain Transactions” and “Coap®
Governance Matters” in the Company’s Proxy Statdrf@rthe 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders asid i
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servici

The information required by this item is includatter the caption “Fees Paid To Accountants ForiSesv
Rendered During 2008” in the Company’s Proxy Stateinfior the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders &nd
incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedult

1. Financial Statements:
See “Index to Consolidated Financial Statement$?art I, ltem 8 of this Form 10-K.
2. Financial Statement Schedules.

The following financial statement schedule of Iaeyinc. is filed in Part IV, Item 15(a) of this Amal Report
on Form 10-K:

Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules have been omitted since theired, information is not present in amounts sudfitito
require submission of the schedule or becausentbemation required is included in the consolidafedncial
statements or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 (1) Certificate of Incorporation of the Registr:
3.2 (2) Bylaws of the Registrant, as amen
10.1+ (3) The Registrars 1995 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan, as ame
10.2+ (4) The Registrars 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, as ame
10.3+ (5) The Registrars 2004 Equity Incentive Plan, as amen
104 (6) Lease, dated February 5, 2001 regarding the spaaé&H at 3510, 3544, 3560, 3570 and 3580
Bassett Street, Santa Clara, California, includivegFirst through Sixth Amendmer
10.6+ (3) The Registrars 401(k) Profit Sharing Ple
10.8 (7) Loan Facility with Citigroup Global Markets, In

10.9 Director and Officer Indemnification Agreeme

10.11+ The Registrar's Executive Incentive Ple

10.12+ Employment Agreement of Kevin Fairbairn dated Jan@d, 2002, as amend

211 Subsidiaries of the Registre

231 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

23.2 Consent of Independent Valuation Fi

24.1 Power of Attorney (see page 7

311 Certification of President and Chief Executive ©éfi Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 200z
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Exhibit

Number Description

31.2 Certification of Vice-President, Finance and Adreiration, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and
Secretary Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

321 Certifications Pursuant to U.S.C. 1350, adoptedtamt to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

(1) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report orForm ¢-K filed July 23, 2007

(2) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report orForm ¢-K filed November 19, 200

(3) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registratétatement olForm -1 (No. 3:-97806)

(4) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Definitive Proxy Statements filed March 25, 2(
(5) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report orForm &K filed May 20, 200¢

(6) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Form 1(-K filed March 16, 200°

(7) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Comp’s Report orForm ¢-K filed March 6, 200¢

+ Management compensatory plan or arrangement rebjgiree filed as an exhibit pursuant to Item 15(c)
Form 1(-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas
duly caused this report to be signed on its behathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, ancil 4, 2009.

INTEVAC, INC.

By: /s/ JEFFREY ANDRESOM

Jeffrey Andreson

Vice President, Finance and Administration,
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persbose signature appears below constitutes

and appoints Kevin Fairbairn and Jeffrey Andreswoth @ach of them, as his true and lawful attorney&ct and
agents, with full power of substitution and resitbbn, for him and in his name, place and stéadny and all
capacities, to sigh any and all amendments (inntpgiost-effective amendments) to this Report omFbd-K, and
to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, antestdocuments in connection therewith, with theuiges and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadt and agents, and each of them, full power alcgity to
do and perform each and every act and thing requasid necessary to be done in connection thereastfully to
all intents and purposes as he might or could gmison, hereby ratifying and confirming all thaidsattorneys-in-
fact and agents, or any of them, or their or hisstitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or causéé¢ done by virtue

hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xg@ Act of 1934, this report has been signed béelpithe
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/sl KEVIN FAIRBAIRN

(Kevin Fairbairn)

/s/ NORMAN H. POND

(Norman H. Pond

/sl JEFFREY ANDRESON

(Jeffrey Andreson)

/s/ DAVID DURY

(David Dury)

/sl STANLEY J. HILL

(Stanley J. Hill)

/s/ ROBERT LEMOS

(Robert Lemos

/sl PING YANG

(Ping Yang)

Title Date

President, Chief Executive Officer and  March 4, 200!
Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Chairman of the Board March 4, 200!

Vice President, Finance and Administration, March 4, 200!
Chief Financial Officer Treasurer and
Secretary (Principal Financial and
Accounting Officer)

Director March 4, 200!
Director March 4, 200!
Director March 4, 200!
Director March 4, 200!
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SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Description

Year ended December 31, 20!
Deducted from asset accour
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Inventory provision:
Year ended December 31, 20!
Deducted from asset accour

Allowance for doubtful accoun

Inventory provision:
Year ended December 31, 20!
Deducted from asset accour
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Inventory provision:

INTEVAC, INC.

Additions (Reductions)

Balance a Charged (Credited) Charged (Credited] Balance a

Beginning to Costs and to Other Deductions- End

of Period Expenses Accounts Describe of Period

(In thousands)

$ 154 % 14 $ 38 — $ 14z
10,98¢ 1,527 (32) 3,355  9,12¢

$ 14 $ (84) $ — $ 20¢ 57
9,12¢ 862 15¢& 2,395 7,75C

$ 57 $ 93 $ — 3 51 $ 14t
7,75(C 2,001 711 1,4042) 9,05¢

@) Write-offs of amounts deemed uncollectik
(@ Write-off of inventory having no future use or value he tCompany
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INTEVAC

Exhibit 10.1:

Executive Incentive Plan

PURPOSE

The spirit of the Intevac Executive Incentive P{dAIP”) is to motivate senior management to maxienghareholder value by tying
accomplishment of the Company’s financial objectiaed each senior manager’s individual objectisesash incentive compensation.

PARTICIPATION

Participation in the EIP is limited to the key mesrdof the management team selected by the CEOC®hmpensation Committee reviews
and approves the EIP each year.

BONUS POOL
The Bonus Pool is the amount of funds that arel@viaito pay EIP bonuses each year.

The Bonus Pool is calculated by multiplying a petage times Plan year pro-forma pretax earningslifding any reduction in pretax
earnings for EIP bonuses, employee profit shadnd, stock compensation expense). At the beginrfiegch Plan year the CEO
recommends, subject to Compensation Committee aglithe percentage of pro-forma pretax earnindsetallocated to the Bonus Pool.

There is no Bonus Pool in years in which the Comploes not report pro-forma pretax earnings. SiheeBonus Pool is based upon pretax
earnings it includes the effects of any interesbine, or expense, or any extraordinary gains,sses, incurred by the Company during the
Plan year.

The Compensation Committee reserves the right¢tudz any extraordinary or unusual gains, or lggses pretax earnings for the purpo
of calculating the Bonus Pool.




TARGET BONUS

Each EIP participant is assigned a Target BonuseRtage at the beginning of the calendar year hanvthey are hired. This Target Bonus
Percentage may be changed during the year in #m &vat a promotion or significant change in resgilaility occurs. Each Participant’s
Target Bonus will be calculated by multiplying th&arget Bonus Percentage times their Base Page@aluring the Plan year. For exampl
a Participans Base Pay earned during the Plan year was $108r@Dtheir Target Bonus Percentage was 20%, trenThrget Bonus woul
be $20,000. If the same Participant worked for b&the year and earned $50,000 of Base Pay dthi&lan year, then the Participant’s
Target Bonus would be $10,000.

Base Pay is based upon each Participant’s recusarg pay rate. It does not include any other tgpesnployee compensation. For example,
Base Pay does not include items such as commissinsation or housing allowances, hiring or othenuses, overtime, employer taxes,
Company 401K contributions or Company provided theat life insurance.

REALIZED BONUS

Each Participant’s Realized Bonus will be calcudatg applying two factors to their Target Bonus:
1. Each Participars performance relative to a predetermined sobjectives (MBO Performance Facti

2. The size of the Bonus Pool relative to anticipdiedus payments (The Bonus Pool Fac
Accordingly, each individual's bonus will be calatéd as follows:

Realized Bonus = Target Bonus x Normalized MBO &temince Factor x Bonus Pool Factor

MBO Performance Factor—uwill be based upon each Participants performaalzive to a predetermined set of factors deterthatahe
beginning of the Plan year:

Business Results

Business Development and Marketing
Product Excellence

Strategic Initiatives
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For example, if Business Results was given a 409ghtiag and each one of the other factors was gav26% weighting and a Participant
achieved 100% of their Business Results and BusiDeselopment and Marketing objectives, but only dtheir Product Excellence al
Strategic Initiatives, then the Participant’s MB@rfermance Factor would be 80%, calculated asvdio

Business Resuli 40% x 100% = 409
Business Development and Market 20% x 100% = 209
Product Excellenc 20% x 50% = 109
Strategic Initiative: 20% x 50% = 10%

MBO Performance Factor = 40% + 20% + 10% + 10% %!

Each set of objectives will be rated as anywhete/den 0% and 150% complete. For example, if a épatnt were rated as having
achieved 150% of all their objectives, then the MB&formance Factor would be 150%.

Bonus Pool Factorwill be based upon the size of the Bonus Poolikeddb anticipated bonus payments. For examplbgeifBonus Pool
only has enough funds to pay 50% of all anticipdtedus payments, then the Bonus Pool Factor wiliU$. Conversely, if the Bonus
Pool has enough funds to pay 200% of all anticghétnus payments, then the Bonus Pool Factor @i2@0%. The maximum Bonus P
factor is 200% of individual’s target %.

PAYMENT
Payment of EIP bonuses will typically be made lyy¢hd of February of the year following each Plaary

EIP bonuses will only be paid to Participants tir@ employees of the Company on the date the bsrauegaid. For example, if a Participant
completes all, or part, of a Plan year, but resjgiar to payment of their EIP bonus, then no Ediads will be due, or paid to that employee.
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Exhibit 10.1:

November 12, 200
Mr. Kevin Fairbairn

Dear Kevin:

This letter amends certain provisions of yoffier letter dated January 24, 2002 (the “Offert&e) and replaces Exhibit B to the Offer
Letter in its entirety.

The Offer Letter is hereby amended to provigefollowing:
1. The sixth (8) through eleventh (1) paragraphs of the Offer Letter are hereby regplaceheir entirety to read:

" ‘Change of Control’ means a merger or acquisitibthe Company in a transaction pursuant to whiehstareholders of the Company
immediately prior to such transaction own less tfifayn percent (50%) of the surviving entity in dutransaction, or a sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Companytnsinsaction will constitute a Change of Controlasslit also constitutes a “change in control
event within the meaning of Section 409A (as defihelow).

In the event of a Change of Control after WHittevac stock does not exist (such as purchagedfompany for cash), all of your
unvested options outstanding at that time will indiragely vest.

In the event of a Change of Control after WHittevac stock survives, you may either elecetain your unvested options or to accelerate
vesting as in the preceding sentence.

In the event of a Change of Control in whitdck in the acquiring company is exchanged fordatestock and the acquiring company
offers to substitute options in non-Intevac stodthvan economic value equal to all of your unvedtgdvac options, you may either elect to
accept the new stock options or accelerate veasrig the preceding two sentences.

In the event of a Change of Control whereabguiring company decides that you will not condirii your position as President and Chief
Executive Officer and therefore your employmertersninated upon the Change of Control, the Compéhyay you, in one lump sum, an
amount equal to twenty-four (24) months of yourebsalary, subject to withholding of applicable ®x®uch payment shall be made upon or
as soon as practicable following your separatiomfservice with the Company, but, subject to tlatise entitled “Section 409A” below, in
no event later than March 15 of the year followihg year in which your separation from service oscu

In the event of the involuntary termination of yamployment by the Company of you through termerafrom your position as Preside
and Chief Executive Officer for any reason not imireg good cause, the Company will continue to payr base salary for twelve
(12) months following such termination (in accordanvith the Company’s normal payroll practices aubject




to withholding of applicable taxes), if you execated do not revoke a waiver and release of claivasis acceptable to the Company. The
waiver and release of claims must become effegtithiein sixty (60) days of your termination or suearlier date specified by the release
(such deadline, the “Release Deadline”). If theask does not become effective by the ReleaseiDeaglbu will forfeit any rights to
severance under this paragraph, and in no evelgevierance payments under this paragraph be paideided until the release actually
becomes effective. In the event the Release Deaidlim the calendar year following the calendarye which your termination occurs, then
any severance payments or benefits under this pgrlaghat would be considered Payments (as defiakxv) will be paid on the first payrc
date to occur during the calendar year following ¢alendar year in which such termination occursf tater, (i) the Release Deadline,

(i) such time as required by the payment schedpfdicable to each payment as set forth in thé $eatence of this paragraph, or (iii) such
time as required by the section below entitled tB®c409A.” Any Payments delayed as a result offifier sentence will be paid on the first
date permitted under such senterice.

2. The following paragraphs are added afterefleventh (110) paragraph of the Offer Letter, which shall readhieir entirety as follows:

" Section 409A (a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrarytirstletter, no Payments (as defined below) willdree payable under tt
letter until you have a “separation from servicathin the meaning of Section 409A. It is the Comgarexpectation and intent that severs
payments under this letter will fall within the Siea 409A exceptions described in clauses (c) andobelow and therefore will not
constitute Payments. However, if you are a “spedi@mployeeWwithin the meaning of Section 409A of the InterRalvenue Code of 1986,
amended (the “Code”) and the final regulations amyl guidance promulgated thereunder (“Section 4)@&the time of your termination
(other than due to death) or resignation, therséwerance payable to you, if any, pursuant toléfisr, when considered together with any
other severance payments or separation benefitatb@onsidered deferred compensation under $e4fiB8A (together, the “Payments”) that
are payable within the first six (6) months follogiyour termination of employment, shall be delayedl the earlier of: (i) the date that is
(6) months and one (1) day after the date of thmitetion, or (ii) the date of your death (suchegahe “Delayed Initial Payment Date”), and
the Company (or the successor entity thereto, pcaple) shall (A) pay to you a lump sum amouniado the sum of the Payments that you
would otherwise have received on or before the y@aldnitial Payment Date, without any adjustmentonount of such delay, if the
Payments had not been delayed pursuant to thigneguta, and (B) pay the balance of the Paymentsdardance with any applicable paym
schedules set forth herein. Notwithstanding angthiarein to the contrary, if you die following yaermination but prior to the Delayed
Initial Payment Date, then any Payments delayext@ordance with this paragraph will be payable limap sum as soon as administratively
practicable after the date of Employgeeath (and in all cases, within ninety (90) dafygour death) and all other Payments will be pésyat
accordance with the payment schedule applicabéa¢h payment or benefit.

(b) Each payment and benefit payable undsri¢hiier is intended to constitute a separate pat/foe purposes of Section 1.409A-2(b)(2)
of the Treasury Regulations.

(c) Any amounts paid under this letter thais$athe requirements of the “short-term defernalle set forth in Section 1.409A-1(b)(4) of
the Treasury Regulations will not constitute Paytador purposes of clause (a) above.




(d) Any severance amount paid under the |¢t@rqualifies as a payment made as a result ofvenuntary separation from service
pursuant to Section 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii) of the Tsasy Regulations that does not exceed the Secli®A 4imit shall not constitute Payments
for purposes of clause (a) above. For purposdsi®fdtter, “Section 409A Limit” shall mean thedes of two (2) times (A) your annualized
compensation based upon the annual rate of payt@giou during the Company’s taxable year precettiegCompany’s taxable year of your
termination of employment as determined under TngaRegulation 1.409A-1(b)(9)(iii)(A)(1) and anytémnal Revenue Service guidance
issued with respect thereto; or (B) the maximum am¢hat may be taken into account under a qudlffian pursuant to Section 401(a)(17)
of the Code for the year in which the your emplowtris terminated.

(e) The foregoing provisions are intendedamply with the requirements of Section 409A so thate of the severance payments and
benefits to be provided hereunder will be subje¢he additional tax imposed under Section 4094, amy ambiguities herein will be
interpreted to so comply. You and the Company atgrerork together in good faith to consider amendisi¢o this letter and to take such
reasonable actions which are necessary, appropriatesirable to avoid imposition of any additiotead or income recognition prior to actual
payment to you under Section 409A.

This letter acts as an amendment to your Qfétter. To the extent not amended hereby, youerQfétter remains in full force and effect.
This letter and your Offer Letter represent thererdagreement between you and the Company witreot$p the subject matter contained
therein, and supersedes all prior or contemporaagreements whether written or oral. This lettet your Offer Letter may only be
amended or modified in a writing signed by an appate officer of the Company and by you. | havaaied two copies of this letter. Please
sign and date one copy and return it to KimberlykB¥ice President of Human Resources as soon ssilpje. Please keep the other copy for
your records

Sincerely,

/s NORMAN H. POND
Norman H. Pond
Chairman of the Boart

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO

/s KEVIN FAIRBAIRN

President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc
November 12, 200




January 24, 2002
Mr. Kevin Fairbairn
Dear Kevin

On behalf of Intevac (the “Company”), | am pleasedffer you the position of President and ChieéE&ixtive Officer of the Company.
Speaking for myself, as well as the other membetiseoCompany’s Board of Directors, we are all viempressed with you and your
credentials and we look forward to your future ssscin this position.

The terms of your new position with the Companyseeforth below:

You will become the President and Chief Executifthe Company. As President and Chief Executivéc®ffyou will have responsibility for
the general management of the Company’s businesganwill report to the Board of Directors.

You will be paid a monthly base salary of $20,44&fich is equivalent to $245,000 on an annualizexdsb& our salary will be payable
pursuant to the Company’s regular payroll policeuYwill be eligible for an annual performance booéisip to 200% of annual salary
predicated upon achieving specific goals and objest At the Company’s election the bonus paid a9 of salary may be paid in cash or
stock. The details of this bonus plan will be watlt jointly between you and the Board and agteethnually within sixty (60) days after
approval of the years’ annual operating plan. Renjear 2002 the understanding is that a bonu8%f\Will be awarded at end of 2002
provided the company performance is reasonably gattddetails to be agreed by 4/1/02.

In addition, upon becoming an employee of the Camgpblwill recommend that the Board of Directorsagtryou an option to purchase an
aggregate of 250,000 shares Integazmmmmon stock at an exercise price equal to thenfarket value of the Common Stock on the datihe
grant, as determined by the Board of Directors s€haption shares will vest at the rate ofLd§ the total number of shares on the first
anniversary of your date of employment, and antamdil 1/60" of the total number of shares at the end of eaehmonth period thereafter.

In the event of a Change of Control after whiclkeWaic stock would not exist (such as purchase oftmapany for cash) all options in this
grant that have not vested will immediately vest ba exercised.

In the event of a Change of Control after whicleuatc stock survives the employee may elect torréte unvested options or to accelerate
vesting with conditions like those in the “purcha$e¢he Company for cash” situation.

In the event of a Change of Control after whictcktim the acquiring company is exchanged for Intestack and the acquiring company
offers to provide an option in a different stockegfuivalent economic value the employee may eteattept the new stock options or
accelerate vesting with conditions like those i thurchase the Company for cash” situation




“Change of Control” means a merger or acquisitibthe Company in a transaction pursuant to whiehstmareholders of the Company
immediately prior to such transaction own less thiféy percent (50%) of the surviving entity in dutransaction, or sale of all or substantially
all of the assets of the Company.

In the event of the involuntary termination of yqasition as President and Chief Executive Offfoerany reason not involving good cause,
conditioned upon your execution of a wavier andasé of claims that is acceptable to the CompaeryCbompany will continue to pay your
base salary for twelve (12) months following suetmtination.

In the event of change of control where the busidks to not continue your position, the Compaillyoantinue to pay you an amount eq
to your base salary for twelve (12) months in amep sum. In the event the buyer requests that gatiraie as CEO or equivalent position a
contract will be established with the buyer requgrthem to pay you an amount equal to twice (2giyeur annual salary after 12 months
employment.

You will be eligible to participate in the Compasystandard benefits program, details of which léllsent under separate cover.

This offer of employment is contingent upon (1) ysigning the Company’s Employee Proprietary Infation Agreement, and (2) your
providing proof of your eligibility to work in th&.S.

Your employment with the Company will be on anwall” basis, meaning that either you or the Compamgy terminate your employment at
any time for any reason or no reason.

Kevin, we are all delighted to be able to extend tas offer and look forward to working with you.

To indicate your acceptance of the Company’s offlrase sign and date this letter in the spacagwdwbelow and return it to me.
Sincerely,

/s/ Norman H. Pond

Norman H. Pont
Chairman

Accepted and Agreed:
Signature: /s/ Kevin Fairbairn

Start Date: January 24, 2002



10.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
Intevac Photonics, Int
Lotus Technologies, In~ Santa Clara, Californi
IRPC, Inc.— Santa Clara, Californi
Intevac Foreign Sales Corporati- Barbados
Intevac Asia Private Limite— Singapore
Intevac Malaysia Sdn BF— Malaysia
Intevac Limited- Hong Kong
Intevac (Shenzhen) Co. L- China
IVAC Co. Ltd- Korea

Intevac Japan Kabushiki Kaisha (K- Japar

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our reports dated March 2, 288 mpanying the consolidated financial statemantl schedule and management’s
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the Annuald®et of Intevac, Inc. and subsidiaries on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008h@feby consent to the incorporation by referencgaaf reports in the Registration
Statements of Intevac, Inc. and subsidiaries omB@-8 (File No. 333-152773, effective August )&0File No. 333-143418, effective
May 31, 2007, File No. 333-134422 effective May 2@06, File No. 333-125523, effective June 6, 200k, No. 333-109260, effective
September 9, 2003, File No. 333-106960, effectisg 11, 2003, File No. 333-50166, effective Novembeé, 2000, and File No. 333-65421,
effective October 10, 1998)

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California
March 2, 2009



Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT VALUATION FIRM

We consent to the inclusion in the Annual Repbintevac, Inc. and subsidiaries on Form 10eKthe year ended December 31, 2008 of
references to our Valuation Report relating toghtmation of fair value of certain auction ratewgéties held by the Company as of
December 31, 2008 and to references to our firmtaentherein.

/sl Houlihan Smith & Company, In

Chicago, lllinois
March 4, 200¢



Exhibit 31.1

Certifications

I, Kevin Fairbairn certify that:

1.
2.

5.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Intevac, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets. under which such statements were made, nigamisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this rep

. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13¢-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal controls over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control oveatditial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgzgding the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadtyepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentisi report Intevac’s conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contiots procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on such
evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal ctstreer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 4, 2009

/s/ KEVIN FAIRBAIRN
Kevin Fairbairn
President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc!




Exhibit 31.2

Certifications

I, Jeffrey Andreson certify that:

1.
2.

5.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Intevac, Inc.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets. under which such statements were made, nigamisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal controls over finanmglorting, or caused such internal control oveatditial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgding the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial stateme
for external purposes in accordance with geneeadtepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragiisslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgutures, as of the end of the period coveredibyédport based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitit occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reporting;dan

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal ctsmtreer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 4, 2009

/s/ JEFFREY ANDRESON

Jeffrey Andresol

Vice President, Finance and Administration,
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secre




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF  FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Kevin Fairbairn, certify, pursuant to 183JC. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to SediiéroPthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that
the Annual Report of Intevac, Inc. on Form 10-K ttee period ended December 31, 2008 fully compiigis the requirements of Section 13
(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1884 that information contained in such Form 10aKly presents in all material respects
the financial condition and results of operatiohintevac, Inc.

By: /s/ KEVIN FAIRBAIRN
Name: Kevin Fairbairn
Title: President, Chief Executive Officer and Direc

I, Jeffrey Andreson, certify, pursuant to 18BIC. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fiérof the Sarbanedxley Act of 2002, the
the Annual Report of Intevac, Inc. on Form 10-K tlee period ended December 31, 2008 fully complis the requirements of Section 13
(&) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1884 that information contained in such Form 10akly presents in all material respects
the financial condition and results of operatiohintevac, Inc.

By: /s/ JEFFREY ANDRESON
Name: Jeffrey Andresor
Vice President, Finance and Administration,
Title: Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and
Secretary

A signed original of this written statemenqué&ed by Section 906 has been provided to Intelvec,and will be retained by Intevac, Inc.
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosioni®r its staff upon request.



